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3M COMPANY

FORM 10-Q

For the Quarterly Period Ended June 30, 2017
PART I. Financial Information

Iltem 1. Financial Statements.

3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Income

(Unaudited)
Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,

(Millions, except per share amounts) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Net sale $ 7810 $ 7,662 $ 15495% 15,071
Operating expenses

Cost of sales 4,007 3,799 7,876 7,477

Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,607 1,560 3,207 3,093

Research, development and related expenses 473 437 944 887

Gain on sale of businesses (461) — (490) (40)

Total operating expenses 5,626 5,796 11,537 11,417

Operating income 2,184 1,866 3,958 3,654
Interest expense and income

Interest expense 54 38 99 85

Interest income (12) )] (20) (12)

Total interest expense — net 42 31 79 73

Income before income taxes 2,142 1,835 3,879 3,581
Provision for income taxes 557 542 968 1,010
Net income including noncontrolling intere $ 158 $ 1,293 $ 2911% 2571
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingeietst 2 2 5 5
Net income attributable to 3| $ 1583 $ 1,291 $ 2906% 2,566
Weighted average 3M common shares outstanding € bas 598.1 606.9 598.1 607.2
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slddehs — basic $ 2.65 $ 213 $ 486% 4.23
Weighted average 3M common shares outstanding wtedil 612.8 620.9 612.4 621.1
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common sluddehs —dilutec $ 258 $ 208 $ 474% 4.13
Cash dividends paid per 3M common share $ 1175 $ 111 % 2.35% 2.22

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financatke&tents are an integral part of this statement.



3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

(Unaudited)
Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Net income including noncontrolling inter $ 1,585 $ 1,293 $ 2911 $ 2,571
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment (67, 37 225 175
Defined benefit pension and postretirement plans
adjustment 78 67 161 136
Cash flow hedging instruments, unrealized gainsflos (51 (27, (127 (137
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (40) 77 259 174
Comprehensive income (loss) including noncontrgllin
interest 1,545 1,370 3,170 2,745
Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to norrodlintg
interest (2 (2 (8) 4
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to 3M $ 1543 $ 1,368 $ 3,162 $ 2,741

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancatkeBtents are an integral part of this statement.



3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Unaudited)
June 30, December 31,
(Dollars in millions, except per share amount) 2017 2016
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,654 $ 2,398
Marketable securities — current 140 280
Accounts receivable — net 4,919 4,392
Inventories
Finished goods 1,863 1,629
Work in process 1,145 1,039
Raw materials and supplies 830 717
Total inventories 3,838 3,385
Other current assets 1,090 1,271
Total current assets 12,641 11,726
Marketable securities — non-current 17 17
Investments 137 128
Property, plant and equipment 24,292 23,499
Less: Accumulated depreciation (15,726) (14,983)
Property, plant and equipment — net 8,566 8,516
Goodwill 9,105 9,166
Intangible assets — net 2,201 2,320
Prepaid pension benefits 83 52
Other assets 1,207 981
Total assets 33,957 $ 32,906
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings and current portion of lorgat debt 213 % 972
Accounts payable 1,782 1,798
Accrued payroll 666 678
Accrued income taxes 432 299
Other current liabilities 2,604 2,472
Total current liabilities 5,697 6,219
Long-term debt 11,088 10,678
Pension and postretirement benefits 3,761 4,018
Other liabilities 1,767 1,648
Total liabilities 22,313 $ 22,563
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Equity
3M Company shareholders’ equity:
Common stock par value, $.01 par value, 944,033sb5ées issued 9 $ 9
Additional paid-in capital 5,244 5,061
Retained earnings 38,793 37,907
Treasury stock, at cost: 347,265,909 shares at3un2017; 347,306,778 shares at
December 31, 2016 (25,466) (25,434)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (6,989 (7,245
Total 3M Company shareholders’ equity 11,591 10,298
Noncontrolling intere: 53 45
Total equity 11,644 $ 10,343
Total liabilities and equity 33,957 $ 32,906

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinanciatkeBtents are an integral part of this statement.



3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)
Six months ended
June 30,
(Millions) 2017 2016
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income including noncontrolling intere 2911 % 2,571
Adjustments to reconcile net income including narioalling interest to net
cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 818 722
Company pension and postretirement contributions (279 (97
Company pension and postretirement expense 162 118
Stock-based compensation expense 206 193
Gain on sale of businesses (490) (40)
Deferred income taxes (120 (134
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (412 (419
Inventories (347) (42)
Accounts payable (60) (57
Accrued income taxes (current and long-term) 257 (102)
Other — net (16) (168
Net cash provided by operating activit 2,630 2,545
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) (589 (637
Proceeds from sale of PP&E and other assets 13 18
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired — (4)
Purchases of marketable securities and investments (407) (510)
Proceeds from maturities and sale of marketablergEs and investments 543 449
Proceeds from sale of businesses, net of cash sold 862 56
Other — net 5 (2)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi 427 (630)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Change in short-term debt — net (113 (337
Repayment of debt (maturities greater than 90 days) (650) —
Proceeds from debt (maturities greater than 90)days — 1,112
Purchases of treasury stock (1,184) (2,055)
Proceeds from issuance of treasury stock pursoasibtk option and benefit
plans 496 612
Dividends paid to shareholders (1,403) (1,344)
Other — net (2) (16)
Net cash used in financing activiti (2,856) (2,028)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbaénts 55 3
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 256 (110)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,398 1,798
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 2,654 $ 1,688

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financatke&tents are an integral part of this statement.



3M Company and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

NOTE 1. Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The interim consolidated financial statements au@udited but, in the opinion of management, refidichdjustments
necessary for a fair statement of the Company’salfated financial position, results of operatiansl cash flows for
the periods presented. These adjustments congistrofal, recurring items. The results of operatifamsany interim
period are not necessarily indicative of resultsiie full year. The interim consolidated financtdtements and notes
are presented as permitted by the requiremen®@darterly Reports on Form 10-Q.

As described in 3M’s Current Report on Form 8-KediaMay 4, 2017 (which updated 3M’s 2016 Annual Repo
Form 10-K) and 3M’s Quarterly Report on Form 10a@the period ended March 31, 2017, effective anfttst quarter
of 2017, the Company changed its business segmpotting in its continuing effort to improve thégaiment of
businesses around markets and customers. Thesgeshacluded the integration of the former Renewdébiergy
Division into existing divisions, the combining oo divisions to form the Automotive and Aerosp&mutions
Division, and consolidation of U.S. customer acdagtivity, impacting dual credit reporting. Segrhariormation
presented herein reflects the impact of these dwafug all periods presented. This Quarterly ReporEorm 10-Q
should be read in conjunction with the Company'ssmidated financial statements and notes includéd Current
Report on Form 8-K dated May 4, 2017.

Foreign Currency Translation

Local currencies generally are considered the fanat currencies outside the United States. Asmedsliabilities for
operations in local-currency environments are teded at month-end exchange rates of the perioartegh Income and
expense items are translated at month-end exchategeof each applicable month. Cumulative traisiedjustments
are recorded as a component of accumulated othegpretiensive income (loss) in shareholders’ equity.

3M has a subsidiary in Venezuela, the financigkst@nts of which are remeasured as if its functionaency were
that of its parent because Venezuela’'s economica@ament is considered highly inflationary. The méng income of
this subsidiary represented less than 1.0 perde3itls consolidated operating income for 2016. Menezuelan
government sets official rates of exchange and itiong precedent to purchase foreign currencyeddhrates with local
currency. The government also operates variousrngdqehsecondary currency exchange mechanisms thablean
eliminated and replaced from time to time. Suckgand conditions have been and continue to beuoj change.
For the periods presented, the financial statenadr8M’s Venezuelan subsidiary were remeasuredzintg the rate
associated with the secondary auction mechanigpo, d&@ Cambio Complementario, which was redesigyatd
Venezuelan government in June 2017, (DICOM2),0pitdecessor. During the same periods, the Velzrzue
government’s official exchange was Tipo de Cambimdyido (DIPRO), or its predecessor.



Note 1 in 3M’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Miay017 (which updated 3M’s 2016 Annual ReporEonm 10-
K) provides additional information the Company ddess in determining the exchange rate used relativts
Venezuelan subsidiary as well as factors whichd:tedd to its deconsolidation. The Company consrtoemonitor
these circumstances. Changes in applicable exchrategor exchange mechanisms may continue iruthest These
changes could impact the rate of exchange appédahiemeasure the Company’s net monetary assdisifjes)
denominated in Venezuelan Bolivars (VEF). As ofel@0, 2017, the Company had a balance of net myredaets
denominated in VEF of less than 5 billion VEF ahd DIPRO and DICOM exchange rates were approxima@NVEF
and 2,600 VEF per U.S. dollar, respectively. A needeconsolidate the Company’s Venezuelan sulvgidiaperations
may result from a lack of exchangeability of VERdminated cash coupled with an acute degradatitmeibility to
make key operational decisions due to governmeuilaéions in Venezuela. Based upon a review obfacas of

June 30, 2017, the Company continues to consolittat¥éenezuelan subsidiary. As of June 30, 2014 pthlance of
intercompany receivables due from this subsidiay its equity balance were not significant.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in prior periods’ consolidated fiicial statements have been reclassified to conforiime current
period presentation.

Earnings Per Share

The difference in the weighted average 3M sharéstanding for calculating basic and diluted eargsipgr share
attributable to 3M common shareholders is a rasfithe dilution associated with the Company’s stbeked
compensation plans. Certain options outstandingutietse stock-based compensation plans wereclatlied in the
computation of diluted earnings per share attribletéo 3M common shareholders because they woultiane had a
dilutive effect (insignificant for the three montbéeded June 30, 2017; 1.6 million average optionghe six months
ended June 30, 2017; 2.9 million average optiongh®three months ended June 30, 2016; and 5li@mélverage
options for the six months ended June 30, 2016).cdmputations for basic and diluted earnings paresfollow:

Earnings Per Share Computations

Three months ended  Six months ended

June 30, June 30,
(Amounts in millions, except per share amounts) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Numerator
Net income attributable to 3M $1,583 $1,291 $2,906 $2,566

Denominator:
Denominator for weighted average 3M common shanestanding- basic 598.1 606.9 598.1 607.2

Dilution associated with the Company’s stock-basatipensation plans 14.7 14.0 14.3 13.9

Denominator for weighted average 3M common shanestanding- dilutec  612.8 620.9 6124 621.1

Earnings per share attributable to 3M common sluddens— basic $ 265 $ 213 $ 486 $ 4.23
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slwddens— diluted $ 258 $ 208 $ 474 $ 4.13



New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsi@q&ASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ARW)2014-
09, Revenue from Contracts with Customensd in August 2015 issued ASU No. 2015-14, wilasictended the standard
as to effective date. The ASU provides a singlef@mensive model to be used in the accountingefeenue arising
from contracts with customers and supersedes ot revenue recognition guidance, including stduspecific
guidance. The standard’s stated core principleasdn entity should recognize revenue to depetrémsfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an antbanreflects the consideration to which thetgrekpects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or servicesadhieve this core principle the ASU includes Bions within a five
step model that includes identifying the contraithva customer, identifying the performance obligas in the contract,
determining the transaction price, allocating tlams$action price to the performance obligationd, r@cognizing
revenue when (or as) an entity satisfies a perfoom@bligation. The standard also specifies thewtting for some
costs to obtain or fulfill a contract with a custemnand requires expanded disclosures about theenaimount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arisiomfcontracts with customers. During 2016, the FASB® issued
ASU No. 2016-08Principal versus Agent Considerations (ReportingdXeie Gross versus NefjSU No. 2016-10,
Identifying Performance Obligations and LicensidgU No. 2016-12Narrow-Scope Improvements and Practical
Expedientsand ASU No. 2016-20,echnical Corrections and Improvements to Topic, 838/enue from Contracts with
Customeravhich amend ASU No. 2014-09. These amendmentadeatlarification of principal versus agent guidanc
in situations in which a revenue transaction inegla third party in providing goods or servicea tstomer. In such
circumstances, an entity must determine whethenalere of its promise to the customer is to prewtte underlying
goods or services (i.e., the entity is the prinkipahe transaction) or to arrange for the thiedtp to provide the
underlying goods or services (i.e., the entityhis &gent in the transaction). The amendments glaniterms of
identifying performance obligations, how entitiesuhd determine whether promised goods or serviceseparately
identifiable from other promises in a contract athéyefore, would be accounted for separately. giidance allows
entities to disregard goods or services that amatarial in the context of a contract and providesccounting policy
election to account for shipping and handling atiés as fulfillment costs rather than as additiggramised services.
With regard to the licensing, the amendments gldrifw an entity would evaluate the nature of itsnpise in granting a
license of intellectual property, which determimdsether the entity recognizes revenue over timat @rpoint in time.
The amendments also address implementation isslagive to transition (adding a practical expedientcontract
modifications and clarifying what constitutes a @ated contract when employing full or modifiedrosipective
transition methods), collectability, noncash coasidion, and the presentation of sales and oth@lasitype taxes
(allowing entities to exclude sales-type taxeseméld from transaction price). Finally, the amendisenake certain
technical corrections and provide additional guaaim the areas of disclosure of performance otitiga, provisions
for losses on certain types of contracts, scomng,other areas. Overall, ASU No. 2014-09, as apwmqutovides for
either full retrospective adoption or a modifiettrospective adoption by which it is applied onlythe most current
period presented. For 3M, the ASU is effective dapd, 2018. The Company is continuing to evaltiagestandard’s
impact on 3M'’s consolidated results of operatiomd financial condition. 3M has conducted initiabéyses, developed
project management relative to the process of amptis ASU, and is currently completing detaitamhtract reviews
to determine necessary adjustments to existinguentic@ policies and to support an evaluation ofdtadard’s impact
on the Company’s consolidated results of operatéonsfinancial condition. For the majority of 3M&svenue
arrangements, no significant impacts are expecdtese transactions are not accounted for undasiry-specific
guidance that will be superseded by the ASU anemgdly consist of a single performance obligatiotransfer
promised goods or services. However, in additioexganded disclosures regarding revenue, the ASild cfor
example, impact the timing of revenue recognitiosdme arrangements for which software industrgifipgguidance
(which the ASU supersedes) is presently utilizdte Tompany currently anticipates utilizing the nfiedi retrospective
method of adoption on January 1, 2018.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-3implifying the Measurement of Inventomhich modified previous
requirements regarding measuring inventory atahet of cost or market. Under previous standatdsmarket
amount required consideration of replacement cedtrealizable value (NRV), and NRV less an apprately normal
profit margin. The new ASU replaced market with NRifined as estimated selling prices in the omjicaurse of
business, less reasonably predictable costs of letimm, disposal and transportation. This elimidatee need to
determine and consider replacement cost or NRVdesspproximately normal profit margin when measyiri



inventory. 3M adopted this standard prospectivelgibning January 1, 2017. The adoption did not lzareaterial
impact on 3M'’s consolidated results of operatiomd financial condition.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016R¥cognition and Measurement of Financial Assetskandncial
Liabilities, which revises the accounting related to (1) thesification and measurement of investments iritgqu
securities and (2) the presentation of certainviaiue changes for financial liabilities measurétha value. The ASU
also amends certain disclosure requirements assdaiath the fair value of financial instrument$ielnew guidance
requires the fair value measurement of investmiengguity securities and other ownership intergsemn entity,
including investments in partnerships, unincorpedgoint ventures and limited liability companiesl{ectively, equity
securities) that do not result in consolidation anelnot accounted for under the equity methodti&ntwill need to
measure these investments and recognize changgsyalue in net income. Entities will no longez bble to recognize
unrealized holding gains and losses on equity gexsuthey classify under current guidance as atbie! for sale in other
comprehensive income (OCI). They also will no lanige able to use the cost method of accountingdaity securities
that do not have readily determinable fair valllstead, for these types of equity investmentsdbatot otherwise
qualify for the net asset value practical expedientities will be permitted to elect a practicapiexception and
measure the investment at cost less impairmentgslosnus observable price changes (in orderlysiations). The
ASU also establishes an incremental recognitiondisosure requirement related to the presentatidair value
changes of financial liabilities for which the famlue option (FVO) has been elected. Under thidance, an entity
would be required to separately present in OChpthréion of the total fair value change attributatoénstrument-
specific credit risk as opposed to reflecting thére amount in earnings. For derivative liabiktir which the FVO
has been elected, however, any changes in faie\atubutable to instrument-specific credit riskuld continue to be
presented in net income, which is consistent wittient guidance. For 3M, this standard is effechigginning January
1, 2018 via a cumulative-effect adjustment to beigig retained earnings, except for guidance redativequity
securities without readily determinable fair valudsich is applied prospectively. The Company isently assessing
this ASU’s impact on 3M’s consolidated results p&mtions and financial condition, however, 3M hisorically held
limited amounts of equity securities and cost métimvestments (less than $75 million in aggregatiiae 30, 2017),
and has not elected the FVO with respect to matiémencial liabilities.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016L@asesreplacing existing lease accounting guidance. ridve
standard introduces a lessee model that would negutities to recognize assets and liabilitiesiost leases, but
recognize expenses on their income statementsnanmer similar to current accounting. The ASU dustismake
fundamental changes to existing lessor accounitiogvever, it modifies what qualifies as a sales-tgpd direct
financing lease and related accounting and aligmsnaber of the underlying principles with thosetef new revenue
standard, ASU No. 2014-09, such as evaluating haleatability should be considered and determinitgen profit can
be recognized. The guidance eliminates existinpe®ate-specific provisions and requires expanpeditative and
guantitative disclosures. The standard requiresifieddetrospective transition by which it is apgaliat the beginning of
the earliest comparative period presented in tlae geadoption. For 3M, the ASU is effective Jaryuhy2019.
Information under existing lease guidance with eespo rent expense for operating leases and thep&oy’s minimum
lease payments for capital and operating leasésnwih-cancelable terms in excess of one year Beoédmber 31, 2016
is included in Note 14 in 3M’s Current Report orriifd-K dated May 4, 2017 (which updated 3M’s 20Tthhal
Report on Form 10-K). The Company is currently assegy this ASU’s impact on 3M's consolidated resolft
operations and financial condition.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-06ntingent Put and Call Options in Debt Instrumefisis ASU
clarified guidance used to determine if debt insients that contain contingent put or call opticetuire separation of
the embedded put or call feature from the debtunstnt and trigger accounting for the feature deravative with
changes in fair value recorded through income. Utitienew guidance, fewer put or call options endieeldn debt
instruments require derivative accounting. For 8\ ASU was effective January 1, 2017. The Comjsaoytstanding
debt with embedded put provisions did not requéesate derivative accounting under previous guielaAs a result,
the adoption of this standard did not have a malteripact on the Company’s consolidated resuligpafrations and
financial condition.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-8implifying the Transition to the Equity MethodAaicounting
which eliminated the previous requirement to agpb/equity method of accounting retrospectivelyigiag prior
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periods as if the equity method had always beelie)pvhen an entity obtained significant influermeer a previously
held investment. The new guidance requires thestoveo apply the equity method prospectively frilve date the
investment qualifies for the equity method. Theestor would add the carrying value of the existmgestment to the
cost of any additional investment to determineitiitéal cost basis of the equity method investmé&ior 3M, this ASU
was effective January 1, 2017 on a prospectivesphagth early adoption permitted. 3M will apply shguidance to
investments that transition to the equity methddrahe adoption date.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016M8asurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instrusevhich
revises guidance for the accounting for creditdesan financial instruments within its scope. Tha/standard
introduces an approach, based on expected lossestjinate credit losses on certain types of firmmestruments and
modifies the impairment model for available-foresdebt securities. The new approach to estimatieditdosses
(referred to as the current expected credit lossedel) applies to most financial assets measurachattized cost and
certain other instruments, including trade and otheeivables, loans, held-to-maturity debt se@gjtnet investments
in leases and off-balance-sheet credit exposuréh. dspect to available-for-sale (AFS) debt sdims; the ASU
amends the current other-than-temporary impairmeatel. For such securities with unrealized lossesties will still
consider if a portion of any impairment is relatedy to credit losses and therefore recognizedraslaction in income.
However, rather than also reflecting that credislamount as a permanent reduction in cost (aradrtiast) basis of
that AFS debt security, the ASU requires that ¢riedises be reflected as an allowance. As a resugr certain
circumstances, a recovery in value could resyfr@vious allowances, or portions thereof, reversiagk into income.
For 3M, this ASU is effective January 1, 2020, wadrly adoption permitted. Entities are requiredpply the
standard’s provisions as a cumulative-effect adjestt to retained earnings as of the beginning efitist reporting
period in which the guidance is adopted. The Comaourrently assessing this ASU’s impact on 3ebasolidated
results of operations and financial condition.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016QBkssification of Certain Cash Receipts and CashrRentswhich
was intended to reduce diversity in practice in lo@ntain cash receipts and payments are presemtiecassified in the
statement of cash flows. The standard providedaguid in a number of situations including, amongihsettlement
of zero-coupon bonds, contingent consideration gagsmmade after a business combination, proceenstfre
settlement of insurance claims, and distributieteived from equity method investees. The ASU piswided
guidance for classifying cash receipts and paynthatshave aspects of more than one class of tash.fFor 3M, this
ASU is effective January 1, 2018, with early adoptpermitted. The Company early adopted ASU No6218 as of
January 1, 2017. Since the associated changeassifatation were immaterial to all prior periodegented, no impact
was reflected in the Company’s pre-2017 consolaleésults of operations and financial conditionspraed.

In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016t8a-Entity Transfers of Assets Other Than Inventavhich
modifies existing guidance and is intended to rediigersity in practice with respect to the accouqfor the income
tax consequences of intra-entity transfers of as3déte ASU indicates that the current exceptioin¢come tax
accounting that requires companies to defer thennectax effects of certain intercompany transastiwould apply
only to intercompany inventory transactions. Tlsattie exception would no longer apply to intercampsales and
transfers of other assets (e.g., intangible assétgjer the existing exception, income tax expass®ciated with intra-
entity profits in an intercompany sale or trangfeassets is eliminated from earnings. Instead,dbst is deferred and
recorded on the balance sheet (e.g., as a pregset) aintil the assets leave the consolidated g®uglarly, the entity
is prohibited from recognizing deferred tax as$etdhe increases in tax bases due to the interaognpale or transfer.
For 3M, this ASU is effective January 1, 2018, vetrly adoption permitted as of January 1, 2018 Sthndard
requires modified retrospective transition withusneilative catch-up adjustment to opening retairsgdiags in the
period of adoption. Upon adoption, a company waulide off any income tax effects that had been aefkfrom past
intercompany transactions involving non-inventosgets to opening retained earnings. In additiomraity would
record deferred tax assets with an offset to ogeretained earnings for amounts that entity haglipusly not
recognized under existing guidance but would rezegander the new guidance. While 3M could initiatiglitional
relevant transactions prior to this ASU’s adopiilate, based on deferred tax amounts related tacapfe past
intercompany transactions as of December 31, 20&6Company does not expect this ASU to have arrabimpact
on 3M'’s consolidated results of operations andrai@ condition.
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In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016tferests Held through Related Parties That Arear@ommon
Control, which modified previous guidance with respeditev a decision maker that holds an indirect inteirea
variable interest entity (VIE) through a common ttohparty determines whether it is the primary d&f@siary of the

VIE as part of the analysis of whether the VIE weboéed to be consolidated. Under the ASU, a decisiaker would
need to consider only its proportionate indireteiiast in the VIE held through a common controtypd?revious
guidance had required the decision maker to treatdmmon control party’s interest in the VIE ath#& decision maker
held the interest itself. As a result of the AStcertain cases, previous consolidation conclusioag change. For 3M,
the standard was effective January 1, 2017 witlospective application to January 1, 2016. 3M dughave
significant involvement with entities subject tonsolidation considerations impacted by VIE modetdes. As a result,
the adoption of this ASU did not have a materighact on the Company’s consolidated results of djpgrmand
financial condition.

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016Réstricted Cashwhich clarified guidance on the classification
and presentation of restricted cash in the stateofasash flows. Under the ASU, changes in regtdatash and
restricted cash equivalents would be included alwitig those of cash and cash equivalents in therstnt of cash
flows. As a result, entities would no longer prageansfers between cash/equivalents and restraask/equivalents in
the statement of cash flows. In addition, a red@imn between the balance sheet and the statemfieash flows
would be disclosed when the balance sheet incloabes than one line item for cash/equivalents astticted
cash/equivalents. For 3M, this ASU is effectiveulay 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted. Ther(pany early
adopted ASU No. 2016-18 as of January 1, 2017.tBtiee immaterial use of restricted cash and ketiticash
equivalents, no impact was reflected in the Comjsaore-2017 consolidated results of operationsfarahcial
condition presented.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017a)arifying the Definition of a Businegswhich narrows the existing
definition of a business and provides a frameworkefvaluating whether a transaction should be ateoifor as an
acquisition (or disposal) of assets or a businEss.ASU requires an entity to evaluate if substdlgtall of the fair

value of the gross assets acquired is concentiratedingle identifiable asset or a group of simideentifiable assets; if
S0, the set of transferred assets and activiti@kettively, the set) is not a business. To be ired a business, the set
would need to include an input and a substantieegss that together significantly contribute todbdity to create
outputs. The standard also narrows the definitiooutputs. The definition of a business affectsaaref accounting such
as acquisitions, disposals and goodwill. Undemién guidance, fewer acquired sets are expected tomsidered
businesses. For 3M, this ASU is effective Janua301L8 on a prospective basis with early adoptemitted. 3M

would apply this guidance to applicable transactiafter the adoption date.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 20179whplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairmektnder the new
standard, goodwill impairment would be measurethasamount by which a reporting unit’s carryingueakxceeds its
fair value, not to exceed the carrying value ofdeitl. This ASU eliminates existing guidance thatuires an entity to
determine goodwill impairment by calculating thepiiad fair value of goodwill by hypothetically ageing the fair
value of a reporting unit to all of its assets &alilities as if that reporting unit had been aicgd in a business
combination. For 3M, this ASU is effective prospeely to impairment tests beginning January 1, 20@¢h early
adoption permitted. 3M currently plans to applystASU in the fourth quarter of 2017 in conjunctigith its annual
goodwill impairment testing.

In February 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017dl&rifying the Scope of Asset Derecognition Guideaond
Accounting for Partial Sales of Nonfinancial Assdtsis ASU addresses scope-related questions rthse after the
FASB issued its revenue guidance in ASU No. 2014Re%enue from Contracts with Customédrse new standard
clarifies the accounting for derecognition of noaficial assets and defines what is considered subistance
nonfinancial asset. Nonfinancial assets largelgtecio items such as real estate, ships and ictigdlieproperty that do
not constitute a business. The new ASU impactsientierecognizing (e.g. selling) nonfinancial ss¢er in substance
nonfinancial assets), including partial intereberein, when the purchaser is not a customer. Uihéemew guidance,
the seller would apply certain recognition and measent principles of ASU No. 2014-0Revenue from Contracts
with Customerseven though the purchaser is not a customer3Motthis new standard is effective coincident wtik
Company’s January 1, 2018 adoption of ASU No. 2034The Company is currently assessing this ASkijsaict on
3M’s consolidated results of operations and finahocondition.
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In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017407proving the Presentation of Net Periodic Pensimst and Net
Periodic Postretirement Benefit Co3this ASU changes how employers that sponsor déforenefit pension and/or
other postretirement benefit plans present thgp@ebdic benefit cost in the income statement. Wilde new standard,
only the service cost component of net periodiceffienost would be included in operating expensesanly the
service cost component would be eligible for cdiziiéion into assets such as inventory. All other periodic benefit
costs components (such as interest, expected retupian assets, prior service cost amortizatiehaartuarial gain/loss
amortization) would essentially be reported outsiieperating income. For 3M, this ASU is effectienuary 1, 2018
on a retrospective basis; however, guidance ligitive capitalization to only the service cost comg is applied on
prospective basis. The components of 3M’s net daridefined benefit pension and postretirement fiecasts are
presented in Note 9. These include componentdrigtalbenefit of $32 million and $54 million forehhree months
ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, andrnfibdn and $106 million for the six months endashe 30, 2017
and 2016, respectively, that would no longer béuthed within operating expenses and instead woelckported
outside of income from operations under the newdsted.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-BBmium Amortization on Purchased Callable Dedxt 8ities
which amends the amortization period for certairchased callable debt securities held at a premlilmder existing
standards, entities generally amortize the prendaran adjustment of yield over the contractualdiféhe instrument.
The new guidance shortens the amortization peddlte earliest call date for certain callable dsuturities that have
explicit, noncontingent call features and are tédlaat a fixed price and preset date. The amendntknhot require an
accounting change for securities held at a discdtorit3M, this ASU is effective January 1, 2019t modified
retrospective transition resulting in a cumulateféect adjustment to retained earnings as of tiggnioéng of the first
reporting period in which the guidance is adopteatly adoption is permitted. 3M’s marketable segyportfolio
includes very limited instances of callable delniusities held at a premium. As a result, the Corgpoes not expect
this ASU to have a material impact on 3M’s consatidl results of operations and financial condition.

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-88ope of Modification Accountintpat clarifies when changes to the
terms or conditions of a share-based payment amasd be accounted for as a modification. The gémeodel for
accounting for modifications of share-based payragrards is to record the incremental value arifiog the changes
as additional compensation cost. Under the newdataln fewer changes to the terms of an award waajdire
accounting under this modification model. For 3NMstASU is effective January 1, 2018, with earlgptibn permitted.
Because the Company does not typically make changée terms or conditions of its issued sharetgmyment
awards, 3M does not expect this ASU to have a nadierpact on its consolidated results of operatiand financial
condition.

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-D@termining the Customer of the Operation Serviteat clarifies
how an operating entity determines the customénebperation services for transactions withingbepe of a service
concession arrangement. Service concession arramgerre typically agreements between a grantoaaraperating
entity whereby the operating entity will operate tirantor’s infrastructure (i.e. airports, roadwdygdges, and prisons)
for a specified period of time. The operating gnditso may be required to maintain the infrastrreeand provide
capital-intensive maintenance to enhance or extsrife. In such arrangements, typically the opieraservices (i.e.
operation and maintenance of a roadway) would bd by third parties (i.e. drivers). The ASU cla#ithat the grantor,
not the third party, is the customer of the operatiervices in such arrangements. For 3M, thisstandard is effective
coincident with the Company’s January 1, 2018 adapif ASU No. 2014-09. Because the Company isypitally a
party to agreements within the scope of accourfongervice concession arrangements, 3M does maatxhis ASU to
have a material impact on its consolidated regiltgerations and financial condition.

In July 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017<Bart I) Accounting for Certain Financial Instrumsnwith Down
Round Features, (Part 1) Replacement of the ImdiefiDeferral for Mandatorily Redeemable Finandiastruments of
Certain Nonpublic Entities and Certain Mandatoridgdeemable Noncontrolling Interests with a Scopmftion The
new standard applies to issuers of financial ims&mts with down-round features. A down-round prioviss a term in
an equity-linked financial instrument (i.e. a frieggling warrant contract or an equity conversi@iuse embedded
within a host debt or equity contract) that triggardownward adjustment to the instrument’s sipikkee (or conversion
price) if equity shares are issued at a lower piaceequity-linked financial instruments are issaé lower strike price)
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than the instrument’s then-current strike pricee Parpose of the feature is typically to proteetithstrument’s
counterparty from future issuances of equity shatesmore favorable price. The ASU amends (1ikhssification of
such instruments as liabilities or equity by ravisthe certain guidance relative to evaluatingéfyt must be accounted
for as derivative instruments and (2) the guidamteecognition and measurement of freestandingyeglassified
instruments. For 3M, this ASU is effective Januarg019, with early adoption permitted. BecauseGbmpany has
not issued financial instruments with down-roundatiees, 3M does not expect this ASU to have a niahierpact on its
consolidated results of operations and financiabion.

NOTE 2. Acquisitions and Divestitures
Acquisitions:

3M makes acquisitions of certain businesses frome tio time that are aligned with its strategic mteith respect to,
among other factors, growth markets and adjacemtymt lines or technologies.

There were no business combinations that closddgitive six months ended June 30, 2017.

In March 2017, 3M announced that it entered int@greement to acquire Scott Safety, which is headered in
Monroe, North Carolina, from Johnson Controls farGbillion, subject to closing and other adjustisefcott Safety is
a premier manufacturer of innovative products,lidaig self-contained breathing apparatus systeasagd flame
detection instruments, and other safety devicesctiraplement 3M’s personal safety portfolio. Thaibass had
revenues of approximately $570 million in 2016.<Ttiansaction is expected to close in the secolidh2017 and will
be reflected within the Company’s Safety and Grepbusiness, subject to customary closing conditimgulatory
approvals, and information or consultation requigets with relevant works councils.

Divestitures:

3M may divest certain businesses from time to tiragsed upon reviews of the Company'’s portfolio adeishg, among
other items, factors relative to the extent oftey& and technological alignment and optimizatibcapital

deployment, in addition to considering if sellitptbusinesses results in the greatest value andatithe Company and
for shareholders.

In January 2017, 3M sold the assets of its safetgquiption eyewear business, with annual saleppfoximately $45
million, to HOYA Vision Care. The Company recordegre-tax gain of $29 million in the first quartdr2017 as a
result of this sale, which was reported within @@mpany’s Safety and Graphics business.

In May 2017, 3M completed the related sale or fiemsf control, as applicable of its identity mapagent business to
Gemalto N.V. This business, with 2016 sales of appnately $205 million, is a leading provider iremtity
management solutions, including biometric hardveare software that enable identity verification andhentication, as
well as secure materials and document readersinkn 2017, 3M also completed the sale of its tolind automated
license/number plate recognition business, wittuahsales of approximately $40 million, to Neolofg. 3M's tolling
and automated license/number plate recognitiomiessiincludes RFID readers and tags, automaticleehi
classification systems, lane controller and hofitxaoe, and back office software and serviceslsib @rovides mobile
and fixed cameras, software, and services in autiiEense/number plate recognition. 3M receivartpeds of $833
million, or $809 million net of cash sold, and exfled a pre-tax gain of $461 million in the secqudrter of 2017 as a
result of these two divestitures, which was regbwtéthin the Company’s Safety and Graphics business

In June 2017, 3M agreed to sell its electronic nowitig business to an affiliate of Apax Partneos,$200 million, net
of cash sold and subject to closing and other aujgists. This business, with annual sales of apprataly $95 million,
is a provider of electronic monitoring technologiesrving hundreds of correctional and law enforeenagencies
around the world. This sale is expected to clogbénsecond half of 2017, subject to customaryirgpsonditions,
regulatory approvals and consultation or informatiequirements with relevant works councils. Thenpany expects a
pre-tax gain of approximately $100 million as autesf this divestiture that will be reported withihe Company’s
Safety and Graphics business.
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The aggregate operating income of these four piegeativested businesses was less than $20 miti@016. The
approximate amounts of major assets and liabil#ssociated with disposal groups classified as-fogldale as of June
30, 2017 were not significant and, as of Decemlie2816, included the following:

December 31,

(Millions) 2016

Accounts receivable $ 25
Property, plant and equipment (net) 25
Intangible assets 35
Deferred revenue (other current liabilities) 35

In addition, approximately $50 million and $270 lioih of goodwill was estimated to be attributaldedisposal groups
classified as held-for-sale as of June 30, 2017Dewember 31, 2016, respectively, based uponvelédir value. The
amounts above have not been segregated and as#iethwithin the existing corresponding line iteprs the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

Refer to Note 2 in 3M’s Current Report on Form &lted May 4, 2017 (which updated 3M’s 2016 Annugh&tt on
Form 10-K) for more information on 3M’s acquisit®and divestitures.

NOTE 3. Goodwill and Intangible Assets
There were no acquisitions that closed during itis¢ $ix month of 2017. The amounts in the “Tratistaand other”

column in the following table primarily relate thanges in foreign currency exchange rates. Thewtidzhlances by
business segment as of December 31, 2016 and 0ug837, follow:

Goodwill
December 31, 2016 Acquisition Divestiture Translation June 30, 2017

(Millions) Balance activity activity and other Balance
Industrial $ 2,536 $ — $ — $ 93 $ 2,629
Safety and Graphics 3,324 — (276) 54 3,102
Health Care 1,609 — — 41 1,650
Electronics and Energy 1,489 — — 26 1,515
Consumer 208 — — 1 209
Total Company $ 9,166 $ — $ (276) $ 215 $ 9,105

Accounting standards require that goodwill be &$te impairment annually and between annual testertain
circumstances such as a change in reporting untteedesting of recoverability of a significansasgroup within a
reporting unit. At 3M, reporting units generallyroespond to a division.

As described in Note 14, effective in the first gaaof 2017, the Company changed its business eegraporting in its
continuing effort to improve the alignment of itsdinesses around markets and customers. For adygirchanges that
resulted in reporting unit changes, the Companyiegphe relative fair value method to determine itthpact on
goodwill of the associated reporting units. Durthg first quarter of 2017, the Company completed#sessment of
any potential goodwill impairment for reporting tsimpacted by this new structure and determinadrtb impairment
existed.
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Acquired Intangible Assets

The carrying amount and accumulated amortizaticecgfiired finite-lived intangible assets, in additio the balance
of non-amortizable intangible assets, as of Jun@@07, and December 31, 2016, follow:

June 30, December 31,

(Millions) 2017 2016
Customer related intangible assets $ 1,900 $ 1,939
Patents 585 602
Other technology-based intangible assets 475 524
Definite-lived tradenames 392 420
Other amortizable intangible assets 209 211
Total gross carrying amount $ 3561 $ 3,696
Accumulated amortization — customer related (818) (797)
Accumulated amortization — patents (494 (497
Accumulated amortization — other technology based (284) (302)
Accumulated amortization — definite-lived tradename (231 (236,
Accumulated amortization — other (173) (173)
Total accumulated amortization $ (2,000 $ (2,005

Total finite-lived intangible assets — net $ 1561 $ 1,691
Non-amortizable intangible assets (primarily tradensime 640 629

Total intangible assets — net $ 2201 $ 2,320

Certain tradenames acquired by 3M are not amorteeduse they have been in existence for over &% yeave a
history of leading-market share positions, havenlse®d are intended to be continuously renewedtlf@dssociated
products of which are expected to generate cas¥sffor 3M for an indefinite period of time.

Amortization expense for acquired intangible astmtshe three and six months ended June 30, 26d 2816 follows:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Amortization expense $ 47 $ 66 $ 111 $ 132

Expected amortization expense for acquired amdnfizatangible assets recorded as of June 30, 2017:

Remainder
of After
(Millions) 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 202
Amortization expense $ 118 $ 190 $ 181 $ 172 $ 160 $ 147 $ 593

The preceding expected amortization expense istamage. Actual amounts of amortization expense difigr from
estimated amounts due to additional intangibletassguisitions, changes in foreign currency excleanages,
impairment of intangible assets, accelerated amaiitin of intangible assets and other events. 3p&eses the costs
incurred to renew or extend the term of intangddeets.
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NOTE 4. Restructuring Actions and Exit Activities

2017 Restructuring Actions:

During the second quarter of 2017, management apdrand committed to undertake certain restruajuaictions
primarily focused on portfolio and footprint optimation. These actions affected approximately 1{B8tions
worldwide and resulted in a second quarter 201tateharge of $99 million. Remaining activitietated to
restructuring are expected to be completed by rideog 2018.

Components of these restructuring charges are sugeday business segment as follows:

Second Quarter 2017

(Millions) Employee-Related
Industrial $ 39
Safety and Graphics 9
Health Care 2
Electronics and Energy 7
Consumer 36
Corporate and Unallocated 6
Total Expense $ 99

The preceding restructuring charges were recomiéukiincome statement as follows:

(Millions) Second Quarter 2017
Cost of sales 86
Selling, general and administrative expenses 5
Research, development and related expenses 8
Total $ 99

Components of these restructuring actions, follow:

Employee-
(Millions) Related
Expense incurred $ 99
Accrued restructuring action balances as of Jun@@07 $ 99

2017 Exit Activities:

In the first quarter of 2017, the Company recordetpre-tax charges of $24 million related to extivities. These
charges related to employee reductions, primanilestern Europe.
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NOTE 5. Supplemental Equity and Comprehensive Iname Information
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Three months ended June 30, 2017

3M Company Shareholders

Common Accumulated

Stock and Other

Additional Comprehensive Non-

Paid-in Retained Treasury Income controlling

(Millions) Total Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Interest
Balance at March 31, 2017 $ 11,040 $ 5198 $ 38,094 $ (25354 $ (6,949 $ 51
Net incom 1,585 1,583 2
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment (67) (67, —
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement platjgsstment 78 78 —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaissjo (51) (51, —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (40)
Dividends declared (701 (701
Stock-based compensation 55 55
Reacquired stock (475, (475,
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 180 (183) 363
Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 11644 $ 5253 $ 38,793 $ (25,466 $ (6,989 $ 53

Six months ended June 30, 2017

3M Company Shareholders

Common Accumulated

Stock and Other

Additional Comprehensive Non-

Paid-in Retained Treasury Income controlling

(Millions) Total Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Interest
Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 10343 $ 5070 $ 37,907 $ (25434 $ (7,245 $ 45
Net incom: 2,911 2,906 5
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment 225 222 3
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement platjigsstment 161 161 —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaisslo (127 (127 —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 259
Dividends declared (1,403 (1,403
Stock-based compensation 183 183
Reacquired stock (1,153 (2,153
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 504 (617) 1,121
Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 11644 $ 5253 $ 38,793 $ (25,466 $ (6,989 $ 53
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Three months ended June 30, 2016

3M Company Shareholders

Common Accumulated

Stock and Other

Additional Comprehensive Non-

Paid-in Retained  Treasury Income controlling
(Millions) Total Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Interest
Balance at March 31, 2016 $ 11,495 $ 4,925 $ 36506 $ (23,716 $ (6,261 $ 41
Net incom: 1,293 1,291 2
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment 37 37 —
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement platjgsament 67 67 —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaissjo (27) 27, —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 77
Dividends declared (672 (672
Stock-based compensation 47 47
Reacquired stock (837, (837
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 255 (210) 465
Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 11658 $ 4,972 $ 36,915 $ (24,088 $ (6,184 $ 43
Six months ended June 30, 2016
3M Company Shareholders

Common Accumulated

Stock and Other

Additional Comprehensive Non-

Paid-in Retained  Treasury Income controlling

(Millions) Total Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Interest
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 11,468 $ 4,800 $ 36,296 $ (23,308 $ (6,359 $ 39
Net incom: 2,571 2,566 5
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment 175 176 Q)
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement platjssament 136 136 —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaiss)jo (137 (237 —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 174
Dividends declared (1,344 (1,344
Stock-based compensation 172 172
Reacquired stock (2,000 (2,000
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 617 (603) 1,220
Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 11658 $ 4972 $ 36915 $ (24,088 $ (6,184 $ 43
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Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incomé_¢ss) Attributable to 3M by Component

Three months ended June 30, 2017

Total
Defined Benefit ~ Cash Flow Accumulated
Pension and Hedging Other
Cumulative Postretirement  Instruments,  Comprehensive
Translation Plans Unrealized Income
(Millions) Adjustment Adjustment Gain (Loss) (Loss)
Balance at March 31, 2017, net of tax: $ (1,719 % (5,245 $ 15 $ (6,949
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications (167 — (74) (241
Amounts reclassified out — 119 (5) 114
Total other comprehensive income (loss), before tax (167 119 (79) 227,
Tax effect 100 (42) 28 87
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (67, 78 (51) (40)
Balance at June 30, 2017, net of tax: $ (1,786) $ (5167) $ (36) $ (6,989
Six months ended June 30, 2017
Total
Defined Benefit ~ Cash Flow Accumulated
Pension and Hedging Other
Cumulative Postretirement  Instruments, = Comprehensive
Translation Plans Unrealized Income
(Millions) Adjustment Adjustment Gain (Loss) (Loss)
Balance at December 31, 2016, net of tax: $ (2008 $ (5328 % 91 $ (7,245
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications 59 — (175 (116
Amounts reclassified out — 238 (23) 215
Total other comprehensive income (loss), before tax 59 238 (198 99
Tax effect 163 (77) 71 157
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 222 161 (127, 256
Balance at June 30, 2017, net of tax: $ (1,786) $ (5167) $ (36) $ (6,989
Three months ended June 30, 2016
Total
Defined Benefit Cash Flow Accumulated
Pension and Hedging Other
Cumulative Postretirement  Instruments, = Comprehensive
Translation Plans Unrealized Income
(Millions) Adjustment Adjustment Gain (Loss) (Loss)
Balance at March 31, 2016, net of tax: $ (@540 $ (4735 % 14 $ (6,261
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications 59 — (15) 44
Amounts reclassified out — 101 (28) 73
Total other comprehensive income (loss), before tax 59 101 (43) 117
Tax effect (22) (34) 16 (40)
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 37 67 (27) 77
Balance at June 30, 2016, net of tax: $ (1503) $ (4,668 $ (13) $ (6,184
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Six months ended June 30, 2016

Total
Defined Benefit ~ Cash Flow Accumulated
Pension and Hedging Other
Cumulative Postretirement  Instruments, Comprehensive
Translation Plans Unrealized Income
(Millions) Adjustment Adjustment Gain (Loss) (Loss)
Balance at December 31, 2015, net of tax: $ (1679 $ (4,804 $ 124 $ (6,359
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications 119 — (136 a7
Amounts reclassified out — 204 (80) 124
Total other comprehensive income (loss), before tax 119 204 (216 107
Tax effect 57 (68) 79 68
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 176 136 (137 175
Balance at June 30, 2016, net of tax $ (1503) $ (4668 $ (13) $ (6,184

Income taxes are not provided for foreign transtatielating to permanent investments in internatisubsidiaries, but
tax effects within cumulative translation does it impacts from items such as net investment hedgeactions.
Reclassification adjustments are made to avoid ldozdunting in comprehensive income items thaidse recorded as
part of net income.

Reclassifications out of Accumulated Other Comprehasive Income Attributable to 3M

Amount Reclassified from

Details about Accumulated Other Accumulated Othr Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive Income Components Three months endddne 30, Six months ended Jun&0, Location on Income
(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016 Statement

Gains (losses) associated with, defined benefisipan
and postretirement plans amortization

Transition asset $ — % 1 3 — % 1 See Note 9

Prior service benefit 22 24 44 47 See Note 9

Net actuarial loss (141 (126 (282 (252 See Note 9
Total before tax (119) (101) (238) (204)

Provision for income

Tax effect 41 34 77 68 taxes
Net of tay $ 78) $ 67) $ (161) $ (136)
Cash flow hedging instruments gains (losses)

Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 5 $ 28 $ 23 % 81 Cost of sales

Interest rate swap contracts — — — (1) Interest expense
Total before tax 5 28 23 80

Provision for income

Tax effect (2) (11) (8) (29) taxes
Net of tay $ 3 $ 17 $ 15 $ 51
Total reclassifications for the period, net of tax $ (75) $ (50) $ (146) $ (85)
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NOTE 6. Income Taxes

The Company files income tax returns in the U.8efal jurisdiction, and various states and forgigisdictions. With
few exceptions, the Company is no longer subjett.& federal, state and local, or non-U.S. inctamxeexaminations
by tax authorities for years before 2005.

The IRS has completed its field examination of@menpany’s U.S. federal income tax returns for tearg 2005
through 2014. The Company protested certain IR8ipos within these tax years and entered intcatthainistrative
appeals process with the IRS. In December 201X tmpany received a statutory notice of deficiefarythe 2006
year. The Company filed a petition in Tax Courtha first quarter of 2013 relating to the 2006 yaar.

Currently, the Company is under examination bylR® for its U.S. federal income tax returns for ylears 2015, 2016,
and 2017. It is anticipated that the IRS will coatplits examination of the Company for 2015 byehe of the fourth
quarter of 2017, for 2016 by the end of the finsaider of 2018, and for 2017 by the end of the &sarter of 2019. As
of June 30, 2017, the IRS has not proposed anyfisagnt adjustments to the Company’s tax positifmrsvhich the
Company is not adequately reserved.

Payments relating to other proposed assessmesitsgaiiom the 2005 through 2017 examinations maybeanade
until a final agreement is reached between the Gamppnd the IRS on such assessments or upon adsw@ution
resulting from the administrative appeals procegadicial action. In addition to the U.S. fedeeatamination, there is
also audit activity in several U.S. state and fgmgurisdictions.

3M anticipates changes to the Company’'s uncersipositions due to the closing and resolutionuafitissues for
various audit years mentioned above and closustatiites. Currently, the Company is estimatingaesse in
unrecognized tax benefits during the next 12 moatha result of anticipated resolutions of audiiés. The total
amounts of unrecognized tax benefits that, if reced, would affect the effective tax rate as afe)30, 2017 and
December 31, 2016 are $370 million and $333 millr@spectively.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties ederlated to unrecognized tax benefits in tax egpeThe
Company recognized in the consolidated statemeintcofne on a gross basis approximately $5 milliod $1 million

of expense for the three months ended June 30, &@d dune 30, 2016, respectively, and approxim&@Imillion of
expense and $3 million of benefit for the six mangimded June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016, respgcAvdune 30,
2017 and December 31, 2016, accrued interest amltfs in the consolidated balance sheet on a&drasis were $56
million and $52 million, respectively. Includedtimese interest and penalty amounts are interegpamaties related to
tax positions for which the ultimate deductibilisyhighly certain but for which there is uncertgiabout the timing of
such deductibility. Because of the impact of defértax accounting, other than interest and pesaltie disallowance
of the shorter deductibility period would not aff¢ice annual effective tax rate but would accekethé payment of cash
to the taxing authority to an earlier period.

The effective tax rate for the second quarter df2@as 26.0 percent, compared to 29.6 percentise¢hond quarter of
2016, a decrease of 3.6 percentage points. Prifaaiyrs that decreased the Company’s effectiveatxon a
combined basis by 5.0 percentage points year-onigelded international taxes that were impactgdhanges to the
geographic mix of income before taxes and prior yeah optimization actions, tax benefits resulfiogn the held-for-
sale status of certain legal entities, and otleengt This decrease was partially offset by a lrdgpdage points year-on-
year increase to the Company’s effective tax natéch reflects a lower year-on-year excess tax fitargdated to
employee share-based payments, and remeasurerh8M&aincertain tax positions.

The effective tax rate for the first six month26fl 7 was 25.0 percent, compared to 28.2 percehgifirst six months
of 2016, a decrease of 3.2 percentage points. Brifaetors that decreased the Company'’s effectingdte included
international taxes that were impacted by changéiset geographic mix of income before taxes anor year cash
optimization actions, tax benefits resulting frdm held-for-sale status of certain legal entitiemjeasurements of 3M’s
uncertain tax positions, an increase in excesbéagfits related to employee share-based payrmardsyther items.
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The provision for income taxes is determined usiregasset and liability approach. Under this apghpedeferred
income taxes represent the expected future taxecoiesces of temporary differences between theingramounts and
tax basis of assets and liabilities. The Compangnds a valuation allowance to reduce its defeta®dissets when
uncertainty regarding their realizability exits. 868June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Coyripechvaluation
allowances of $57 million and $47 million on itSfeleed tax assets, respectively.

NOTE 7. Marketable Securities
The Company invests in asset-backed securitiesficates of deposit/time deposits, commercial papad other

securities. The following is a summary of amoustsorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet for radoleesecurities
(current and non-current).

June 30, December 31,

(Millions) 2017 2016
Corporate debt securities $ 10 $ 10
Commercial paper 37 14
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 53 197
U.S. municipal securities 3 3
Asset-backed securities:

Automobile loan related 28 31

Credit card related 9 18

Other —_ 7
Asset-backed securities total 37 56
Current marketable securities $ 140 $ 280
U.S. municipal securities $ 17 $ 17
Non-current marketable securities $ 17 $ 17
Total marketable securities $ 157 $ 297

Classification of marketable securities as curognton-current is based on the nature of the siesiand availability
for use in current operations. At June 30, 2017@Badember 31, 2016, gross unrealized gains anoéses (pre-tax)
were not material. The gross amounts of the redligens or losses were not material. Cost of sgesisold use the
first in, first out (FIFO) method. Since these netdble securities are classified as available-dte-securities, changes
in fair value will flow through other comprehensivieome, with amounts reclassified out of other poghensive
income into earnings upon sale or “other-than-tenapd impairment.

3M reviews impairments associated with its markietabcurities in accordance with the measuremedague
provided by ASC 320nvestments-Debt and Equity Securitieben determining the classification of the imp=nt as
“temporary” or “other-than-temporary”. A temporamgpairment charge results in an unrealized lossgoegcorded in
the other comprehensive income component of shitetsd equity. Such an unrealized loss does naigedhet income
attributable to 3M for the applicable accountingipe because the loss is not viewed as other-teaiporary. The
factors evaluated to differentiate between temposad other-than-temporary include the projectédréucash flows,
credit ratings actions, and assessment of thetayadlity of the underlying collateral, as well@tber factors.
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The balances at June 30, 2017 for marketable siesuby contractual maturity are shown below. Attaaturities may
differ from contractual maturities because theésswf the securities may have the right to pragdigations without
prepayment penalties.

(Millions) June 30, 2017

Due in one year or less $ 104
Due after one year through five years 49
Due after five years through ten years 4
Total marketable securities $ 157

3M has a diversified marketable securities pomfdiithin this portfolio, asset-backed securitiesmarily include
interests in automobile loans, credit cards andratisset-backed securities. 3M’s investment paiows investments
in asset-backed securities with minimum credinggiof Aa2 by Moody’s Investors Service or AA byisiard &
Poor’s or Fitch Ratings or DBRS. Asset-backed sgéeamust be rated by at least two of the afordioaad rating
agencies, one of which must be Moody’s Investorsi€e or Standard & Poor’s. At June 30, 2017, sflei-backed
security investments were in compliance with thafiqy. Approximately 76.8 percent of all asset-bedlsecurity
investments were rated AAA or A-1+ by Standard &Poand/or Aaa or P-1 by Moody’s Investors Sendoe/or
AAA or F1+ by Fitch Ratings. Interest rate risk amrddit risk related to the underlying collaterayrimpact the value
of investments in asset-backed securities, whdtofa such as general conditions in the overatlitrearket and the
nature of the underlying collateral may affect liljaidity of investments in asset-backed securit&¥d does not
currently expect risk related to its holding inetslsacked securities to materially impact its ficiahcondition or
liquidity.

NOTE 8. Long-Term Debt and Short-Term Borrowings

In June 2017, 3M repaid $650 million aggregategipal amount of fixed rate medium-term notes.
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NOTE 9. Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

Net periodic benefit cost is recorded in cost ¢désaselling, general and administrative expereed,research,
development and related expenses. Components pEnetlic benefit cost and other supplemental mfion for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2017 and 20é/f

Benefit Plan Information

Three months ended June 30,
Qualified and Non-qualified

Pension Benefits Postretirement
United States International Benefits
(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Net periodic benefit cost (benefit)
Service cost $ 67 $ 65 $34 $34 $12 $ 14
Interest cost 142 144 37 43 20 19
Expected return on plan assets (259 (261, (70) (78 (21 (22
Amortization of transition (asset) obligation — — — Q) — —
Amortization of prior service cost (benefit) (6) 6) 3) 4 @3 @49
Amortization of net actuarial (gain) loss 97 88 30 23 14 15
Settlements, curtailments, special termination benand other — — — — — —
Net periodic benefit cost (benefit) after settletsenurtailments, speci
termination benefits and other $ 41 $ 30 $28 $17 $ 12 $ 12

Six months ended June 30,
Qualified and Non-qualified

Pension Benefits Postretirement
United States International Benefits
(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Net periodic benefit cost (benefit)
Service cost $ 134 $ 130 $ 67 $ 67 $ 25 $ 27
Interest cost 284 287 74 86 39 39
Expected return on plan assets (518 (521, (139 (156, (42) (45)
Amortization of transition (asset) obligation — — — Q) — —
Amortization of prior service cost (benefit) 12 12 6) 7) (26) (28)
Amortization of net actuarial (gain) loss 194 176 60 45 28 31
Settlements, curtailments, special termination benand other — — — — — —
Net periodic benefit cost (benefit) after settletsenurtailments, speci
termination benefits and other $ 82 $ 60 $ 56 $ 34 $24 %24

For the six months ended June 30, 2017, contribsitiotaling $277 million were made to the Compay'S. and
international pension plans and $2 million to ibstpetirement plans. For total year 2017, the Cowpgpects to
contribute approximately $300 million to $500 nahi of cash to its global defined benefit pensiod postretirement
plans. The Company does not have a required minicash pension contribution obligation for its Up&ans in 2017.
Future contributions will depend on market condisipinterest rates and other factors. 3M’s annsurement date
for pension and postretirement assets and liaslis December 31 each year, which is also theudat for the related

annual measurement assumptions.

3M was informed in 2009, that the general partoéi/G Trading Company, in which 3M’s benefit plamsd limited
partnership interests, are the subject of a crihimeestigation as well as civil proceedings by 8#C and CFTC
(Commodity Futures Trading Commission). In Marci 20over the objections of 3M and six other limiettners of
WG Trading Company, the district court judge ruledavor of the court appointed receiver’s propodedribution plan
(and in April 2013, the United States Court of Aglisefor the Second Circuit affirmed the districtd®s ruling). The
benefit plan trustee holdings of WG Trading Compantgrests were adjusted to reflect the decreas@mated fair
market value, inclusive of estimated insurance @eds, as of the annual measurement dates. Irrshediarter of 2014,
3M and certain 3M benefit plans filed a lawsuittie U.S. District Court for the District of Minngscagainst five
insurers seeking insurance coverage for the WGiAgadompany claim. In September 2015, the cougdih favor of
the defendant insurance companies on a motiorufansary judgment and dismissed the lawsuit. In Cat@915, 3M
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and the 3M benefit plans filed a notice of appedahe United States Court of Appeals for the EigBittcuit. In May
2017, the appellate court affirmed the lower caudigcision. The decision will reduce U.S. pensiath postretirement
plan assets by $73 million at the December 31, 20@dsurement date and will not have a materialradweffect on the
consolidated financial position of the Company.

As part of a diversified investment strategy, th&pension and postretirement benefit plans magesiments in the
natural gas fired power generation industry duthrgperiod 2011 through 2013. In April 2017, on¢hefse entities,
Panda Temple Power, LLC, filed for Chapter 11 baptay protection in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court foe District of
Delaware. This investment represented less thampereent of the fair value of the U.S. pension postretirement
plans’ assets as of their 2016 measurement date.

NOTE 10. Derivatives

The Company uses interest rate swaps, currencysswammodity price swaps, and forward and optiartre@ts to
manage risks generally associated with foreign &amgh rate, interest rate and commodity price fatibns. The
information that follows explains the various typdslerivatives and financial instruments used bl Bow and why
3M uses such instruments, how such instrumentaareunted for, and how such instruments impact Jiiancial
position and performance.

Additional information with respect to the impaots other comprehensive income of nonderivative meggnd
derivative instruments is included in Note 5. Adxtial information with respect to the fair valuedarivative
instruments is included in Note 11. Referencesfarmation regarding derivatives and/or hedgingrimaents
associated with the Company’s long-term debt &e adade in Note 10 in 3M’s Current Report on Fori @ated May
4, 2017 (which updated 3M’s 2016 Annual Report omfr 10-K).

Types of Derivatives/Hedging Instruments and Inclugn Income/Other Comprehensive Income

Cash Flow Hedges:

For derivative instruments that are designatedopradify as cash flow hedges, the effective portbthe gain or loss
on the derivative is reported as a component afratbmprehensive income and reclassified into agiin the same
period during which the hedged transaction affearsings. Gains and losses on the derivative reptieg either hedge
ineffectiveness or hedge components excluded frmnassessment of effectiveness are recognizedrnent@arnings.

Cash Flow Hedging - Foreign Currency Forward andtiop Contracts:The Company enters into foreign exchange
forward and option contracts to hedge against tleeteof exchange rate fluctuations on cash flo@saiminated in
foreign currencies. These transactions are desidras cash flow hedges. The settlement or extensithese
derivatives will result in reclassifications (fraaecumulated other comprehensive income) to earminte period
during which the hedged transactions affect eamiflyl may dedesignate these cash flow hedge ne#tips in
advance of the occurrence of the forecasted tréinsad he portion of gains or losses on the deneainstrument
previously accumulated in other comprehensive ireéon dedesignated hedges remains in accumulated ot
comprehensive income until the forecasted trans@acttcurs or is no longer probable of occurringai@fes in the value
of derivative instruments after dedesignation amorded in earnings and are included in the DevieatNot Designated
as Hedging Instruments section below. The maximemgth of time over which 3M hedges its exposur¢o
variability in future cash flows of the forecasteansactions is 36 months.

Cash Flow Hedging — Interest Rate Contradtee Company may use forward starting interestcatgracts to hedge
exposure to variability in cash flows from interpalyments on forecasted debt issuances. The aat@tizof gains and
losses on forward starting interest rate swapscisided in the tables below as part of the gais#jlaecognized in
income on the effective portion of derivatives assult of reclassification from accumulated otbemprehensive
income. Additional information regarding previougdgued and terminated interest rate contract®edound in Note
12 in 3M’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May@}17 (which updated 3M’s 2016 Annual Report on F&a¥K).
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In the first six months of 2016, the Company erdaénto forward starting interest rate swaps thatiex in December
2016 with an aggregate notional amount of $300ionilhs a hedge against interest rate volatilitpeiased with a
forecasted issuance of fixed rate debt. Upon ismiahmedium-term notes in September 2016, 3M teated these
interest rate swaps. The termination resulted imamaterial loss within accumulated other comprehenincome that
will be amortized over the respective lives of tledbt.

In the fourth quarter of 2016, the Company entémnémiforward starting interest rate swaps with &amal amount of
$200 million as a hedge against interest rate Nityadssociated with a forecasted issuance ofdfirete debt. In the first
quarter of 2017, the Company entered into forwéadiag interest rate swaps with a notional amair#200 million as
a hedge against interest rate volatility associati¢hl a forecasted issuance of fixed rate debthénsecond quarter of
2017, the Company entered into forward startingragt rate swaps with a notional amount of $200anibs a hedge
against interest rate volatility associated wifor@casted issuance of fixed rate debt.

As of June 30, 2017, the Company had a balanc8®f#llion associated with the after-tax net unzal loss
associated with cash flow hedging instruments @@@in accumulated other comprehensive income.imbigdes a
remaining balance of $5 million (after tax losdated to the forward starting interest rate swagsch will be
amortized over the respective lives of the debsdBleon exchange rates as of June 30, 2017, 3M tsxpeeclassify
approximately $1 million of the after-tax net urireed foreign exchange cash flow hedging losse=atmings over the
remainder of 2017, approximately $18 million of #féer-tax net unrealized foreign exchange cash fedging losses
to earnings in 2018, and approximately $17 milldénthe after-tax net unrealized foreign exchangehdbow hedging
losses to earnings after 2018 (with the impactedffy earnings/losses from underlying hedged iteBid)expects to
reclassify approximately $16 million of the aftextnet unrealized foreign exchange cash flow hegllpisses to
earnings over the next 12 months.

The location in the consolidated statements ofriime@nd comprehensive income and amounts of gathbases
related to derivative instruments designated als flaw hedges are provided in the following table.

Pretax Gain (Loss) Recognized in
Income on Effective Portion of
Derivative as a Result of
Reclassification from

Accumulated Other

Ineffective Portim of Gain

(Loss) on Derivative ah
Amount Exclded from
Effectiveness Testing

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Other
Comprehensive
Income on Effective

Three months ended June 30, 2017

Portion of Deritiae

Comprehensive Income

Recognized in Income

(Millions) Amount Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ (72) Cost of sales $ 5 Cost of sales $
Interest rate swap contracts (2) Interest expense — Interest expense
Total $ (74) $ 5 $
Six months ended June 30, 2017
(Millions) Amount Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ (172, Costofsales $ 23 Costofsales $
Interest rate swap contracts (3) Interest expense — Interest expense
Total $ 175, $ 23 $
Three months ended June 30, 2016
(Millions) Amount Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ (11) Costofsales $ 28 Costofsales $
Interest rate swap contracts (4) Interest expense — Interest expense
Total $ 15) $ 28 $
Six months ended June 30, 2016
(Millions) Amount Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ (131, Costofsales $ 81 Costofsales $
Interest rate swap contracts (5) Interest expense (1) Interest expense
Total $ (136, $ 80 $
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Fair Value Hedges:

For derivative instruments that are designatedopradify as fair value hedges, the gain or losshenderivatives as well
as the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged ittribatable to the hedged risk are recognized mesu earnings.

Fair Value Hedging - Interest Rate Swajpéte Company manages interest expense using afriked and floating

rate debt. To help manage borrowing costs, the @asnmay enter into interest rate swaps. Under tags@gements,
the Company agrees to exchange, at specified al&grhe difference between fixed and floatingrese amounts
calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notjpmatipal amount. The mark-to-market of these Yaiue hedges is
recorded as gains or losses in interest expenses arfitdet by the gain or loss of the underlyingptdastrument, which
also is recorded in interest expense. These faiev@edges are highly effective and, thus, thermisnpact on earnings
due to hedge ineffectiveness. Additional informatiegarding designated interest rate swaps caourglfin Note 12 in
3M’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 4, 20d/hi¢h updated 3M’s 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K)

The location in the consolidated statements ofime@nd amounts of gains and losses related toadiegvinstruments
designated as fair value hedges and similar infdomaelative to the hedged items are as follows:

Gain (Loss) on Derivative Gain (Loss) on Hedged Item
Three months ended June 30, 2017 Recognized in tme Recognized in Income
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ 1 Interest expens $ (1)
Total $ 1 $ (1)
Six months ended June 30, 2017
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ (4) Interest expens $ 4
Total $ (4) $ 4
Three months ended June 30, 2016
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ 5 Interestexpens $ 5)
Total $ 5 $ (5)
Six months ended June 30, 2016
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ 34 Interest expens $ (34
Total $ 34 $ (34)

Net Investment Hedges:

The Company may use non-derivative (foreign culyatenominated debt) and derivative (foreign exclediogward
contracts) instruments to hedge portions of the @amyg’'s investment in foreign subsidiaries and marfageign
exchange risk. For instruments that are desigremtddjualify as hedges of net investments in forejgerations and
that meet the effectiveness requirements, theaies@r losses attributable to changes in spotamgdhrates are
recorded in cumulative translation within other gwehensive income. The remainder of the changalirevof such
instruments is recorded in earnings. Recognitiomaimings of amounts previously recorded in cunugdtanslation is
limited to circumstances such as complete or snbatly complete liquidation of the net investmémthe hedged
foreign operation. To the extent foreign currenepaminated debt is not designated in or is dedatggfrom a net
investment hedge relationship, changes in valubaifportion of foreign currency denominated dal# tb exchange
rate changes are recorded in earnings throughriegirity date.

3M'’s use of foreign exchange forward contracts giesied in hedges of the Company’s net investmefuraign
subsidiaries can vary by time period depending bamwforeign currency denominated debt balancegulatsd in such
relationships are dedesignated, matured, or aré/ngesued and designated. Additionally, variati@m©ccur in
connection with the extent of the Company’s desfoedign exchange risk coverage.
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At June 30, 2017, the total notional amount of igmeexchange forward contracts designated in netstment hedges
was approximately 250 million Euros and approxinya2@8 billion South Korean Won, along with a piijmel amount
of long-term debt instruments designated in ne¢stment hedges totaling 4.4 billion Euros. The migtdates of these
derivative and nonderivative instruments designatetkt investment hedges range from 2017 to 2031.

The location in the consolidated statements ofime@nd comprehensive income and amounts of gathkases
related to derivative and nonderivative instrumelgsignated as net investment hedges are as folldwse were no
reclassifications of the effective portion of netéstment hedges out of accumulated other compseleeimcome into
income for the periods presented in the table below

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized as
Cumulative Translation
within Other
Comprehensive Income
on Effective Portion of

Ineffective Portion of Gain (Loss) ;
Instrument and Amount Excluded
from Effectiveness Testing

Three months ended June 30, 2017 Instrument Reauiged in Income

(Millions) Amount Location Amount

Foreign currency denominated debt $ (270 N/A $ —

Foreign currency forward contracts (7) Cost of sales 3
Total $ (277 $ 3

Six months ended June 30, 2017

(Millions) Amount Location Amount

Foreign currency denominated debt $ (391, N/A $ —

Foreign currency forward contracts (27) Cost of sales 5
Total $ (418 $ 5

Three months ended June 30, 2016

(Millions) Amount Location Amount

Foreign currency denominated debt $ 94 N/A $ =

Foreign currency forward contracts 16Cost of sales 3
Total $ 110 $ 3

Six months ended June 30, 2016

(Millions) Amount Location Amount

Foreign currency denominated debt $ (50) N/A $ =

Foreign currency forward contracts (27) Costadés 1
Total $ 77 $ 1

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments:

3M enters into foreign exchange forward contralatg &re not designated in hedge relationshipsfsefin part, the
impacts of certain intercompany transactions arfdrtber mitigate short-term currency impacts. didiéion, the
Company enters into commodity price swaps to affsgbart, fluctuations in costs associated with tise of certain
precious metals. These derivative instruments arel@signated in hedging relationships; thereffaie value gains and
losses on these contracts are recorded in earfihgsCompany does not hold or issue derivativenfira instruments

for trading purposes.

The Company revised amounts previously presentdteitable below for the gain (loss) on derivativasognized in
income for the three and six months ended Jun2(BIE relative to foreign currency forward contradisis immaterial
correction increased the previously presented atwitthe gain recognized in income in the disclesiable below by
$40 million for the three months ended June 30624xid decreased the previously presented amotin¢ @fain
recognized in income by $18 million for the six ntemended June 30, 2016. This revision had no itrpathe
Company’s consolidated results of operations, fifercondition, or cash flows.
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The location in the consolidated statements ofriime@nd amounts of gains and losses related toafi@svinstruments
not designated as hedging instruments are as fellow

Three months ended June 30, 2017 Six months ended June 30, 2017
Gain (Loss) on Derivative Recognized in Gain (Loss) on Derivative Recognized in
Income Income
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts Cost of sales $ 6 Cost of sales $ 5
Foreign currency forward contracts Interest espe (138) Interest expense (96)
Total $ (132, $ 91
Three months ended June 30, 2016 Six months ended June 30, 2016
Gain (Loss) on Derivative Recognized in Gain (Loss) on Derivative Recognized in
Income Income
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts Cost of sales $ (1) Cost of sales $ (6)
Foreign currency forward contracts Interest espe 89 Interest expense 24
Total $ 88 $ 18
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Location and Fair Value Amount of Derivative Instrents

The following tables summarize the fair value of’8Merivative instruments, excluding nonderivatinstruments used
as hedging instruments, and their location in thesolidated balance sheet. Notional amounts betewpresented at
period end foreign exchange rates, except inteadstswaps, which are presented using the coniregption date’s
foreign exchange rate. Additional information wid#spect to the fair value of derivative instrumastsicluded in Note
11.

Gross Assets Liabilities
June 30, 2017 Notional Fair Fair
(Millions) Amount Location Value Amount Location Value Amount
Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contrac  $ 2,208 Other current asset:  $ 11  Other current liabilitie  $ 42
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 1,488 Other assets 32  Other liabilities 27
Interest rate swap contracts 590 Other current asset: 2 Other current liabilitie 4
Interest rate swap contracts 1,753 Other assets 22  Other liabilities 2
Total derivatives designated as hedgir
instruments $ 67 $ 75
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contrac $ 5,914 Other current asset: $ 23  Other current liabilitie  $ 118
Total derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments $ 23 $ 118
Total derivative instruments $ 90 $ 193
Gross Assets Liabilities
December 31, 2016 Notional Fair Fair
(Millions) Amount Location Value Amount Location Value Amount
Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contrac  $ 2,160 Other current asset: $ 107 Other current liabilitie  $ 9
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 1,45%ther assets 86 Other liabilities 3
Interest rate swap contracts 1,953 Other assets 25 Other current liabilitie 1
Total derivatives designated as hedgir
instruments $ 218 $ 13
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 5,655 Other current assets $ 41  Other current liabilities $ 82
Total derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments $ 41 $ 82
Total derivative instruments $ 259 $ 95

Credit Risk and Offsetting of Assets and Liab#itié Derivative Instruments

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the esEnbnperformance by counterparties in interest sataps, currency
swaps, commodity price swaps, and forward and pmtamtracts. However, the Company’s risk is limitedhe fair
value of the instruments. The Company actively nowaiits exposure to credit risk through the useredlit approvals
and credit limits, and by selecting major interaaél banks and financial institutions as countdipsr3M enters into
master netting arrangements with counterpartieqwgassible to mitigate credit risk in derivativartsactions. A master
netting arrangement may allow each counterparhetcettle amounts owed between a 3M entity anddhaterparty
as a result of multiple, separate derivative tratisas. As of June 30, 2017, 3M has Internationedy$ and Derivatives
Association (ISDA) agreements with 16 applicablaksaand financial institutions which contain negtiprovisions. In
addition to a master agreement with 3M supported pyimary counterparty’s parent guarantee, 3M h#soassociated
credit support agreements in place with 15 of itlmary derivative counterparties which, among othérgs, provide
the circumstances under which either party is reguio post eligible collateral (when the markdteeof transactions
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covered by these agreements exceeds specifiedhdidesor if a counterparty’s credit rating has bdewngraded to a
predetermined rating). The Company does not amtieiponperformance by any of these counterparties.

3M has elected to present the fair value of deirreadissets and liabilities within the Company’s saidated balance
sheet on a gross basis even when derivative triimsa@re subject to master netting arrangementsray otherwise
qualify for net presentation. However, the follogitables provide information as if the Company &ksttted to offset
the asset and liability balances of derivativerunsients, netted in accordance with various critieriiie event of default
or termination as stipulated by the terms of ngtdrrangements with each of the counterpartiese&on counterparty,
if netted, the Company would offset the asset &tility balances of all derivatives at the endla# reporting period
based on the 3M entity that is a party to the tatisns. Derivatives not subject to master nettiggeements are not
eligible for net presentation. As of the applicatidees presented below, no collateral had beelvester pledged
related to these derivative instruments.

Offsetting of Financial Assets under Master NettingAgreements with Derivative Counterparties

Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject

Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements
Derivative Assets Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting
June 30, 2017 Consolidated Recognized Cash Cudial Net Amount of
(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Liabilities Received Derivative Assets
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 0 $ 35 $ — 3 55
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements — —
Total $ 90 $ 55
December 31, 2016
(Millions)
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 259 $ 39 $ — 3 220
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements — —
Total $ 259 $ 220

Offsetting of Financial Liabilities under Master Netting Agreements with Derivative Counterparties

Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject

Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements
Derivative Liabilities Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting
June 30, 2017 Consolidated Recognized Cash Cudial Net Amount of
(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Assets Pledd Derivative Liabilities
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 189 $ 35 $ — 3 154
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements 4 4
Total $ 193 $ 158
December 31, 2016
(Millions)
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 93 $ 39 $ — 3 54
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements 2 2
Total $ 95 $ 56
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Currency Effects

3M estimates that year-on-year foreign currencysaations effects, including hedging impacts, desed pre-tax
income by approximately $28 million and $65 millifar the three and six months ended June 30, 2@%pectively.
These estimates include transaction gains anddpseauding derivative instruments designed taioedforeign
currency exchange rate risks and any impacts frgapping Venezuelan bolivars into U.S. dollars.

NOTE 11. Fair Value Measurements

3M follows ASC 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosyredth respect to assets and liabilities that aeasored
at fair value on a recurring basis and nonrecurpiagjs. Under the standard, fair value is defireetha exit price, or the
amount that would be received to sell an asseair o transfer a liability in an orderly transactibetween market
participants as of the measurement date. The sthadko establishes a hierarchy for inputs useddasuring fair value
that maximizes the use of observable inputs andhmes the use of unobservable inputs by requitliag the most
observable inputs be used when available. Obserwapiits are inputs market participants would nseiluing the
asset or liability developed based on market dbtaiwed from sources independent of the Compangbbkrvable
inputs are inputs that reflect the Company’s asdiomp about the factors market participants wowld i valuing the
asset or liability developed based upon the béstrimation available in the circumstances. The mmais broken
down into three levels. Level 1 inputs are quotedgs (unadjusted) in active markets for identasdets or liabilities.
Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similasets or liabilities in active markets, quoted psitar identical or
similar assets or liabilities in markets that ao¢ active, and inputs (other than quoted pricea &ine observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectlyevel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for thetamskability.
Categorization within the valuation hierarchy iséd upon the lowest level of input that is sigmifitto the fair value
measurement.

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Faitiéaon a Recurring Basis:

For 3M, assets and liabilities that are measurddiavalue on a recurring basis primarily relaieavailable-for-sale
marketable securities, available-for-sale investséncluded as part of investments in the Constdid Balance Sheet)
and certain derivative instruments. Derivativesude cash flow hedges, interest rate swaps anshviestment hedges.
The information in the following paragraphs andeatprimarily addresses matters relative to themm€ial assets and
liabilities. Separately, there were no material f@lue measurements with respect to nonfinansises or liabilities
that are recognized or disclosed at fair valudnén@ompany’s financial statements on a recurrirgistfar the three and
six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016.

3M uses various valuation techniques, which anmgrily based upon the market and income approaghtsrespect
to financial assets and liabilities. Following isl@scription of the valuation methodologies usedHe respective
financial assets and liabilities measured at failue.

Available-for-sale marketable securities — excegtain U.S. municipal securities:

Marketable securities, except certain U.S. munl@paurities, are valued utilizing multiple sourcAsveighted average
market price is used for these securities. Markieep are obtained for these securities from aetsnf industry
standard data providers, security master files fiamge financial institutions, and other third-gasburces. These
multiple prices are used as inputs into a distithniturve-based algorithm to determine the daily\falue to be used.
3M classifies U.S. treasury securities as leveltiile all other marketable securities (excludinga&i@ U.S. municipal
securities) are classified as level 2. Marketablausties are discussed further in Note 7.

Available-for-sale marketable securities — certdis. municipal securities only:
In both 2016 and 2014, 3M obtained municipal bdnadis the City of Nevada, Missouri, which represght’s only

U.S. municipal securities holding as of June 3@,728nd December 31, 2016. Due to the nature ofk#uarity, the
valuation method utilized will include the financrealth of the City of Nevada, any recent munitlpand issuances by
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Nevada, and macroeconomic considerations relattktdirection of interest rates and the healtthefoverall
municipal bond market, and as such has been dbsi$ a level 3 security.

Available-for-sale investments:

Investments include equity securities that areetiaid an active market. Closing stock prices aaglifg available from
active markets and are used as being representditiae value. 3M classifies these securitieseagl 1.

Derivative instruments:

The Company’s derivative assets and liabilitieimithe scope of ASC 81Berivatives and Hedgingre required to
be recorded at fair value. The Company’s derivatihat are recorded at fair value include foreigmency forward and
option contracts, commaodity price swaps, interatd swaps, and net investment hedges where théngadgtrument is
recorded at fair value. Net investment hedgesubatforeign currency denominated debt to hedge 3itsnvestment
are not impacted by the fair value measurementatanunder ASC 820, as the debt used as the heitgitngment is
marked to a value with respect to changes in speign currency exchange rates and not with regpesther factors
that may impact fair value.

3M has determined that foreign currency forwardsnmodity price swaps, currency swaps, foreign euyeptions,
interest rate swaps and cross-currency swaps &itomsidered level 2 measurements. 3M uses inghes than quoted
prices that are observable for the asset. Thesgsimpclude foreign currency exchange rates, \itlasi, and interest
rates. Derivative positions are primarily valuethgsstandard calculations/models that use as baiis readily
observable market parameters. Industry standaedptaviders are 3M’s primary source for forward apdt rate
information for both interest rates and currendgsawith resulting valuations periodically validdtthrough third-party
or counterparty quotes and a net present valuarstod cash flows model.

The following tables provide information by levekfassets and liabilities that are measured avédire on a recurring
basis.

Fair Value Measurements

Description Fair Value at Using Inputs Considered as
(Millions) June 30, 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:

Available-for-sale:
Marketable securities:

Corporate debt securities $ 10 $ — $ 10 $ =
Commercial paper 37 — 37 —
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 53 — 53 —
Asset-backed securities:
Automobile loan related 28 — 28 —
Credit card related 9 — 9 —
U.S. municipal securities 20 — — 20
Derivative instruments — assets:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 66 — 66 —
Interest rate swap contracts 24 — 24 —
Liabilities:
Derivative instruments — liabilities:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 187 — 187 —
Interest rate swap contracts 6 — 6 —
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Fair Value Measurements

Description Fair Value at Using Inputs Considered as
(Millions) December3l, 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:

Available-for-sale:
Marketable securities:

Corporate debt securities $ 10 $ — 3 10 $ —
Commercial paper 14 — 14 —
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 197 — 197 —
Asset-backed securities:
Automobile loan related 31 — 31 —
Credit card related 18 — 18 —
Other 7 — 7 —
U.S. municipal securities 20 — — 20
Derivative instruments — assets:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 234 — 234 —
Interest rate swap contracts 25 — 25 —
Liabilities:
Derivative instruments — liabilities:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 94 — 94 —
Interest rate swap contracts 1 — 1 —

The following table provides a reconciliation oétheginning and ending balances of items measurfait #alue on a
recurring basis in the table above that used saarif unobservable inputs (Level 3).

Three months ended Six months ended
Marketable securities — certain U.S. municipal seatties only June 30, June 30,
(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Beginning balance $ 20 $ 18 $ 20 $ 12

Total gains or losses:
Included in earnings — — — —
Included in other comprehensive income — — — —
Purchases and issuances — — — 6
Sales and settlements — — — —
Transfers in and/or out of level 3 — — — —
Ending balance $ 20 $ 18 $ 20 $ 18

Change in unrealized gains or losses for the péniciddded
in earnings for securities held at the end of gporting
period — — — —

In addition, the plan assets of 3M’s pension arstretirement benefit plans are measured at fairevah a recurring
basis (at least annually). Refer to Note 11 in 3@Isrent Report on Form 8-K dated May 4, 2017 (Wwhipdated 3M’s
2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K).

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Faifdéaon a Nonrecurring Basis:

Disclosures are required for certain assets abhditias that are measured at fair value, but amgnized and disclosed
at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in periodsssquent to initial recognition. For 3M, such meaments of fair
value relate primarily to long-lived asset impaintse During the six months ended June 30, 201 7Ctmpany
recognized approximately $40 million in long-livadset impairments related to its Electronics aref@@nbusiness
segment, with the complete carrying amount of sagdets written off and included in operating incaesults. There
were no material long-lived asset impairments lierthree months ended June 30, 2017 and the thdes>amonths
ended June 30, 2016.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The Company’s financial instruments include cash @ash equivalents, marketable securities, accoaogsvable,
certain investments, accounts payable, borrowiagd,derivative contracts. The fair values of cash@ash
equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payabteshort-term borrowings and current portioroofg-term debt
approximated carrying values because of the skamt-hature of these instruments. Available-for-sadeketable
securities and investments, in addition to certigirivative instruments, are recorded at fair vakefdicated in the
preceding disclosures. For its long-term debt,Gbenpany utilized third-party quotes to estimate ¥ailues (classified
as level 2). Information with respect to the cargyamounts and estimated fair values of these diaaimstruments
follow:

June 30, 2017 December 31, 2016
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(Millions) Value Value Value Value
Long-term debt, excluding current portion $ 11088 $ 11567 $ 10,678 $ 11,168

The fair values reflected above consider the terhtke related debt absent the impacts of derieétivdging activity.
The carrying amount of long-term debt referenceavalis impacted by certain fixed-to-floating intereate swaps that
are designated as fair value hedges and by thgrdg&in of fixed rate Eurobond securities issuedhiegyCompany as
hedging instruments of the Company’s net investrireits European subsidiaries. Many of 3M’s fixeder bonds were
trading at a premium at June 30, 2017 and DeceBhe2016 due to the low interest rates and tightgof 3M’s credit
spreads.

NOTE 12. Commitments and Contingencies
Legal Proceedings:

The Company and some of its subsidiaries are imegbim numerous claims and lawsuits, principallyhi@ United
States, and regulatory proceedings worldwide. Thedede various products liability (involving procts that the
Company now or formerly manufactured and soldgliettual property, and commercial claims and latgsincluding
those brought under the antitrust laws, and enwiertal proceedings. Unless otherwise stated, timep@ay is
vigorously defending all such litigation. Additidriaformation about the Company’s process for disafe and
recording of liabilities and insurance receivabigated to legal proceedings can be found in NétsCbmmitments
and Contingencies” in the Company’s Annual ReparForm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016dated
by the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K datexy/ M, 2017.

The following sections first describe the signifitéegal proceedings in which the Company is inedlvand then
describe the liabilities and associated insuraaceivables the Company has accrued relating sigtsficant legal
proceedings.

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Litigation

As of June 30, 2017, the Company is a named defikndéh multiple co-defendants, in numerous lawssin various
courts that purport to represent approximately @ jBdlividual claimants, compared to approximateB6® individual
claimants with actions pending at December 31, 2016

The vast majority of the lawsuits and claims reedlby and currently pending against the Compamgallse of some
of the Company’s mask and respirator products arl damages from the Company and other defendarasiéged
personal injury from workplace exposures to aslsesttica, coal mine dust, or other occupationatsifiound in
products manufactured by other defendants or gyarahe workplace. A minority of the lawsuits éclaims resolved
by and currently pending against the Company gdélgexitege personal injury from occupational exp@sto asbestos
from products previously manufactured by the Comparhich are often unspecified, as well as produozasiufactured
by other defendants, or occasionally at Compangnses.
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The Company’s current volume of new and pendingemais substantially lower than it experiencethatpeak of
filings in 2003. The Company expects that filingctdims by unimpaired claimants in the future waintinue to be at
much lower levels than in the past. Accordingly tlumber of claims alleging more serious injuriesluding
mesothelioma and other malignancies, will repreaagrieater percentage of total claims than in #s. I he Company
has prevailed in all eleven cases taken to trialuding nine of the ten cases tried to verdictigsials occurred in
1999, 2000, 2001, 2003, 2004, 2007, 2015, and 2H®:ribed below), and an appellate reversal in 2008 2001
jury verdict adverse to the Company. The remaiwimsge, tried in 2009, was dismissed by the coufteatlose of
plaintiff's evidence, based on the court’s legatifing that the plaintiff had not presented suffitievidence to support a
jury verdict. In August 2016, 3M received a unanimalefense verdict from a jury in state court imkieky, in 3M's
first respirator trial involving coal mine dust. & lestate of the plaintiff alleged that the 3M 8¥aspirator is defective
and caused his death because it did not protectrbimharmful coal mine dust. The jury rejectedimtif’s claim and
returned a verdict finding no liability against 3Whe verdict is final as the plaintiff did not fil appeal.

The Company has demonstrated in these past toaépdings that its respiratory protection prodactseffective as
claimed when used in the intended manner and imteaded circumstances. Consequently the Compelisnves that
claimants are unable to establish that their médmaditions, even if significant, are attributabbethe Company’'s
respiratory protection products. Nonetheless the@amy'’s litigation experience indicates that clamhpersons with
malignant conditions are costlier to resolve tHandlaims of unimpaired persons, and it therefeleebes the average
cost of resolving pending and future claims on ragb@m basis will continue to be higher than ipexienced in prior
periods when the vast majority of claims were desdoy medically unimpaired claimants.

As previously reported, the State of West Virgitlapugh its Attorney General, filed a complain®03 against the
Company and two other manufacturers of respirgtooyection products in the Circuit Court of Lincddounty, West
Virginia, and amended its complaint in 2005. Theeaded complaint seeks substantial, but unspecifi@uipensatory
damages primarily for reimbursement of the codegally incurred by the State for worker’'s compéinsaand
healthcare benefits provided to all workers witkggational pneumoconiosis and unspecified pundemmages. The
case was inactive from the fourth quarter of 200 late 2013, other than a case management camderin

March 2011. In November 2013, the State filed aiomato bifurcate the lawsuit into separate liapikind damages
proceedings. At the hearing on the motion, the todeclined to bifurcate the lawsuit. No liabilitpdbeen recorded for
this matter because the Company believes thatitialsi not probable and estimable at this timeatidition, the
Company is not able to estimate a possible losarage of loss given the lack of any meaningful avgey responses by
the State of West Virginia, the otherwise minimetiaty in this case and the fact that the complaisserts claims
against two other manufacturers where a defendanéiee of liability may turn on the law of jointcheeveral liability
and by the amount of fault, if any, a jury mighbahte to each defendant if the case is ultimatéedg.

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Liabilities and InsuraReeeivables:

The Company annually conducts a comprehensive fegew of its respirator mask/asbestos liabilitiresonnection
with finalizing and reporting its annual resultsogferations, unless significant changes in tremadew developments
warrant an earlier review. The Company reviewsmeaead historical claims data, including withoumitiation, (i) the
number of pending claims filed against the Comp#iijythe nature and mix of those claims (i.e., fineportion of
claims asserting usage of the Company’s mask pireger products and alleging exposure to eaclsbéstos, silica,
coal or other occupational dusts, and claims plepdse of asbestos-containing products allegedhufaatured by the
Company), (iii) the costs to defend and resolvedpanclaims, and (iv) trends in filing rates anccists to defend and
resolve claims, (collectively, the “Claims DataRs part of its comprehensive legal review, the Campprovides the
Claims Data to a third party with expertise in detiming the impact of Claims Data on future filitrgnds and costs.
The third party assists the Company in estimatirgcosts to defend and resolve pending and futamas. The
Company uses these estimates to develop its hentés of probable liability.

Developments may occur that could affect the Comisagstimate of its liabilities. These developmentdude, but are
not limited to, significant changes in (i) the kessumptions underlying the Company’s accrual, dioly, the number
of future claims, the nature and mix of those chithe average cost of defending and resolvingngaand in
maintaining trial readiness (ii) trial and appedlautcomes, (iii) the law and procedure applicablidhese claims, and
(iv) the financial viability of other co-defendardgad insurers.
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In the first six months of 2017, the Company madgnpents for legal fees and settlements of $34aniltelated to the
respirator mask/asbestos litigation, $22 milliowdfich occurred in the second quarter of 2017. fAluoe 30, 2017, the
Company had an accrual for respirator mask/asbéatbkties (excluding Aearo accruals) of $561 lioih. This accrual
represents the Company'’s best estimate of probasdeand reflects an estimation period for futdaénes that may be
filed against the Company approaching the year 2068 Company cannot estimate the amount or uppkotthe
range of amounts by which the liability may exc#eelaccrual the Company has established becauke (§ inherent
difficulty in projecting the number of claims thave not yet been asserted or the time period iohaflaiture claims
may be asserted, (ii) the complaints nearly alvesgert claims against multiple defendants whereldineages alleged
are typically not attributed to individual defentso that a defendant’s share of liability maytan the law of joint
and several liability, which can vary by state) (ine multiple factors described above that thenfany considers in
estimating its liabilities, and (iv) the severakpible developments described above that may dlaticould affect the
Company’s estimate of liabilities.

As of June 30, 2017, the Company’s receivablerfsuiance recoveries related to the respirator msiskstos litigation
was $4 million. The Company is seeking coveragesutitk policies of certain insolvent and other fasst Once those
claims for coverage are resolved, the Companyhaile collected substantially all of its remainingurance coverage
for respirator mask/asbestos claims.

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Litigation — Aearo Tecla@s

On April 1, 2008, a subsidiary of the Company pas#d the stock of Aearo Holding Corp., the paréitearo
Technologies (“Aearo”). Aearo manufactured and s@ldous products, including personal protectionigaent, such
as eye, ear, head, face, fall and certain respjrgtotection products.

As of June 30, 2017, Aearo and/or other compahigispreviously owned and operated Aearo’s respitaisiness
(American Optical Corporation, Warner-Lambert LLAD) Corp. and Cabot Corporation (“Cabot”)) are named
defendants, with multiple co-defendants, includimg Company, in numerous lawsuits in various caartghich
plaintiffs allege use of mask and respirator prasland seek damages from Aearo and other defenfiarstbeged
personal injury from workplace exposures to aslssitica-related, or other occupational dusts ébumproducts
manufactured by other defendants or generallyenatbrkplace.

As of June 30, 2017, the Company, through its Asatmsidiary, had accruals of $18 million for prodibilities and
defense costs related to current and future Aegleded asbestos and silica-related claims. Redmbitysfor legal costs,
as well as for settlements and judgments, is ctlyrehared in an informal arrangement among Ae@edot, American
Optical Corporation and a subsidiary of Warner Lanhland their respective insurers (the “Payor Gfpupability is
allocated among the parties based on the numbearawé each company sold respiratory products uhéenO

Safety” brand and/or owned the AO Safety Divisidimerican Optical Corporation and the alleged gezrexposure
of the individual plaintiff. Aearo’s share of thertingent liability is further limited by an agreent entered into
between Aearo and Cabot on July 11, 1995. Thiseageat provides that, so long as Aearo pays to Cahoarterly fee
of $100,000, Cabot will retain responsibility amebility for, and indemnify Aearo against, any puotlliability claims
involving exposure to asbestos, silica, or silicadoicts for respirators sold prior to July 11, 1988cause of the
difficulty in determining how long a particular pgator remains in the stream of commerce aftemdebld, Aearo and
Cabot have applied the agreement to claims ar@min@f the alleged use of respirators involving@sqre to asbestos,
silica or silica products prior to January 1, 199/ith these arrangements in place, Aearo’s potelmiaility is limited

to exposures alleged to have arisen from the usespfrators involving exposure to asbestos, siticailica products
on or after January 1, 1997. To date, Aearo hadezldo pay the quarterly fee. Aearo could potdigtize exposed to
additional claims for some part of the pre-July 1995 period covered by its agreement with CabAe#ro elects to
discontinue its participation in this arrangementif Cabot is no longer able to meet its obligatian these matters.

In March 2012, Cabot CSC Corporation and Cabot Qaitjon filed a lawsuit against Aearo in the Supe@ourt of
Suffolk County, Massachusetts seeking declaratligfras to the scope of Cabot’s indemnity obligasi under the
July 11, 1995 agreement, including whether Cabstratained liability for coal workers’ pneumocorifoslaims, and
seeking damages for breach of contract. In 204cturt granted Aearo’s motion for summary judgnntwo
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claims, but declined to rule on two issues: thejgdiability for certain known coal mine dustiauits; and Cabot's
claim for allocation of liability between injurieglegedly caused by exposure to coal mine dusirgades allegedly
caused by exposure to silica dust. Following addil discovery, the parties filed new motions famsnary judgment.
In February 2016, the court ruled in favor of Aearothese two remaining issues, and ordered thadtCand not
Aearo, is solely responsible for all liability fidre coal mine dust lawsuits under the 1995 agreerireMay 2017, the
Massachusetts Court of Appeals affirmed the taalrtorder in favor of Aearo.

Developments may occur that could affect the esérnfAearo’s liabilities. These developments i&ubut are not
limited to: (i) significant changes in the numbéifuture claims, (ii) significant changes in theeaage cost of resolving
claims, (iii) significant changes in the legal sosf defending these claims, (iv) significant chesign the mix and
nature of claims received, (v) trial and appel@técomes, (vi) significant changes in the law aratpdure applicable
to these claims, (vii) significant changes in tladility allocation among the co-defendants, (Mifig financial viability
of members of the Payor Group including exhaustioavailable insurance coverage limits, and/or &xjetermination
that the interpretation of the contractual obligas on which Aearo has estimated its share oflitials inaccurate. The
Company cannot determine the impact of these gatelgvelopments on its current estimate of Aeast'are of
liability for these existing and future claimsalfiy of the developments described above were torpttee actual
amount of these liabilities for existing and futataeims could be significantly larger than the amicaccrued.

Because of the inherent difficulty in projecting thumber of claims that have not yet been assahed,omplexity of
allocating responsibility for future claims amoing tPayor Group, and the several possible develojsnigat may occur
that could affect the estimate of Aearo’s liab##tj the Company cannot estimate the amount or @r@@ounts by
which Aearo’s liability may exceed the accrual @@mpany has established.

Environmental Matters and Litigation

The Company’s operations are subject to environatdgnvs and regulations including those pertairingir emissions,
wastewater discharges, toxic substances, and titihg and disposal of solid and hazardous wastégeable by
national, state, and local authorities around thddyand private parties in the United Statesamwad. These laws
and regulations provide, under certain circumstanadoasis for the remediation of contaminationyéstoration of or
compensation for damages to natural resourcedpamersonal injury and property damage claims. Thenpany has
incurred, and will continue to incur, costs andid@xpenditures in complying with these laws asgulations,
defending personal injury and property damage cdaand modifying its business operations in lights
environmental responsibilities. In its effort tdisfy its environmental responsibilities and compligh environmental
laws and regulations, the Company has establishetiperiodically updates, policies relating to eowimental
standards of performance for its operations wordigwi

Under certain environmental laws, including thetgdiStates Comprehensive Environmental Responsap€usation
and Liability Act of 1980 and similar state lawsetCompany may be jointly and severally liablejdgfty with other
companies, for the costs of remediation of envirental contamination at current or former facilitéesd at off-site
locations. The Company has identified numeroustiors, most of which are in the United States, laictvit may have
some liability. Please refer to the section erditiEnvironmental Liabilities and Insurance Receivabldsat follows for
information on the amount of the accrual.

Environmental Matters

As previously reported, the Company has been vatiiptcooperating with ongoing reviews by locahtst, federal
(primarily the U.S. Environmental Protection Ager{&PA)), and international agencies of possibleéremmental and
health effects of various perfluorinated compoummasuding perfluorooctanyl compounds such as perfhoctanoate
(“PFOA"), perfluorooctane sulfonate (“PFOS”), omsiar compounds (“PFCs”). As a result of its phasg-decision in
May 2000, the Company no longer manufactures pandloctanyl compounds. The company ceased manuifagtand
using the vast majority of these compounds witlipraximately two years of the phase-out announcénaend ceased
all manufacturing and the last significant usehig themistry by the end of 2008. Through its ongdife cycle
management and its raw material composition idieatibn processes associated with the Companyisipsicovering
the use of all persistent and bio-accumulative riete the Company continues to control or eliméntdte presence of

39



certain PFCs in purchased materials or as bypredncome of 3M’s fluorochemical manufacturing psses,
products, and waste streams.

Regulatory activities concerning PFOA and/or PFOftiaue in the United States, Europe and elsewlagiek before
certain international bodies. These activitiesudel gathering of exposure and use information,aggessment, and
consideration of regulatory approaches. As thetdesta of studies of both PFOA and PFOS has expatite#PA has
developed human health effects documents summaiiaamavailable data from these studies. In Fepra@t4, the
EPA initiated external peer review of its draft lanrhealth effects documents for PFOA and PFOS pEke review
panel met in August 2014. In May 2016, the EPA amoed lifetime health advisory levels for PFOA &1€0S at 70
parts per trillion (ppt) (superseding the provisiblevels established by the EPA in 2009 of 400fppPFOA and 200
ppt for PFOS). Where PFOA and PFOS are found tegeEPA recommends that the concentrations be adgdether,
and the lifetime health advisory for PFOA and PR©8\bined is also 70 ppt. Lifetime health advisgnelsile not
enforceable, serve as guidance and are benchnmarédetermining if concentrations of chemicals ip teater from
public utilities are safe for public consumption.dn effort to collect exposure information unde Safe Drinking
Water Act, the EPA published on May 2, 2012 adfstinregulated substances, including six PFCs,ireddo be
monitored during the period 2013-2015 by publicewatystem suppliers to determine the extent of theiurrence.
Through January 2017, the EPA reported resultd 820 public water supplies nationwide. Based e 6 lifetime
health advisory, 13 public water supplies exceeddhel for PFOA and 46 exceed the level for PF@®lfanged from
the July 2016 EPA summary). A technical advisosyéxl by EPA in September 2016 on laboratory arsbfsilrinking
water samples stated that 65 public water supphelsexceeded the combined level for PFOA and PHG&se results
are based on one or more samples collected duringdriod 2012-2015 and do not necessarily refigcent
conditions of these public water supplies. EPA répg does not identify the sources of the PFOA BROS in the
public water supplies.

The Company is continuing to make progress in dskwunder the supervision of state regulatorgddress its historic
disposal of PFC-containing waste associated withufeeturing operations at the Decatur, Alabamataget Grove,
Minnesota, and Cordova, lllinois plants.

As previously reported, the Company entered intolantary remedial action agreement with the Alabddepartment
of Environmental Management (ADEM) to address ttesence of PFCs in the soil at the Company’s matwfiag
facility in Decatur, Alabama. Pursuant to a perissued by ADEM, for approximately twenty years, @@mpany
incorporated its wastewater treatment plant sluaiggaining PFCs in fields at its Decatur facilifter a review of the
available options to address the presence of Pr@®isoil, ADEM agreed that the preferred reméatiabption is to
use a multilayer cap over the former sludge incafion areas on the manufacturing site with subsetjgroundwater
migration controls and treatment. Implementatiothet plan continues and is expected to be conplat2018.

The Company continues to work with the Minnesotlufion Control Agency (MPCA) pursuant to the terofghe
previously disclosed May 2007 Settlement Agreenagidt Consent Order to address the presence ofrc@fs in the
soil and groundwater at former disposal sites irskifegton County, Minnesota (Oakdale and Woodbung) & the
Company’s manufacturing facility at Cottage GroMnnesota. Under this agreement, the Company’'sjpat
obligations include (i) evaluating releases of @@rPFCs from these sites and proposing respotisasic(ii) providing
treatment or alternative drinking water upon idigirig any level exceeding a Health Based Value (\HBor Health
Risk Limit (“HRL") (i.e., the amount of a chemici drinking water determined by the Minnesota Dépant of
Health (MDH) to be safe for human consumption avéfetime) for certain PFCs for which a HBV andHRL exists
as a result of contamination from these site9;r@imediating identified sources of other PFChas¢ sites that are not
controlled by actions to remediate PFOA and PF®@8;(&) sharing information with the MPCA about tzén
perfluorinated compounds. During 2008, the MPCAiégsformal decisions adopting remedial optiongHtierformer
disposal sites in Washington County, Minnesota @@#kand Woodbury). In August 2009, the MPCA issadarmal
decision adopting remedial options for the Compaigottage Grove manufacturing facility. During #p¥ing and
summer of 2010, 3M began implementing the agreet upmedial options at the Cottage Grove and Wogdsites.
3M commenced the remedial option at the Oakdadeisitate 2010. At each location the remedial optiovere
recommended by the Company and approved by the MR€@ediation work has been completed at the Oalatad
Woodbury sites, and they are in an operational taaance mode. Remediation will continue at thea@@ttGrove site
during 2017.
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In August 2014, the lllinois EPA approved a requlsthe Company to establish a groundwater manageroae at its
manufacturing facility in Cordova, lllinois, whidghcludes ongoing pumping of impacted site grounéwagroundwater
monitoring, and routine reporting of results.

In May 2017, the MDH issued new HBVs for PFOS aR®R. The new HBVs are 35 ppt for PFOA and 27 ppt fo
PFOS. In connection with its announcement, the Middted that “Drinking water with PFOA and PFOS,reaethe
levels above the updated values, does not reprasdénimediate health risk. These values are dedigneeduce long-
term health risks across the population and aredbas multiple safety factors to protect the masnerable citizens,
which makes them overprotective for most of thédessts in our state.”

The Company cannot predict what additional regueéetions arising from the foregoing proceedingg activities, if
any, may be taken regarding such compounds orathgegjuences of any such actions.

Environmental Litigation

As previously reported, a former employee filedugported class action lawsuit in 2002 in the Cir€ourt of Morgan
County, Alabama (the St. John case), seeking wtstiimages and alleging that the plaintiffs suffdéear, increased
risk, subclinical injuries, and property damagerirexposure to certain perfluorochemicals at or teaCompany’s
Decatur, Alabama, manufacturing facility. The canr005 granted the Company’s motion to dismissntamed
plaintiff's personal injury-related claims on thadis that such claims are barred by the exclusprityisions of the
state’s Workers Compensation Act. The plaintifistinsel filed an amended complaint in November 2061iing the
case to property damage claims on behalf of a ptegalass of residents and property owners irvitiaity of the
Decatur plant. In June 2015, the plaintiffs filedaanended complaint adding additional defendantdding BFI
Waste Management Systems of Alabama, LLC; BFI Wisksteagement of North America, LLC; the City of Daga
Alabama; Morgan County, Alabama; Municipal Utilgi@oard of Decatur; and Morgan County, Alabamaladliecatur
Utilities.

In 2005, the judge in a second purported classmadiwsuit filed by three residents of Morgan Couitlabama,
seeking unstated compensatory and punitive daniagelsing alleged damage to their property from ssions of
certain perfluorochemical compounds from the Corgfgabecatur, Alabama, manufacturing facility thatrherly
manufactured those compounds (the Chandler caaelegl the Company’s motion to abate the case,teffde putting
the case on hold pending the resolution of clagffication issues in the St. John case. Despitesthy, plaintiffs filed
an amended complaint seeking damages for allegsdna injuries and property damage on behalf efthmed
plaintiffs and the members of a purported classfuier action in the case is expected unlesaatitithe stay is
lifted.

In February 2009, a resident of Franklin Countyal¥ima, filed a purported class action lawsuit enGlircuit Court of
Franklin County (the Stover case) seeking compengatamages and injunctive relief based on theiegin by the
Decatur utility’s wastewater treatment plant of teagater treatment sludge to farmland and grasslarithe state that
allegedly contain PFOA, PFOS and other perfluoratbals. The named plaintiff seeks to represenaascdf all
persons within the State of Alabama who have had&RPFOS, and other perfluorochemicals releasateposited on
their property. In March 2010, the Alabama Supr&oert ordered the case transferred from Franklior®pto
Morgan County. In May 2010, consistent with its dilimg of the other matters, the Morgan County Gir@ourt abated
this case, putting it on hold pending the resohuttbthe class certification issues in the St. Jodse.

In October 2015, West Morgan-East Lawrence Wat&esver Authority (Water Authority) filed an individl
complaint against 3M Company, Dyneon, L.L.C, andkiDaAmerica, Inc., in the U.S. District Court ftlie Northern
District of Alabama. The complaint also includepressentative plaintiffs who brought the complainteehalf of
themselves, and a class of all owners and possestproperty who use water provided by the Watetharity and five
local water works to which the Water Authority slipp water (collectively, the “Water Utilities”).lle complaint seeks
compensatory and punitive damages and injunctiief lsased on allegations that the defendants’ ¢bais) including
PFOA and PFOS from their manufacturing process&etatur, have contaminated the water in the TesaeeRiver at
the water intake, and that the chemicals canno¢fm®ved by the water treatment processes utiligetids\Water
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Authority. In September 2016, the court granted 8Mbotion to dismiss plaintiffs’ trespass claimshaptrejudice,
negligence claims for personal injuries, and pavatisance claims, and denied the motion to disthesglaintiffs’
negligence claims for property damage, public mésaabatement of nuisance, battery and wantonness.

In June 2016, the Tennessee Riverkeeper, Inc. ((k&eper), a non-profit corporation, filed a lawsnithe U.S. District
Court for the Northern District of Alabama agai@st; BFI Waste Systems of Alabama; the City of Daca#labama;
and the Municipal Utilities Board of Decatur, Morg@&ounty, Alabama. The complaint alleges that #fertdants
violated the Resource Conservation and RecoverynAmbnnection with the disposal of certain PFGstilgh their
ownership and operation of their respective sité® complaint further alleges such practices magegmt an imminent
and substantial endangerment to health and/onthieomment and that Riverkeeper has suffered aficcamtinue to
suffer irreparable harm caused by defendants’raila abate the endangerment unless the courtsgitmtequested
relief, including declaratory and injunctive relidfhe Company believes that the complaint lackstmer

In July 2016, the City of Lake EImo filed a lawstuntthe U.S. District Court for the District of Miesota against 3M
alleging that the City suffered damages from drigkivater supplies contaminated with PFCs, includiogts to
construct alternative sources of drinking waterallis scheduled to begin in February 2018.

In September 2016, the Water Works and Sewer Baidtte City of Gadsden, Alabama filed a lawsuithie Circuit
Court of Etowah County Alabama against 3M and vagicarpet manufacturers. The complaint allegesRRéts from
the defendants’ facilities contaminated the CoosaiRas its raw water source for drinking water ardks unstated
damages for the installation and operation ofteafion system, expenses to monitor PFC levels]astdrofits and
sales.

In November 2016, the Town of Barnstable, Massaettei§iled an individual action in the U.S. Distriourt for the
District of Massachusetts seeking unstated competysand punitive damages and other relief agalivstind other
suppliers of AFFF for alleged contamination of #uiifer supplying drinking water to the Hyannis eratystem. The
town seeks to recover costs associated with trestigation, treatment, remediation, and monitodhdrinking water
supplies allegedly contaminated with certain PF€&sdun AFFF. In January 2017, the County of Babista
Massachusetts, filed an individual action in th& WDistrict Court for the District of Massachusettgking unstated
compensatory and punitive damages and other fgligfiding indemnification and contribution in cawtion with
claims asserted against the County by the Townanfiable) against 3M and other suppliers of ARFFafieged
contamination of the aquifer supplying drinking @ato the Hyannis water system.

In January 2017, several hundred plaintiffs sued iBvsubsidiary Dyneon, and Daikin American in tance and
Morgan Counties, Alabama. The plaintiffs are owradrproperty, residents, and holders of propengrigsts who
receive their water from the West Morgan-East LawweeWater and Sewer Authority (Authority). Theyeaasgsommon
law claims for negligence, nuisance, trespass, avargss, and battery, and they seek injunctivefratid punitive
damages. The plaintiffs contend that the defendamtsand operate manufacturing and disposal feslin Decatur
that have released and continue to release PFOBSRIAd related chemicals into the groundwater arfdce water of
their sites, resulting in discharge into the TesresRiver. The plaintiffs also contend that theeddénts have
discharged into Bakers Creek and the Decatur igslibry Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant, whiclwin,
discharges wastewater containing these chemidalshie Tennessee River. The plaintiffs contend st result the
alleged discharges, the water supplied by the Aitthto the plaintiffs was, and is, contaminatedhW?FOA, PFOS,
and related chemicals at a level dangerous to hsiman

In May 2017, the Water Works and Sewer Board ofTtben of Centre, Alabama filed a lawsuit in thedCit Court of
Cherokee County Alabama against 3M, DuPont, andwsicarpet and textile manufacturers. The compéiages that
PFCs from the defendants’ facilities contaminatezitbwn’s raw water source for drinking water aedks unstated
damages for the installation and operation ofteafibn system, expenses to monitor PFC levels$ piaxfits and sales,
and injunctive relief.

As of June 30, 2017, eight purported class acti@ve been filed against 3M and other defendarfesderal or state

courts - three in federal court in Colorado, fauféderal court in Pennsylvania, and one in statetdn New York. An
individual complaint also has been filed in theesd court Pennsylvania. The complaints seek ws@@mages and
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other remedies, such as medical monitoring, aredjalthat the plaintiffs suffered personal injurd gmoperty damage
from drinking water supplies contaminated with agrtPFCs used in Aqueous Film Forming Foam (AFREEuerent or
former airports and air force military bases lodateColorado, Pennsylvania, and New York.

In December 2010, the State of Minnesota, by iterAty General Lori Swanson, acting in its capaagyrustee of the
natural resources of the State of Minnesota, filéawsuit in Hennepin County District Court agaiBst to recover
damages (including unspecified assessment costseandnable attorney’s fees) for alleged injurydestruction of, and
loss of use of certain of the State’s natural resesiunder the Minnesota Environmental Responsé iaibdity Act
(MERLA) and the Minnesota Water Pollution ContratAMWPCA), as well as statutory nuisance and comfaoa/
claims of trespass, nuisance, and negligence w#pect to the presence of PFCs in the groundveatdgce water, fish
or other aquatic life, and sediments (the “NRD LaiV}. The State also seeks declarations under MkRiat 3M is
responsible for all damages the State may sufftrarfuture for injuries to natural resources frateases of PFCs into
the environment, and under MWPCA that 3M is resfim@dor compensation for future loss or destructid fish,
aquatic life, and other damages.

In November 2011, the Metropolitan Council filedhation to intervene and a complaint in the NRD Laitvseeking
compensatory damages and other legal, declaratorgguitable relief, including reasonable attorhéess, for costs
and fees that the Metropolitan Council allegesilitlve required to assess at some time in the éuifuthe MPCA
imposes restrictions on Metropolitan Council’'s PFi&harges to the Mississippi River, including itgtallation and
maintenance of a water treatment system. The Melitap Council’s intervention motion was based ewesal theories,
including common law negligence, and statutorymstaunder MERLA for response costs, and under thebtota
Environmental Rights Act (MERA) for declaratory aeqguitable relief against 3M for PFOS and other PB{lution of
the waters and sediments of the Mississippi Ri®#r.did not object to the motion to intervene. Imdary 2012, 3M
answered the Metropolitan Council’'s complaint aifebfa counterclaim alleging that the Metropolitaouncil
discharges PFCs to the Mississippi River and diggsaPFC-containing sludge and bio solids fromammore of its
wastewater treatment plants onto agricultural lanttslocal area landfills. Accordingly, 3M’s comipibagainst the
Metropolitan Council asks that if the court finthsit the State is entitled to any of the damagesaks, 3M be awarded
contribution and apportionment from the Metropalitaouncil, including attorneys’ fees, under MERLakd
contribution from and liability for the MetropolitaCouncil’s proportional share of damages awarddti¢ State under
the MWPCA, as well as under statutory nuisancecamimon law theories of trespass, nuisance, andgeage. 3M
also seeks declaratory relief under MERA. In Mag2ahe Metropolitan Council paid 3M approximatélly million

and agreed to dismiss its claims against 3M. Asqfahe settlement agreement, 3M agreed to disitsisdaims against
the Metropolitan Council.

In April 2012, 3M filed a motion to disqualify tH&tate of Minnesota’s counsel, Covington & BurlihgP (Covington).
In October 2012, the court granted 3M’s motionitmgdalify Covington as counsel to the State andta¢e and
Covington appealed the court’s disqualificatiothte Minnesota Court of Appeals. In July 2013, thieMésota Court of
Appeals affirmed the district court’s disqualificat order. In October 2013, the Minnesota Supremeryranted both
the State’s and Covington’s petition for reviewtlod decision of the Minnesota Court of AppealsApmil 2014, the
Minnesota Supreme Court affirmed in part, reveisguhrt, and remanded the case to the districttdoufurther
proceedings. The district court took evidence @ndisqualification issues at a hearing in Octolfdr52 In February
2016, the district court ruled that Covington vielhthe professional ethics rule against represgiaticlient (here the
State of Minnesota) in the same or substantialbted matter where that person’s interests arermaliyeadverse to the
interests of a former client (3M). The district cpunowever, denied 3M’s motion to disqualify Cogian because it
further found that 3M impliedly waived by delayitmassert the conflict. Other activity in the cashich had been
stayed pending the outcome of the disqualificaissne, has resumed. Trial of the NRD Lawsuit iedcied to begin in
February 2018. In a separate but related actienCtimpany filed suit in the Ramsey County Dist@ourt against
Covington for breach of its fiduciary duties to fiempany and for breach of contract arising ou€a¥ington’s
representation of the State of Minnesota in the NRI¥suit. In September 2016, the court granted 3flaion for
leave to amend the complaint to plead punitive dggsaln February 2017, Covington settled this laiusith a
payment by Covington or its insurer to 3M thatds material to 3M’s results of operations or finehcondition.

For environmental litigation matters describedhiis section for which a liability, if any, has bemtorded, the
Company believes the amount recorded, as welleapdhsible loss or range of loss in excess of steblished accrual
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is not material to the Company’s consolidated tesafl operations or financial condition. For thosatters for which a
liability has not been recorded, the Company beleany such liability is not probable and estimaiéd the Company
is not able to estimate a possible loss or randessfat this time.

Environmental Liabilities and Insurance Receivables

As of June 30, 2017, the Company had recordeditiabiof $36 million for estimated “environmenta@mediation”
costs based upon an evaluation of currently availidzts with respect to each individual site alsth aecorded related
insurance receivables of $8 million. The Compartprds liabilities for remediation costs on an undimted basis
when they are probable and reasonably estimabhergty no later than the completion of feasibiktydies or the
Company’s commitment to a plan of action. Liakel#ifor estimated costs of environmental remediatepending on
the site, are based primarily upon internal omdtfarty environmental studies, and estimates #staumber,
participation level and financial viability of amgher potentially responsible parties, the exténhe contamination and
the nature of required remedial actions. The Compaljusts recorded liabilities as further inforratidevelops or
circumstances change. The Company expects thdt gay the amounts recorded over the periods wiediation for
the applicable sites, currently ranging up to 28rge

As of June 30, 2017, the Company had recordeditiabiof $28 million for “other environmental lidilies” based
upon an evaluation of currently available factgniplement the Settlement Agreement and ConsentrQvitle the
MPCA, the remedial action agreement with ADEM, ém@dddress trace amounts of perfluorinated comp®imd
drinking water sources in the City of Oakdale, Mieata, as well as presence in the soil and grouedwatthe
Company’s manufacturing facilities in Decatur, Adafia, and Cottage Grove, Minnesota, and at two fodisposal
sites in Washington County, Minnesota (Oakdale\Ambdbury). The Company expects that most of thadipg will
occur over the next four years. During the firshiqer of 2017, the Company collected from its iesthe outstanding
receivable of $15 million related to “other envirental liabilities.”

It is difficult to estimate the cost of environmahtompliance and remediation given the unceresntegarding the
interpretation and enforcement of applicable emvinental laws and regulations, the extent of enviremtal
contamination and the existence of alternativertipanethods. Developments may occur that coula tafffe
Company’s current assessment, including, but natdd to: (i) changes in the information availatdgarding the
environmental impact of the Company’s operatiors products; (i) changes in environmental regulaicchanges in
permissible levels of specific compounds in drigkimater sources, or changes in enforcement theangpolicies,
including efforts to recover natural resource daesagii) new and evolving analytical and remediattechniques;
(iv) success in allocating liability to other potially responsible parties; and (v) the financielbility of other
potentially responsible parties and third-partyeimohitors. For sites included in both “environmemgathediation
liabilities” and “other environmental liabilitiesgt which remediation activity is largely complated remaining activity
relates primarily to operation and maintenancénefremedy, including required post-remediation nawirg, the
Company believes the exposure to loss in exceggeamount accrued would not be material to the [@2omy's
consolidated results of operations or financialditton. However, for locations at which remediatexctivity is largely
ongoing, the Company cannot estimate a possibéedosange of loss in excess of the associatedlss$tad accruals
for the reasons described above.
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Other Matters
Department of Labor Investigation

The U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) notified 3M ipid 2015 that it had commenced an investigatioBidfs
pension plan pursuant to the federal Employee &atint Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (BRIBhe DOL
has stated its investigation relates to certaivapei equity investments, plan expenses, seculéeing, and
distributions of plan benefits. In response toaerDOL requests, 3M produced documents and magdogaes
available for interviews. In December 2016, the Di€dued certain subpoenas to 3M and 3M Investmeamagement
Corp. relating to this investigation. 3M has proeld@dditional responsive documents and is coopegratith the DOL
in its investigation. The DOL has not providedraeiine for the completion of its investigation.

Product Liability Litigation

One customer obtained an order in the French cagesist 3M Purification SAS (a French subsidiamypctober 2011
appointing an expert to determine the amount ofroensial loss and property damage allegedly caugediégedly
defective 3M filters used in the customer’s mantfeing process. An Austrian subsidiary of this samstomer also
filed a claim against 3M Austria GmbH (an Austreubsidiary) and 3M Purification SAS in the Austrizourts

in September 2012 seeking damages for the sane iBa Company reached an agreement in princigettte those
two cases and finalized the settlement during ¢loersd quarter of 2017. The amounts agreed to im efihese
settlements were not material to the Company’s @adated results of operations or financial coraditi

As of June 30, 2017, the Company is a named def¢madawsuits involving approximately 2,600 plaifs (compared
to approximately 1,260 plaintiffs at December 301&), most of which are pending in federal or statert in
Minnesota, in which the plaintiffs claim they undent various joint arthroplasty, cardiovasculad ather surgeries
and later developed surgical site infections duiéouse of the Bair Hugger™ patient warming sysfEne complaints
seek damages and other relief based on theorgsdfliability, negligence, breach of express anglied warranties,
failure to warn, design and manufacturing defeetidulent and/or negligent misrepresentation/cdnueat, unjust
enrichment, and violations of various state consunaeid, deceptive or unlawful trade practices anédlse advertising
acts. One case, from the U.S. District Court fer\Western District of Tennessee is a putative nadide class action.
The U.S. Judicial Panel on Multidistrict LitigatigDL) granted the plaintiffs’ motion to transfemd consolidate all
cases pending in federal courts to the U.S. DisBaurt for the District of Minnesota to be managed multi-district
proceeding during the pre-trial phase of the liiiga In June 2016, the Company was served withtatjye class action
filed in the Ontario Superior Court of Justice &irCanadian residents who underwent various jitttroplasty,
cardiovascular, and other surgeries and later dpeel surgical site infections due to the use oBthie Hugger™
patient warming system. The representative pldis¢i€ks relief (including punitive damages) undan&lian law based
on theories similar to those asserted in the MDie Bair Hugger™ product line was acquired by 3Mpag of the
2010 acquisition of Arizant, Inc., a leading marutifeer of patient warming solutions designed tosprg hypothermia
and maintain normal body temperature in surgictinggs. No liability has been recorded for this taabecause the
Company believes that any such liability is nothgaiole and estimable at this time.

In September 2011, 3M Oral Care launched Lava @#nCAD/CAM dental restorative material. The praduas
originally indicated for inlay, onlay, veneer, atrdwn applications. In June 2015, 3M Oral Care mtduly removed
crown applications from the product’s instructidosuse, following reports from dentists of pat&Erdrowns
debonding, requiring additional treatment. The pidemains on the market for other applicatioh.cemmunicated
with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, as vealregulators outside the United States. 3M alored
customers and distributors of its action, offeeadcept return of unused materials and providends. As of June 30,
2017, there are two lawsuits pending that were diibby dentists and dental practices against 3M. ddmplaints
allege 3M marketed and sold defective Lava Ultinmatderial used for dental crowns to dentists andeuvarious
theories, seek monetary damages (replacementamstsusiness reputation loss), punitive damagsgpdijement of
profits, injunction from marketing and selling Lalétimate for use in dental crowns, statutory péaa) and attorneys’
fees and costs. One lawsuit, pending in the U.Stribi Court for the District of Minnesota, is as$ action that names
39 plaintiffs and seeks certification of a classlehtists in the United States and its territordes) alternatively seeks
subclasses in 13 states. The other lawsuit isdinidtual complaint against 3M in Madison Countyinbis.
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For product liability litigation matters describadthis section for which a liability has been resed, the Company
believes the amount recorded is not material tdCbmpany’s consolidated results of operationsrarftial condition.
In addition, the Company is not able to estimap@ssible loss or range of loss in excess of thebéshed accruals at
this time.

NOTE 13. Stock-Based Compensation

The 3M 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), axdissed in 3M’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Maf017
(which updated 3M’s 2016 Annual Report on Form I)Qy€ovides for the issuance or delivery of up 23,265,000
shares of 3M common stock pursuant to awards gtamder the plan. Awards may be issued in the fmrmcentive
stock options, nonqualified stock options, progresstock options, stock appreciation rights, ietdd stock, restricted
stock units, other stock awards, and performands and performance shardhe remaining total shares available for
grant under the LTIP Program are 30,069,336 asrmd 30, 2017.

The Company’s annual stock option and restrictedkstinit grant is made in February to provide arggrand
immediate link between the performance of individuwduring the preceding year and the size of theftual stock
compensation grants. The grant to eligible emplsyeses the closing stock price on the grant dateodnting rules
require recognition of expense under a non-sulistamesting period approach, requiring compensatigense
recognition when an employee is eligible to retitmployees are considered eligible to retire at&gand after having
completed ten years of service. This retiree-diiggmpulation represents 35 percent of the 201 vdargrant stock-
based compensation award expense dollars; theydifigher stock-based compensation expense is reagayim the
first quarter.

In addition to the annual grants, the Company makiesr minor grants of stock options, restrictatktunits and other
stock-based grants. The Company issues cash settigtted stock units and stock appreciationtsigi certain
countries. These grants do not result in the issaaficommon stock and are considered immaterigth&yCompany.

Amounts recognized in the financial statements wagpect to stock-based compensation programshviiitude stock
options, restricted stock, restricted stock umitsformance shares and the General Employees’ Stoahase Plan
(GESPP), are provided in the following table. Calpied stock-based compensation amounts were retialgor the
three and six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Cost of sales $ 9 % 8 9 32 8 31
Selling, general and administrative expenses 43 34 141 130
Research, development and related expenses 7 7 33 32
Stock-based compensation expenses $ 50 $ 49 $ 206 $ 193
Income tax benefits $ (74) $ (72) $ (222 % (199
Stock-based compensation expenses (benefits)f teet o $ (15) $ (23) $ (16) $ (6)
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Stock Option Program

The following table summarizes stock option acgivdtiring the six months ended June 30, 2017:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Number of Average Contractual Intrinsic Value
Options Exercise Price Life (months) (millions)
Under option —
January 1 36,196,232 $ 112.07
Granted:
Annual 5,409,628 175.93
Exercised (4,667,165 89.38
Canceled (122,880 161.12
June 30 36,815,81f $§ 124.16 7% $ 3,093
Options exercisable
June 30 26,069,052 $ 107.43 61 $ 2,627

Stock options vest over a period from one yeahted years with the expiration date at 10 yeans flate of grant. As
of June 30, 2017, there was $104 million of comp&ar expense that has yet to be recognized retatedn-vested
stock option based awards. This expense is expéxteel recognized over the remaining weighted-ayereesting
period of 23 months. The total intrinsic valuestuick options exercised were $465 million and $4@8on during the
six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, resplyci@ash received from options exercised was $4illeomand
$534 million for the six months ended June 30, 284d 2016, respectively. The Company’s actual &nelits realized
for the tax deductions related to the exercisengbleyee stock options were $158 million and $17Bioni for the six
months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

For the primary 2017 annual stock option grantyteéhted average fair value at the date of graad @alculated using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the agstions that follow.

Stock Option Assumptions

Annual
2017
Exercise price $ 175.76
Risk-free interest rate 2.1%
Dividend yield 2.5%
Expected volatility 17.3%
Expected life (months) 78
Black-Scholes fair value $ 23.51

Expected volatility is a statistical measure of éimount by which a stock price is expected to €flat# during a period.
For the 2017 annual grant date, the Company egithe expected volatility based upon the averdgfgeamost recent
one year volatility, the median of the term of ewpected life rolling volatility, the median of theost recent term of
the expected life volatility of 3M stock, and thmaglied volatility on the grant date. The expectiésl dssumption is
based on the weighted average of historical grants.
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Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

The following table summarizes restricted stock eeudricted stock unit activity during the six mesiended June 30,
2017:

Weighted
Average
Number of Grant Date
Awards Fair Value
Nonvestecbalance —
As of January 1 2,185,046 $ 145.64
Granted
Annual 604,256 176.10
Other 1,547 184.98
Vested (758,403) 126.75
Forfeited (31,511 157.36
As of June 30 2,000,935 $ 161.84

As of June 30, 2017, there was $112 million of cermgation expense that has yet to be recognize®delanon-vested
restricted stock units and restricted stock. Thjzease is expected to be recognized over the rémgaiveighted-
average vesting period of 24 months. The totalMalue of restricted stock units and restrictedlsthat vested during
the six months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 waki$illBon and $136 million, respectively. The Comgs actual
tax benefits realized for the tax deductions relatethe vesting of restricted stock units andrietstd stock was $44
million and $51 million for the six months ended@B0, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Restricted stock units granted generally vest tigezgs following the grant date assuming continemegloyment.
Dividend equivalents equal to the dividends payall¢he same number of shares of 3M common stakia®n these
restricted stock units during the vesting peridthaugh no dividend equivalents are paid on anthe$e restricted stock
units that are forfeited prior to the vesting d@@/idends are paid out in cash at the vest dateesimicted stock units.
Since the rights to dividends are forfeitable, ¢hisrno impact on basic earnings per share caicokatWeighted
average restricted stock unit shares outstandmgnatuded in the computation of diluted earnings ghare.

Performance Shares

Instead of restricted stock units, the Company makeual grants of performance shares to membésefecutive
management. The 2017 performance criteria for thes®rmance shares (organic volume growth, retarmvested
capital, free cash flow conversion, and earninggbare growth) were selected because the Compédirydxethat they
are important drivers of long-term stockholder eallihe number of shares of 3M common stock thaldcactually be
delivered at the end of the three-year performamec®d may be anywhere from 0% to 200% of eachopesdince share
granted, depending on the performance of the Coyngaring such performance period. Non-substanteging
requires that expense for the performance sharescognized over one or three years depending @mwhch
individual became a 3M executive. The 2017 perforceashare grant accrues dividends, therefore tra dgate fair
value is equal to the closing stock price on the @é grant. Since the rights to dividends aredable, there is no
impact on basic earnings per share calculationsghtérl average performance shares whose perfornpeencel is
complete are included in computation of dilutecheags per share.
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The following table summarizes performance shatieigcduring the six months ended June 30, 2017:

Weighted
Average
Number of Grant Date
Awards Fair Value
Undistributed balance —

As of January 1 656,278 $ 142.98
Granted 187,480 189.81
Distributed (312,173) 124.63
Performance change 65,216 173.25
Forfeited (9,275) 168.09

As of June 30 587,526 $ 170.63

As of June 30, 2017, there was $42 million of congation expense that has yet to be recognizec:delat
performance shares. This expense is expectedrecbgnized over the remaining weighted-averageimgsmperiod of
11 months. The total fair values of performanceehéhat were distributed were $55 million and #%Hion for the six
months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectiMedyCompany’s actual tax benefits realized fortéxedeductions
related to the distribution of performance sharesev$15 million for both the six months ended J8@e2017 and 2016.
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NOTE 14. Business Segments

3M'’s businesses are organized, managed and iniegraliped into segments based on differences kets
products, technologies and services. 3M managepéstions in five business segments: Industsafety and
Graphics; Health Care; Electronics and Energy;@adsumer. 3M’s five business segments bring togeitiemmon or
related 3M technologies, enhancing the developmkinnovative products and services and providogefficient
sharing of business resources. Transactions anamagtable segments are recorded at cost. 3M istegrated
enterprise characterized by substantial intersego@aperation, cost allocations and inventory tfarss Therefore,
management does not represent that these segifiepe;ated independently, would report the opatpihcome
information shown. The difference between operaitiegme and pre-tax income relates to interestrimecand interest
expense, which are not allocated to business segmen

Effective in the first quarter of 2017, as parBM’s continuing effort to improve the alignmentitsf businesses around
markets and customers the Company made the folipahianges:

1. Integrated the former Renewable Energy Division emisting divisions;

2. Combined two divisions to form the Automotive andréspace Solutions Division; and

3. Consolidated U.S. customer account activity - inipgedual credit reporting

Integration of former Renewable Energy Division
* The (a) solar and wind and (b) energy product liiaésng with certain technology previously includad

Corporate and Unallocated) of the former Renewgblergy Division (RED) were integrated into the &rig
Electrical Markets Division and Electronics Matésiand Solutions Division, respectively, within the
Electronics and Energy business segment. In additie former RED’s window film product lines were
moved into the Commercial Solutions Division withihe Safety and Graphics business segment. Thigyeha
resulted in a decrease in previously reported alessand operating income for total year 2016 @B3%aillion
and $38 million, respectively, in the ElectroniceldEnergy segment. These decreases were offsesdy7a
million and $29 million increase in previously refel total year 2016 net sales and operating income
respectively, in the Safety and Graphics businegment and a $4 million decrease and $9 millioneiase in
previously reported net sales and operating incoespectively, in Corporate and Unallocated.

Creation of Automotive and Aerospace Solutions Bioin
e The former Automotive Division and Aerospace anan@tercial Transportation Division (both within the
Industrial business segment) were combined to etbat Automotive and Aerospace Solutions Division.
Because this realignment was within the Indusbiainess segment, it had no impact on businessesggm
reporting.

Consolidation of U.S. customer account activitympacting dual credit reporting
* The Company consolidated its customer accountigctivthe U.S. into more centralized sales disrio

better serve customers. As discussed further béMahusiness segment reporting measures include dua
credit to business segments for certain U.S. saldgelated operating income. This dual credibiseldl on
which business segment provides customer accotiuitac‘sales district”) with respect to a partiem product
sold in the U.S. Previously, a customer in the th8y have been aligned to several sales distréstscéated
with multiple divisions or segments based on tltiviidual products the customer purchased across 3M’
portfolio. The alignment of U.S. customer accountfewer, more focused sales districts therefoengkd the
attribution of dual credit across 3M’s businessnsents. As a result, previously reported aggregasiniess
segment net sales and operating income for total 3@16 increased $163 million and $36 million,
respectively, offset by similar increases in theglation of dual credit net sales and operatirgpme
amounts.

The financial information presented herein reflebtsimpact of the preceding business segmenttiagarhanges for
all periods presented.
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Business Segment Information

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,

(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Net Sales
Industrial $ 2720 $ 2654 $ 5,429 $ 5,253
Safety and Graphics 1,547 1,561 3,074 3,038
Health Care 1,440 1,414 2,863 2,805
Electronics and Energy 1,214 1,129 2,424 2,218
Consumer 1,137 1,130 2,179 2,180
Corporate and Unallocated 2 3 4 3
Elimination of Dual Credit (250 (229 (478 (426
Total Company $ 7810 $ 7,662 $ 15495 $ 15,071
Operating Income
Industrial $ 523 $ 620 $ 1,148 $ 1,242
Safety and Graphics 852 421 1,251 780
Health Care 412 462 846 919
Electronics and Energy 301 217 526 412
Consumer 195 281 417 519
Corporate and Unallocated (44) (84) (125) (124)
Elimination of Dual Credit (55) (51) (105 (94
Total Company $ 2,184 $ 1866 $ 3,958 $ 3,654

Corporate and unallocated operating income incladesriety of miscellaneous items, such as corpdratestment
gains and losses, certain derivative gains ané$os®rtain insurance-related gains and lossdsjrcéitigation and
environmental expenses, corporate restructuringgelseand certain under- or over-absorbed costsfertsion, stock-
based compensation) that the Company may choode atbcate directly to its business segmentsaBse this
category includes a variety of miscellaneous itéhis,subject to fluctuation on a quarterly anchaal basis.

3M business segment reporting measures includecdedit to business segments for certain U.S. saldgelated
operating income. Management evaluates each fifétbusiness segments based on net sales andiogenzome
performance, including dual credit U.S. reportiadurther incentivize U.S. sales growth. As a reaM reflects
additional (“dual”) credit to another business segtmwhen the customer account activity (“salegidis} with respect
to the particular product sold to the external cosr in the U.S. is provided by a different businesgment. This
additional dual credit is largely reflected at theision level. For example, certain respirators primarily sold by the
Personal Safety Division within the Safety and Giep business segment; however, a sales distribtnuthe Industrial
business segment provides the contact for saldeeqfroduct to particular customers in the U.S.ketadn this
example, the non-primary selling segment (Indugtwauld also receive credit for the associatedsadts initiated
though its sales district and the related approtérgerating income. The assigned operating ina@faged to dual
credit activity may differ from operating incomeathwould result from actual costs associated withssales. The
offset to the dual credit business segment reppitimeflected as a reconciling item entitled “Bhation of Dual
Credit,” such that sales and operating incomeHerd.S. in total are unchanged.

Certain sales and operating income results fotreleic bonding product lines are equally dividedwsen the
Electronics and Energy business segment and thestiia business segment.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM*

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of 3Mr{pany:

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidatechbalaheevf 3M Company and its subsidiarias of June 30,
2017, and the related consolidated statementscofrie and comprehensive income for the three-mamdtsix-month
periods ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 and the detsal statements of cash flows for the six-momttiquls ended
June 30, 2017 and 2016. These interim financia¢stants are the responsibility of the Company’s agament.

We conducted our review in accordance with thedsteds of the Public Company Accounting Oversighamgla/United
States). A review of interim financial informatieonsists principally of applying analytical proceels and making
inquiries of persons responsible for financial andounting matters. It is substantially less ipgcthan an audit
conducted in accordance with the standards of tidic®Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unitedt8s), the
objective of which is the expression of an opiniegarding the financial statements taken as a whateordingly, we
do not express such an opinion.

Based on our review, we are not aware of any naterodifications that should be made to the accawyipg
consolidated interim financial statements for therbe in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in
the United States of America.

We previously audited, in accordance with the saadsl of the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8q&nited
States), the consolidatbadlance sheet as of December 31, 2016, and thedalansolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, changes in equity, and d¢awsis for the year then ended (not presented herein)iraadr
report dated February 9, 2017, except with resfpeatir opinion on the consolidated financial statata insofar as it
relates to the business segment reporting changassded in Notes 3 and 16 as to which the dafgis4, 2017, we
expressed an unqualified opinion on those congelitiinancial statements. In our opinion, the infation set forth in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheet infiymas of December 31, 2016, is fairly statedlimeaterial
respects in relation to the consolidated balaneetsihom which it has been derived.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
August 1, 2017

* Pursuant to Rule 436(c) of the Securities Act @3.9'Act”) this should not be considered a “repasithin the
meaning of Sections 7 and 11 of the Act and thepreddent registered public accounting firm liapilinder
Section 11 does not extend to it.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of kancial Condition and Results of Operations.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results of Operations (MD&A) is desdrto
provide a reader of 3M’s financial statements witharrative from the perspective of managements3WD&A is
presented in the following sections:

*  Overview

* Results of Operations

» Performance by Business Segment

» Financial Condition and Liquidity

e Cautionary Note Concerning Factors That May Affegture Results

Forward-looking statements in Part |, ltem 2 mayolie risks and uncertainties that could causeltesudiffer
materially from those projected (refer to the satntitled “Cautionary Note Concerning FactorstTay Affect
Future Results” in Part |, Item 2 and the risk dastprovided in Part I, Item 1A for discussiontlése risks and
uncertainties).

OVERVIEW

3M is a diversified global manufacturer, technolagyovator and marketer of a wide variety of praduand services.
As described in 3M’s Quarterly Report on Form 1@eQthe period ended March 31, 2017, and also irs3durrent
Report on Form 8-K dated May 4, 2017 (which updatets 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K), effectivethe first
quarter of 2017, the Company changed its busireggment reporting in its continued effort to imprdkie alignment of
businesses around markets and customers. Thesgeshacluded the integration of the former Renewabiergy
Division into existing divisions, the combinatiohtao divisions to form the Automotive and Aerospagolutions
Division, and consolidation of U.S. customer acdagtivity, impacting dual credit reporting. Busesesegment
information presented herein reflects the impadhese changes for all periods presented. Refdpte 14 for
additional detail. This quarterly report on FormQGhould be read in conjunction with the Comparygssolidated
statements and notes included in its Current RepoRorm 8-K dated May 4, 2017.

3M manages its operations in five operating busisegments: Industrial; Safety and Graphics; Hezédite;
Electronics and Energy; and Consumer. From a gebargerspective, any references to EMEA referdmie,
Middle East and Africa on a combined basis. Angrefices to “Membrana” refer to the former Sepanatidedia
business acquired by 3M from Polypore in 2015.

Earnings per share attributable to 3M common shaxdters — diluted:

The following table provides the increase (decreasdiluted earnings per share for the three meatid six months
ended June 30, 2017 compared to 2016.

Three months ended Six months ended
(Earnings per diluted share) June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017
Same period last year $ 208 $ 4.13
Increase/(decrease) in earnings per share - djldtezlto:

Organic growth/other productivity 0.08 0.29

Foreign exchange impacts (0.05) (0.09

Income tax rate 0.12 0.20

Shares of common stock outstanding/net interest 0.02 0.06

Divestiture gains, net of lost operating income 0.57 0.55

Incremental strategic investments (0.24) (0.40
Current period $ 258 $ 4.74

Earnings per diluted share increased 50 cents}.Orpercent and 61 cents, or 14.8 percent in tbenskequarter and first
six months of 2017, respectively, when comparetthécsame periods last year. The second quartéd1of iicludes a
net year-on-year benefit of $273 million, compriggdlivestiture gains (net of lost operating incoroE$451 million
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partially offset by $178 million of incremental ategic investments in accelerated growth progrgmeuctivity and
portfolio actions.

Operating income results include year-on-year menatal strategic investments that decreased preamings by
approximately $178 million and $314 million in teecond quarter of 2017 and first six months of 2043pectively.
The second quarter impact was comprised of 3M’estiments in growth initiatives and optimizatioritefportfolio and
supply chain footprint of $178 million. In additida the second quarter strategic investments dssmusibove, the first
quarter of 2017 included strategic investmentsl&abmillion. Additional discussion on strategic @stments is
provided later within “Divestitures and Strategiwéstments” and also within the “Results of Operai section.

Divestiture lost operating income impacts, which areasured for the first twelve months post-tratimacrelated to the
divestitures of Polyfoam and the remaining portiéthe library system business (both in first gea&016), the
divestitures of the protective films business aathode battery technology out-license businesth ({ipdfourth quarter
2016), and the divestitures of the identity managetnand tolling and automated license/number ptegnition
businesses (both in the second quarter of 201 &ddiition, 3M sold its prescription safety eyewkasiness (January
2017), sold and transferred control of its identifgnhagement business (May 2017), and sold iteigpdind automated
license/number plate recognition business (Jun&2@n a combined basis, higher year-on-year divestgains, net
of lost operating income in the second quarter0df72(largely related to the identity managemenirass) increased
earnings per share.

Organic growth, productivity and other include bfisefrom higher organic local-currency sales, lowewv material
costs, and business transformation, which is haaipgsitive impact on 3M’s productivity efforts. 8¢e benefits were
partially offset by higher defined benefit pensexpenses.

Foreign currency impacts (net of hedging) decreasedax earnings by approximately $44 million &1® million
year-on-year in the second quarter and first sinttmof 2017, respectively, excluding the impadioo€ign currency
changes on tax rates. This is equivalent to a gaayear decrease of 5 cents and 9 cents per dishi@e for the second
quarter and first six months of 2017, respectively.

The effective income tax rate was 26.0 percertténsecond quarter of 2017, a decrease of 3.6 gageepoints versus
last year’s second quarter, and 25.0 percent ifirgtesix months of 2017, a decline of 3.2 peragetpoints versus last
year’s first six months. The second quarter arsl §ix months 2017 change in tax rate was drivea bymber of
factors as referenced in Note 6.

Lower shares outstanding, partially offset by highterest expense, increased earnings per shaight¥d-average
diluted shares outstanding in the second quartgfiest six months of 2017 declined 1.3 percent ardpercent year-
on-year, respectively, which benefited earningssbare. The decrease in the outstanding weightechge diluted
shares relates to the Company’s purchase of $48idnrand $1.2 billion of its own stock in the secbquarter and first
six months of 2017, respectively. Higher net intéexpense was largely due to higher U.S. averabelshlances and
higher interest rates.

Sales and operating income by business segment:

The following tables contain sales and operatingine results by business segment for the threehm@mtd six
months ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. In addititimetdiscussion below, refer to the section eutitRerformance by
Business Segment” later in MD&A for a more detaitéscussion of the sales and operating incometsestithe
Company and its respective business segments dingilCorporate and Unallocated). Refer to Notedrafiditional
information on business segments, including Elimiamaof Dual Credit. Further discussion of the Ca@mp's operating
income results is in the section entitled “Opemaiimcome” within the “Results of Operations” seatio
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Three months ended June 30,

2017 2016 % change
Net Oper. Net Oper. Net @p
(Dollars in millions) Sales Income Sales Income Sales Income
Business Segments
Industrial $ 2,720 523 $ 2,654 $ 620 25% (15.6%
Safety and Graphics 1,547 852 1,561 421 (0.99% 102.0%
Health Care 1,440 412 1,414 462 1.8% (10.6%
Electronics and Energy 1,214 301 1,129 217 7.5% 38.8%
Consumer 1,137 195 1,130 281 0.5% (30.4%
Corporate and Unallocated 2 (44) 3 (84) — —
Elimination of Dual Credit (250 (55) (229 (51 — —
Total Company $ 7810 $ 2,184 $ 7,662 $ 1,866 1.9% 17.1%
Three months ended June 30, 2017
Organic
Worldwide local- Total
Sales Change Analysis currency sales
By Business Segment sales Divestitures Transtati change
Industrial 3.8% (0.6% (0.7% 25%
Safety and Graphics 3% (3.4)% (0.7)% 0.9%
Health Care 25% — % (0.7% 1.8%
Electronics and Energy 8% (0.4)% (0.5)% 7.%0
Consumer 0.7% — % (0.2% 0.5%
Total Company 3.% (1.0)% (0.6)% 1.%

Sales in U.S. dollars in the second quarter of 26&féased 1.9 percent compared to the same pearR@ll6, with an
increase in organic local-currency sales (whicluides organic volume impacts plus selling priceastp) partially

offset by divestiture and foreign currency trarislaimpacts. Total company organic local-currengles increased 3.5
percent, with growth in all business segments. Wuide operating income margins for the second quaft2017 were
28.0 percent, compared to 24.4 percent for thergkqoarter of 2016, helped by a net benefit frowesliture gains, net
of lost operating income, partially offset by inerental strategic investments.

Divestitures reduced second quarter sales growth®percent. As part of its ongoing portfolio mgement process,
3M sold its protective films business and cathodlitelny technology out-license business (both imtfoquarter 2016).
In addition, 3M sold its prescription safety eyewkasiness (January 2017), its identify managernesiness (May
2017), and its tolling and automated license/nunplegie recognition business (June 2017). Referdz 2 in the
Consolidated Financial Statements for additiongitle

Six months ended June 30,

2017 2016 % change

Net Oper. Net Oper. Net Oper.
(Dollars in millions) Sales Income Sales Income Sales Income
Business Segments
Industrial $ 5429 $ 1,148 $ 5,253 $ 1,242 3.4% (7.6%
Safety and Graphics 3,074 1,251 3,038 780 1.2% 60.3%
Health Care 2,863 846 2,805 919 2.1% (7.9%
Electronics and Energy 2,424 526 2,218 412 9.3% 27.6%
Consumer 2,179 417 2,180 519 (0.1% (19.6%
Corporate and Unallocated 4 (125) 3 (124) — —
Elimination of Dual Credit (478 (105 (426 (94 — —
Total Company $15,495 $ 3,958 $15,071 $ 3,654 2.8% 8.3%

55



Six months ended June 30, 2017

Organic
Worldwide local- Total
Sales Change Analysis currency sales
By Business Segment sales Divestitures Transtati change
Industrial 4.8% (0.7% (0.7% 3.4%
Safety and Graphics 4% (2.1)% (0.7)% 1.%
Health Care 2.8% — % (0.7% 2.1%
Electronics and Energy 1000 (0.3)% (0.4)% 9.%
Consumer (0.3% — % 0.2% (0.1%
Total Company 4.006 (0.7)% (0.5)% 2.8

Sales in U.S. dollars in the first six months of2Gncreased 2.8 percent, with an increase in écdacal-currency
sales partially offset by divestiture and foreigmrency translation impacts. Total company orgémial-currency sales
increased 4.0 percent, with growth in all busirseggments except Consumer. All five of 3M’s busirseggments
achieved operating income margins in excess ofet&gmt. Worldwide operating income margins forfitst six
months of 2017 were 25.5 percent, compared to [2&r@ent for the first six months of 2016, helpedalnet benefit

from divestiture gains, net of lost operating inegipartially offset by incremental strategic invesnts.

In the first quarter of 2016, 3M completed the s#Hléhe remaining portions of its library systemssiness. Also, in the
first quarter of 2016, 3M divested the assets ofs3plessurized polyurethane foam adhesives bus{f@sserly known

as Polyfoam). These businesses were formerly painedCompany’s Safety and Graphics business ashastnial
business, respectively. Additional acquisition dnstiture impacts that impacted six months entiew 30, 2017

results are provided in the preceding second gudigeussion.
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Sales by geographic area:

Percent change information compares the secondeqand first six months of 2017 with the samequisilast year,
unless otherwise indicated. From a geographic pets, any references to EMEA refer to Europe,diicEast and
Africa on a combined basis. Additional discussidg@ographic area impacts by business segmentiéded in the
Performance by Business Segment section.

Three months ended June 30, 2017

Europe, Latin
United Asia Middle East America/ Other
States Pacific & Africa Canada Unallocated Worldwide

Net salesmillions) $3,127 $2,322 $ 1605 $ 757 $ Q) $ 7,810

% of worldwide sales 40.0% 29.7% 20.6% 9.7% — 100.0%
Components of net sales change:
Volume — organic 23% 10.7% 2.00% 3.5% — 3.8%
Price (0.4 (0.7 0.4 0.2 — (0.3
Organic local-currency sales 1.9 10.0 (1.6) 3.7 — 3.5
Divestitures (1.4 (0.4, (0.8 (1.3 — (2.0
Translation — (1.3) (1.2) 0.1 — (0.6)
Total sales change 0.5% 8.3% (3.6% 2.5% — 1.9%
Total sales change:
Industrial 3.2% 4.7% (06)% 1.8% — 25%
Safety and Graphics (2.2% 4.8% B.7% (1.4% — (0.9%
Health Care 3.4% 6.3% 5.9% 7.6% — 1.8%
Electronics and Energy 1.7% 14.9% (8.9% 1.3% — 7.5%
Consumer (0.)% 6.0% 5.8)% 6.7% — 0.5%
Organic local-currency sales change:
Industrial 4.3% 6.8% 0.8% 1.8% — 3.8%
Safety and Graphics 1.9% 8.5% 06% 32% — 3.2%
Health Care 3.4% 7.6% (4.1% 7.8% — 25%
Electronics and Energy 0.1% 15.7% 8.8)% 1.4% — 8.4%
Consumer (0.7% 6.6% (5.0% 6.5% — 0.7%

Additional information beyond what is included hetpreceding table is as follows:

* In Asia Pacific, where 3M'’s Electronics and Enebgiginess is concentrated, sales benefited fromgttrened
demand across most market segments in consumémoeles. Total sales in China/Hong Kong grew 13
percent and Japan grew 4 percent. On an orgardtdoicrency sales basis, China/Hong Kong grew 1Zere
and Japan grew 8 percent.

* In EMEA, Central/East Europe and Middle East/Afriotal sales decreased 3 percent, as organic local-
currency sales and divestiture impacts reduced ggmfevth by 2 percent each, partially offset byefgn
currency translation impacts. West Europe totasdeclined 4 percent, as both organic local-cayrsales
and foreign currency translation reduced sales tirdoy 2 percent each.

* In Latin America/Canada, total sales increasedr6gue in Mexico, driven by organic local-currenees
growth of 8 percent. In Canada, total sales dedlihgercent, with organic local-currency sales ghoof 3
percent offset by foreign currency translation divestiture impacts. In Brazil total sales growftia percent
was driven by organic local-currency sales growith percent and foreign currency translation.

Selling prices decreased 0.3 percent. Strong volgnoeth in electronics had a negative impact ongyrplus 3M had
less price growth in Latin America, as currenciesevmore stable versus the U.S. dollar.
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Foreign currency translation reduced year-on-yakassby 0.6 percent, with translation-related sdéxseases in both
Asia Pacific and EMEA. In Asia Pacific, the U.Slldowas weaker compared to the second quarte@bé Dy 4
percent versus both the Japanese Yen and the €hnes. In EMEA, the U.S. dollar was weaker comgdoethe
second quarter of 2016 by 9 percent versus thesBftound, while the Euro was flat.

Six months ended June 30, 2017

Europe, Latin
United Asia Middle East America/ Other
States Pacific & Africa Canada  Unallocated Worldwide

Net salis (millions) $6,068 $4,755 $ 3,182 $1,493 $ (3) $ 15,495

% of worldwide sales 39.2% 30.7% 20.5% 9.6% — 100.0%
Components of net sales change:
Volume — organic 19% 10.4% 0.6% 2.1% — 4.1%
Price (0.3 (0.4 0.4 1.0 — (0.1
Organic local-currency sales 1.6 10.0 1.0 3.1 — 4.0
Divestitures 1.1 (0.2 (0.4, (0.9 — (0.7
Translation — (0.7) (2.5) 2.1 — (0.5)
Total sales change 0.5% 9.1% (1.9% 4.3% — 2.8%
Total sales change:
Industrial 38% 6.0% — % 28% — 3.4%
Safety and Graphics (0.3% 5.0% (0.4% 15% — 12%
Health Care 28% 6.6% (49% 10.2% — 21%
Electronics and Energy 0.1% 16.1% (4.1% 1.8% — 9.3%
Consumer (2.6)% 7.4% (4.9)9% 7.6% — (0.1)%
Organic local-currency sales change:
Industrial 5.0% 7.3% 2.9% 1.1% — 4.8%
Safety and Graphics 27% 7.1% 37% 27% — 4.0%
Health Care 2.8% 7.3% 1.7% 7.7% — 2.8%
Electronics and Energy 14% 16.6% (3.00% 06% — 10.0%
Consumer (2.6% 6.7% (2.8% 45% — (0.3%

Additional information beyond what is included hetpreceding table is as follows:

* In Asia Pacific, where 3M’s Electronics and Enebygsiness is concentrated, sales benefited fromgitrened
demand across most market segments in consuménmoeies. Total sales in China/Hong Kong grew 11
percent and Japan grew 9 percent. On an orgarat-docrency sales basis, China/Hong Kong grew X6que
and Japan grew 11 percent.

* In EMEA, Central/East Europe and Middle East/Afriotal sales and organic local-currency were fiést
Europe total sales declined 2 percent, as organal-currency sales growth of 1 percent was maa tffset
by foreign currency translation.

e In Latin America/Canada, total sales increasedr2que in Mexico, as organic local-currency salesagh of 8
percent was partially offset by foreign curren@nslation and divestitures. In Canada, total sgles 1
percent, helped by organic local-currency salestir@f 3 percent. In Brazil total sales growth 6ffdercent
was driven by foreign currency translation, whitganic local-currency sales increased 2 percent.

Foreign currency translation reduced year-on-yakessy 0.5 percent, with the translation-relatgddsincrease in
Latin America/Canada more than offset by the desggeé& EMEA and Asia Pacific.
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Managing currency risks:

As discussed above, the stronger U.S. dollar hahative impact on sales and earnings in bothabersl quarter and
first six months of 2017 compared to the same pdest year. 3M utilizes a number of tools to hedgeency risk
related to earnings. 3M uses natural hedges suphicasg, productivity, hard currency and hard emcy-indexed
billings, and localizing source of supply. 3M alsges financial hedges to mitigate currency riskhincase of more
liquid currencies, 3M hedges a portion of its aggte exposure, using a 12, 24 or 36 month horidepending on the
currency in question. For less liquid currencig@sticial hedging is frequently more expensive wikbre limitations on
tenor. Thus this risk is largely managed via lagagrational actions using natural hedging tooldissussed above. In
either case, 3M’s hedging approach is designedtigate a portion of foreign currency risk and redwolatility,
ultimately allowing time for 3M’s businesses topead to changes in the marketplace.

Financial condition:

3M generated $2.630 billion of operating cash flamvthe first six months of 2017, an increase d $@llion when
compared to the first six months of 2016. Refdh®section entitled “Financial Condition and Lidjty” later in
MD&A for a discussion of items impacting cash flows

In February 2016, 3M’s Board of Directors authodizbe repurchase of up to $10 billion of 3M’s oatsting common
stock, with no pre-established end date. In thet §ix months of 2017, the Company purchased $illi@nbof its own
stock, compared to $2.1 billion of stock purchasdbe first six months of 2016. As of June 30, 204pproximately
$6.0 billion remained available under the Febri2i§6 authorization. The Company expects to purctidsebillion to
$3.5 billion of its own stock in 2017. In Febru@®17, 3M’'s Board of Directors declared a first-qgaa2017 dividend
of $1.175 per share, an increase of 6 percent.mhiked the 59th consecutive year of dividend iases for 3M. In
May 2017, 3M’s Board of Directors declared a secguarter 2017 dividend of $1.175 per share.

3M currently has an AA- credit rating with a stablglook from Standard & Poor’s and has an Al dreding with a
stable outlook from Moody’s Investors Service. TBmmpany generates significant ongoing cash flowhasdproven
access to capital markets funding throughout bssicgcles.

3M expects to contribute approximately $300 milltors5500 million of cash to its global defined bfingension and
postretirement plans in 2017. The Company doesiant a required minimum cash pension contributigigation for
its U.S. plans in 2017.

Year 2017 announced acquisitions (not closed adwfie 30, 2017):

In March 2017, 3M announced that it entered int@agreement to acquire Scott Safety from Johnsorr@srfor $2.0
billion, subject to closing and other adjustmeffitsis transaction is expected to close in the setatidof 2017 and will
be reflected within the Company’s Safety and Grepbusiness. Refer to Note 2 for additional details

Year 2017 announced divestitures (not closed aswfe 30, 2017):

In June 2017, 3M announced that it has enteredsimtagreement to sell its electronic monitoringitess to an affiliate
of Apax Partners, for $200 million, net of cashdsahd subject to closing and other adjustments fFansaction is

expected to close in the second half of 2017 atidbwireported within the Company’s Safety and Grep business.
Refer to Note 2 for additional details.
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Divestitures and Strategic Investments:

In both the second quarter and first six monthaQif7, the Company continued to execute on accelgratvestments
in growth initiatives and footprint optimizatiom hddition, the Company divested certain businegséiscontinued to
focus its portfolio on opportunities that createajer value for its shareholders. As shown belbesé divestitures and
strategic investments led to a net year-on-yeaefitesf approximately $0.33 per diluted share afdl$ per diluted
share, respectively, for the three and six montised June 30, 2017.

Three months ended June 30, 2017 Six months ended June 30, 2017

Impact per Impact per
Divestiture impacts and strategic investments netdnefit/(cost) (in diluted share Pre-tax diluted share
millions, except per share amounts) Pre-tax impact after-tax impact after-tax
Divestiture impacts:
2017 divestiture gains $ 461 $ 490
Less: prior year divestiture gains — (40)
Year-on-year lost operating income from divested
businesses (10) (12)
Year-on-year divestiture impacts, net of lost ofinga
income $ 451 % 0.57 $ 438 $ 0.55
Strategic investments:
2017 portfolio and footprint optimization activisie
Restructuring actions and exit activities $ (99) $ (123
Asset charges and accelerated depreciation (36) (116)
Other costs (15) (15)
Less: prior year portfolio and footprint optimizati
activities 11 15
Year-on-year portfolio and footprint optimization (139 $ (0.20 (239 $ (0.30
Incremental year-on-year growth initiatives (39) (75)
Total incremental strategic investments $ (178 $ (0.24 $ (314 $ (0.40
Year-onyear divestiture impacts and strategic investm
net benefit/(cost) 273 $ 033 $ 124  $ 0.15

The total pre-tax year-on-year divestiture impaats,of strategic investments from the table abave further detailed

below by business group:

Three months ended

Six months ended

(Millions) June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017

Industrial $ (60, $ (102
Safety and Graphics 439 455
Health Care 27 (45)
Electronics and Energy (5) (73)
Consumer (56 (75)
Corporate and Unallocated (18) (36)

Total pretax divestiture gains, net of strategiestments $ 273  $ 124

During the second half of 2017, the Company witlagnize additional portfolio and footprint optimiian charges
related to accelerated depreciation from earlidr72@ctions. In addition, the Company also antigpatdditional

incremental strategic investments, largely footpratated, during the same period. These actiombated are expected

to have a $0.20 to $0.25 per diluted share impagnd the second half of 2017.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Net Sales:

Refer to the preceding sections entitled “Salesagp@tating income by business segment” and “Sald®perating
income by geographic area” for discussion of selfesge.

Operating Expenses:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,

(Percent of net sales) 2017 2016 Change 2017 0l Change
Cost of sales 51.2% 49.5% 1.7% 50.9% 49.6% 1.3%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 20.6 20.4 0.2 20.7 20.6 0.1
Research, development and related expense: 6.1 5.7 0.4 6.1 5.9 0.2
Gain on sale of businesses (5.9) — (5.9 (3.2) (0.3) (2.9)
Operating income 28.0% 24.4% 3.6% 25.5% 242% 1.3%

3M expects global defined benefit pension and ptistment expense in 2017 (before settlementsqitments, special
termination benefits and other) to increase by exiprately $74 million pre-tax when compared to 20d6ich impacts
cost of sales; selling, general and administraxgenses (SG&A); and research, development antbdeéxpenses
(R&D). Refer to 3M’s Current Report on Form 8-K eéadtMay 4, 2017 (MD&A section entitled Critical Aaoating
Estimates — Pension and Postretirement ObligatmisNote 11, Pension and Postretirement Benefitspkar
background concerning the change to the spot giatde approach and other factors that will impaetgion and
postretirement expenses in 2017. The year-on-yeaease in defined benefit pension and postretineewpense for
the second quarter and first six months of 2017 $22smillion and $44 million, respectively.

The Company is investing in an initiative calledsimess transformation, with these investments itipgcost of sales,
SG&A, and R&D. Business transformation encompa#se®ngoing multi-year phased implementation oéaterprise
resource planning (ERP) system on a worldwide basisvell as changes in processes and internaiextservice
delivery across 3M.

In both the first and second quarters of 2017tesjia investments in growth initiatives, portfolctions and footprint
optimization, in addition to gains on divestiturespacted 3M’s operating expenses. The table beddlects actual
amounts within the period and does not includeyaar-on-year impacts.

Three months ended Six months ended
(Millions) June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017
Cost of sales $ 119 % 202
Selling, general and administrative expenses 70 128
Research, development and related charges 8 9
Gain on sale of businesses (461) (490)
Total $ (264 $ (151

Cost of Sales:

Cost of sales includes manufacturing, engineermyfeeight costs.

Cost of sales, measured as a percent of salesasent in the second quarter due to charges reta8¥’s optimization
of its portfolio and supply chain footprint, for@igurrency effects (net of hedge gains), higheindefbenefit pension
expense, and decreases in selling prices of OceperThis was partially offset by raw materialtodsflation, which
was favorable by approximately 1 percent year-carye

Cost of sales, measured as a percent of salesaset in the first six months of 2017 due to ineetal strategic
investments in productivity and portfolio actiofsreign currency effects (net of hedge gains), laigtier defined
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benefit pension expense, in addition to the op@iin charges in the second quarter of 2017 agitedcearlier. This
was partially offset by raw material cost deflatiarhich was favorable by approximately 1.5 pergeratr-on-year.
Selling prices decreased net sales year-on-ye@rlbgercent in the first six months of 2017.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses:

SG&A in dollars increased 3.0 percent and 3.7 pdricethe second quarter and first six months dfZ20espectively,
when compared to the same period last year, impdténcremental strategic investments, optimizatibarges, and
higher defined benefit pension expense.

Research, Development and Related Expenses:

R&D in dollars increased $36 million and $57 mitli;m the second quarter and first six months of720é&spectively,
compared to the same period last year. 3M contina@avest in its key initiatives, including R&Draed at disruptive
innovation programs with the potential to creatérely new markets and disrupt existing markets.

Gain on Sale of Businesses:

In January 2017, 3M completed the sale of asskttecktto its safety prescription eyewear business@YA Vision
Care. 3M received proceeds of $53 million for tiémsaction and recognized, net of assets solisdacdion and other
costs, a pre-tax gain of $29 million, which wasared within the Company’s Safety and Graphics ress.

In May 2017, 3M completed the sale of its identitgnagement business to Gemalto N.V. In June 2 &dBnpleted
the sale of its tolling and automated license/nunplieete recognition business to Neology, Inc. 3idereed proceeds of
$833 million, or $809 million net of cash sold, amdlected a pre-tax gain of $461 million as a hestithese two
divestitures in the second quarter of 2017, whiels veported within the Company’s Safety and Grapbisiness. For
more details, refer to Note 2.

In the first quarter of 2016, 3M completed the sHléhe remainder of the assets of 3M’s librarytegss business to One
Equity Partners Capital Advisors L.P. (OEP). Alsdhe first quarter of 2016, 3M completed the sdliés pressurized
polyurethane foam adhesives business (formerly knasvPolyfoam) to Innovative Chemical Products @rau

portfolio company of Audax Private Equity. 3M regsil proceeds of $56 million for these transactamd recognized a
pre-tax gain of $40 million as a result of these tlivestitures in the first quarter of 2016. Thbsasinesses were
formerly part of the Company’s Safety and Graphigsiness and Industrial business, respectivelyerRefNote 2 in
3M’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 4, 20&4/hi¢h updated 3M’s 2016 Annual Report on Form 10fd€)

more information on 3M’s acquisitions and divesti
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Operating Income:

3M uses operating income as one of its primaryriass segment performance measurement tools. Refer table
below for a reconciliation of operating income niasgfor the three months and six months ended 30n2017 versus
the same periods last year.

Three months ended  Six months ended

(Percent of net sales) June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017
Same period last year 24.4% 24.2%
Increase/(decrease) in operating income marginialue

Organic volume/other productivity 0.6 0.9
Selling price and raw material impact 0.1 0.3
Foreign exchange impacts (0.5 (0.4
Pension and postretirement benefit costs (0.3) (0.3)
Incremental strategic investments (2.3 (2.0
Divestiture gains, net of lost operating income 6.0 2.8

Current period 28.0% 25.5%

Operating income margins increased 3.6 percentaigeésgn the second quarter of 2017 and increasgg@drcentage
points in the first six months of 2017 when complaeethe same periods last year. Items that redapedating income
margins included year-on-year incremental strategiestments in growth, productivity and portfoiotions and
charges related to 3M’s optimization of its poritichnd supply chain footprint. Additional items thaeduced operating
margins included foreign currency effects (neteddpe gains), and higher year-on-year defined bigmefision expense.
3M benefited from year-on-year divestiture gairet, of lost operating income (refer to Note 2), leighrganic local-
currency sales growth and productivity. 3M alsodfed from lower raw material costs.

Interest Expense and Income:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Interest expense $ 54 $ 38 $ 99 $ 85
Interest income (12) (@) (20) (12)
Total $ 42 % 31 $ 79 $ 73

Interest expense was higher in the second quartefist six months of 2017 compared to the samiogs last year,
largely due to higher U.S. average debt balancésaiher interest rates.

Provision for Income Taxes:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
(Percent of pre-tax income) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Effective tax rate 26.0% 29.6% 25.0% 28.2%

The effective tax rate for the second quarter df2@as 26.0 percent, compared to 29.6 percentise¢hond quarter of
2016, a decrease of 3.6 percentage points. Thetieffeax rate for the first six months of 2017 2&s0 percent,
compared to 28.2 percent in the first six month2@if6, a decrease of 3.2 percentage points. Thegeban the rates
between years are impacted by many factors, asildeddurther in Note 6.

The Company currently anticipates its 2017 fulltyix rate will be 26.0 to 27.0 percent. The rate ¢ary from quarter
to quarter due to discrete items, such as the=gsdtht of income tax audits and changes in tax &awlsemployee share-
based payment accounting; as well as recurringfacsuch as geographic mix of income before taresforeign
currency effects.
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Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016
Net income attributable to noncontrolling inter $ 2 9 2 $ 5 % 5

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interesiresents the elimination of the income or logghatable to non-3M
ownership interests in 3M consolidated entitiese phimary noncontrolling interest relates to 3Mitntdimited, of
which 3M’s effective ownership is 75 percent.

Currency Effects:

3M estimates that year-on-year currency effectduding hedging impacts, decreased pre-tax incoyredd million
and $79 million for the three and six months endiete 30, 2017, respectively. This estimate incltde®ffect of
translating profits from local currencies into Udsllars; the impact of currency fluctuations oa thansfer of goods
between 3M operations in the United States andaab@nd transaction gains and losses, includinigatere
instruments designed to reduce foreign currenchaxge rate risks and any impacts from swapping Xexlan
bolivars into U.S. dollars. 3M estimates that yearyear derivative and other transaction gainslassks decreased
pre-tax income by $28 million and $65 million ftvetthree and six months ended June 30, 2017, tesggc

Significant Accounting Policies and Critical Accoumg Estimates:
Information regarding new accounting standardadfuded in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financiatedtents. In

addition, refer to the Critical Accounting Estimsitgection within the MD&A of 3M’s Current Report &orm 8-K
dated May 4, 2017 (which updated 3M’s 2016 Annugp&tt on Form 10-K).
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PERFORMANCE BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

Disclosures relating to 3M’s business segmentpareided in Note 14. Effective in the first quartdr2017, as part of
3M'’s continuing effort to improve the alignmentitsf businesses around markets and customers, tmp&ty made the
following changes:

Integration of former Renewable Energy Division
» 3M'’s former Renewable Energy Division (RED) hasrbegegrated into existing divisions within the
Electronics and Energy business segment and Safetyraphics business segment. 3M is committed to
leadership in sustainability and to enabling theastement of energy solutions into the future.draéng
RED'’s offerings into larger divisions already sexyithese segments will provide increased scaléaitd on
strength by leveraging 3M'’s existing brands, gavtarket capabilities, and relationships to supportvh
objectives.

Creation of Automotive and Aerospace Solutions Bioin

» 3M created the Automotive and Aerospace Solutionss@n, which combined the former Automotive
Division and Aerospace and Commercial Transpontaiitvision, which were both within the Industrial
business segment. Combining the strengths alorgthdt deep industry knowledge of each business will
enable this new division to utilize shared techgglplatforms and processes to deliver a broadesfset
innovative solutions, along with world-class quahind service to 3M’s customers. This combinatidhielp
accelerate the Company’s profitable growth and etanddevance across the automotive, aerospace and
commercial transportation industries.

Consolidation of U.S. customer account activitympacting dual credit reporting

e The Company consolidated its customer accountifctivthe U.S. into more centralized sales distid his
improved alignment reduces the complexity for costs when interacting with multiple businesses iwith
3M, creating a better customer experience. 3M ssisegment reporting measures include dual ¢eedit
business segments for certain U.S. sales and dedgterating income. This dual credit is based oithvh
business segment provides customer account actitityrespect to a particular product sold in th& Urhe
alignment of U.S. customer accounts to fewer, niocased sales districts changed the attributioshuad credit
across 3M’s business segments.

Business segment information presented hereinctsftbe impact of these changes for all periodsemied. 3M
manages its operations in five business segmehtsrdportable segments are Industrial; Safety aagltcs;
Electronics and Energy; Health Care; and Consumer.

Corporate and Unallocated:

In addition to these five business segments, 3liyas<ertain costs to “Corporate and Unallocatedich is presented
separately in the preceding business segmentsaatlen Note 14. Corporate and Unallocated incliadesriety of
miscellaneous items, such as corporate investnans @nd losses, certain derivative gains and $osgetain
insurance-related gains and losses, certain litigand environmental expenses, corporate restingtaharges and
certain under- or over-absorbed costs (e.g. penstook-based compensation) that the Company detesmot to
allocate directly to its business segments. Bectuse&ategory includes a variety of miscellaneiterns, it is subject to
fluctuation on a quarterly and annual basis.

Corporate and Unallocated operating expenses deatdry $40 million and increased by $1 milliontie second
quarter and first six months of 2017, respectivelyen compared to the same period last year. Tdmndequarter of
2016 included an unfavorable 2016 arbitration gilwhich benefited year-on-year comparisons. I blo¢ first and
second quarters of 2017, a portion of the severaotiens were reflected in Corporate and Unallataie addition,
3M'’s defined benefit pension and postretiremenieasge allocation to Corporate and Unallocated isa@dy $9
million and $19 million, respectively, in the sedoquarter and first six months of 2017 when compéoethe same
periods last year.
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Operating Business Segments:

Information related to 3M’s business segmentsHerdecond quarter and first six months of 2017281 is presented
in the tables that follow. Organic local-curreneyes include both organic volume impacts plussgliirice impacts.
Acquisition impacts, if any, are measured sepaydtelthe first twelve months post-transaction. Teestiture
impacts, if any, foreign currency translation imisaend total sales change are also provided fdr leasiness segment.
Any references to EMEA relate to Europe, Middle tezasl Africa on a combined basis.

Refer to the preceding “Sales and operating incbyngeographic area” section for organic local-cucgesales growth
by business segment within major geographic areas.

Industrial Business:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
2017 2016 2017 2016
Sales (millions) $ 2720 $ 2,654 $ 5429 $ 5,253
Sales change analysis:
Organic local-currency 3.8% (1.3% 4.8% (1.6%
Acquisitions — 2.8 — 2.4
Divestitures (0.6, (0.2 (0.7, (0.2,
Translation (0.7) (1.3) (0.7) (2.1)
Total sales change 2.5% — % 3.4% (1.5%
Operating income (millions) $ 523 % 620 $ 1,148 $ 1,242
Percent change (15.6%% 1.2% (7.6)% 2.4%
Percent of sales 19.2% 23.4% 21.2% 23.7%

The Industrial segment serves a broad range ofetgr&uch as automotive original equipment manufac{OEM)

and automotive aftermarket (auto body shops ardl)etlectronics, appliance, paper and printiregkaging, food and
beverage, and construction. Industrial productludetapes, a wide variety of coated, non-wovenkzontied abrasives,
adhesives, advanced ceramics, sealants, specialéyiais, 3M purification (filtration products),odure systems for
personal hygiene products, acoustic systems predaicti components and products that are used mahefacture,
repair and maintenance of automotive, marine, @irend specialty vehicles. 3M is also a leadirapgl supplier of
precision grinding technology serving customerthmarea of hard-to-grind precision applicationmaustrial,
automotive, aircraft and cutting tools. 3M develapsl produces advanced technical ceramics for ddin@n
applications in the automotive, oil and gas, satatustrial, electronics and defense industries.

Second Quarter 2017 results:

Sales in Industrial totaled $2.7 billion, up 2.5gent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-currency sateseased 3.8 percent,
divestitures reduced sales by 0.6 percent, anigfoirrency translation reduced sales by 0.7 perce

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales growth was led by advanced materials, auteenahd aerospace solutions, and industrial adbsgind
tapes, while separations and purification sciemieetined.
» Abrasives and automotive aftermarket also showssitipe growth.

Acquisitions and divestitures:
* In October 2016, 3M sold the assets of its temygpoaotective films business.
* InJanuary 2016, 3M completed its sale of the asse3M’s pressurized polyurethane foam adhesivsiless
(formerly known as Polyfoam).
e Acquisition sales growth in 2016 related to the Astg2015 acquisition of Membrana, a leading praviafe
microporous membranes and modules for filtratiothinlife sciences, industrial, and specialty segme
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Operating income:
e Operating income margins decreased 4.2 percentagtspas incremental strategic investments deeckas
margins by 2.3 percentage points. In addition,ifpreurrency impacts, sales mix, and select prieictipns to
drive volume growth all decreased margins.

First Six Months 2017 results:

Sales in Industrial totaled $5.4 billion, up 3.4qent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-currency sateseased 4.8 percent,
divestitures reduced sales by 0.7 percent, anigfoirrency translation reduced sales by 0.7 perce

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales growth was led by advanced materials, auteenahd aerospace solutions, industrial adhesinds a
tapes, abrasives, and automotive aftermarket, wbif@rations and purification sciences was flat.

Acquisitions and divestitures:
* In October 2016, 3M sold the assets of its tempygoaotective films business.
* InJanuary 2016, 3M completed its sale of the asse3M’s pressurized polyurethane foam adhesiusiless
(formerly known as Polyfoam).
» Acquisition sales growth in 2016 related to the Ast2015 acquisition of Membrana, a leading pravafe
microporous membranes and modules for filtratiothinlife sciences, industrial, and specialty segme

Operating income:

e Operating income margins decreased 2.5 percentagtspas divestiture gains related to the firsirtgr 2016
sale of the Polyfoam business resulted in a natgaag/ear operating income margin reduction of 0.6
percentage points. In addition, incremental stiatigyyestments decreased first six months margyns.8®
percentage points.

Safety and Graphics Business:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
2017 2016 2017 2016
Sales (millions) $ 1,547 $ 1561 $ 3,074 $ 3,038
Sales change analysis:
Organic local-currency 3.2% 2.4% 4.0% 2.5%
Acquisitions — 6.6 — 6.6
Divestitures (3.4 (2.2 (2.1 (2.2,
Translation (0.7) (2.2) (0.7) (3.1)
Total sales change (0.9% 4.6% 1.2% 3.8%
Operating income (millions) $ 852 % 421 % 1251 $ 780
Percent change 102.0% 13.2% 60.3% 8.3%
Percent of sales 55.1% 27.0% 40.7% 25.7%

The Safety and Graphics segment serves a broad odmgarkets that increase the safety, securitypaoductivity of
people, facilities and systems. Major product affgs include personal protection products, suctesgiratory, hearing,
eye and fall protection equipment; traffic safedjusions, such as retroreflective sign sheetingne®rcial solutions,
including commercial graphics sheeting and systamthitectural design solutions for surfaces, dadring and
protection products for commercial establishmeatst roofing granules for asphalt shingles.
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Second Quarter 2017 results:

Sales in Safety and Graphics totaled $1.5 billamwn 0.9 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic localreocy sales
increased 3.2 percent, divestitures reduced sgl8spercent, and foreign currency translatioruced sales by 0.7
percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:

» Sales growth was led by personal safety, as 3Mrexqpeed strong demand around the world, with paldic
strength in Asia Pacific and the U.S.

» Sales in commercial solutions were flat.

e The transportation safety business declined, ag@Minues to take actions to improve the portfdiothe
second quarter of 2017, 3M finalized the sale ofdentity management and tolling and automated
license/number plate recognition businesses, andwumted the exit of its electronic monitoring basis.

« Sales in roofing granules declined, primarily doi¢dugh year-on-year comparisons.

Acquisitions and divestitures:
» Acquisition sales growth in 2016 reflected the asitjon of Capital Safety in August 2015. Capitaif&y is a
leading global provider of fall protection equiprhen
* InJanuary 2017, 3M sold its safety prescriptioavegar business.
* In May 2017, 3M closed on the sale and transfeaotrol of its identity management business. InreJ2@17,
3M completed the sale of its tolling and automdieehse/number plate recognition business. 3M i
pre-tax gain of approximately $461 million as autesf these two divestitures.

Operating income:
e Operating income margins increased 28.1 percemtaiggs, as divestiture gains year-on-year wereaalbrt
offset by acquisition charges and incremental agiiatinvestments, which combined resulted in sopetating
income margin benefit of 28.0 percentage points.

Six Months 2017 results:

Sales in Safety and Graphics totaled $3.1 billign1.2 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-cnesesales increased
4.0 percent, divestitures reduced sales by 2.leperand foreign currency translation reduced dayd3.7 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales growth was led by personal safety and roafiagules, as both transportation safety and cowiater
solutions were flat.

Acquisitions and divestitures:
* InJanuary 2017, 3M sold its safety prescriptioavegar business.
» Acquisition sales growth in 2016 reflected the asitjon of Capital Safety in August 2015. Capitaif&y is a
leading global provider of fall protection equiprhen
* In the first quarter of 2016, 3M divested the remdair of the library systems business.

Operating income:
e Operating income margins increased 15.0 percemaiggs, largely driven by year-on-year divestitgeens
that were partially offset by acquisition chargad éancremental strategic investments, which redutiea net
operating income margin benefit of 14.9 percentagjats.

In March 2017, 3M announced that it entered intagmeement to acquire Scott Safety from Johnsortr@erfor $2.0

billion, subject to closing and other adjustmefiitsis transaction is expected to close in the setatfdof 2017 and will
be reflected within the Company’s Safety and Grepbusiness. Refer to Note 2 for additional details
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Health Care Business:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
2017 2016 2017 2016
Sales (millions) $ 1,440 $ 1,414 $ 2863 $ 2,805
Sales change analysis:
Organic local-currency 2.5% 5.0% 2.8% 5.6%
Acquisitions — — — 0.4
Translation (0.7 (1.8 (0.7 (2.4
Total sales change 1.8% 3.2% 2.1% 3.6%
Operating income (millions) $ 412 $ 462 $ 846 $ 919
Percent change (10.6% 4.5% (7.9% 7.9%
Percent of sales 28.6% 32.6% 29.5% 32.8%

The Health Care segment serves markets that inchadical clinics and hospitals, pharmaceuticalataleand
orthodontic practitioners, health information sysse and food manufacturing and testing. Produaissanvices
provided to these and other markets include meditdlsurgical supplies, skin health and infectimvention products,
inhalation and transdermal drug delivery systeme, @are solutions (dental and orthodontic produttsalth
information systems, and food safety products.

Second Quarter 2017 results:

Sales in Health Care totaled $1.4 billion, up le&pnt in U.S. dollars. Organic local-currency satereased 2.5
percent and foreign currency translation reducéskday 0.7 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales increased in drug delivery systems, foodysadad medical consumables (which is comprisetthef
critical and chronic care and infection preventiusinesses).
e Sales were flat in both health information systema oral care.
* In developing markets, Health Care organic locatency sales growth was led by China/Hong Kong and
Latin America.

Operating income:
* Operating income margins decreased 4.0 percentigts fyear-on-year, as incremental strategic imaests,
primarily related to accelerating future growth oppnities, reduced margins by 2.0 percentage point

First Six Months 2017 results:

Sales in Health Care totaled $2.9 billion, up Zicpnt in U.S. dollars. Organic local-currency satereased 2.8
percent and foreign currency translation reducéssday 0.7 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
e Sales increased in drug delivery systems, foodysadeal care, and medical consumables (which isprised
of the critical and chronic care and infection gmation businesses).
» Sales declined in health information systems.

Acquisitions:
» Acquisition sales growth in 2016 related to the 8ha2015 purchase of Ivera Medical Corp. Iverais a
manufacturer of health care products that disirdect protect devices used for access into a patient
bloodstream.
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Operating income:
e Operating income margins decreased year-on-yearcesmental strategic investments, primarily redato
accelerating future growth opportunities, reducedgims by 1.6 percentage points.

Electronics and Energy Business:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
2017 2016 2017 2016
Sales (millions) $ 1,214 $ 1,129 $ 2424 $ 2,218
Sales change analysis:
Organic local-currency 8.4% (9.7% 10.0% (11.1%
Divestitures (0.4) — (0.3) —
Translation (0.5 (0.8 (0.4 (1.3
Total sales change 7.5% (10.5)% 9.3% (12.4)%
Operating income (millions) $ 301 % 217 % 526 $ 412
Percent change 38.8% (20.0% 27.6% (23.9%
Percent of sales 24.8% 19.2% 21.7% 18.6%

The Electronics and Energy segment includes saolstibat improve the dependability, cost-effectivwsnand
performance of electronic devices; electrical paiduincluding infrastructure protection; telecommuations networks;
and power generation and distribution. This segte@héctronics solutions include optical film satuts for the
electronic display industry; high-performance fluahd abrasives; high-temperature and display tépaible circuits,
which use electronic packaging and interconnedgcohnology; and touch systems products. This setjisnemergy
solutions include pressure sensitive tapes andggslectrical insulation; infrastructure produttat provide both
protection and detection solutions; a wide arrafflugr-optic and copper-based telecommunicatiossesys; and
renewable energy component solutions for the soldrwind power industries.

Second Quarter 2017 results:

Sales in Electronics and Energy totaled $1.2 lnilligp 7.5 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic locakency sales
increased 8.4 percent, divestitures reduced sglésdlpercent, and foreign currency translatioruced sales by 0.5
percent.

Total sales within the electronics-related busiessgsere up 14 percent, while energy-related busésesales declined 4
percent. Total sales increased 15 percent in AsiiP.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:

» Sales increased 15 percent in 3M'’s electronicgedlbusinesses, with increases in both displaynatend
systems and electronics materials solutions, abukmesses drove increased inclusion in OEM piaiddan
addition to strengthened demand in consumer elgicso

» Sales declined 3 percent in 3M’s energy-relatedni@sses, as sales were flat in electrical marketdaclined
in telecommunications.

» Sales increased 16 percent in Asia Pacific, whits 8lectronics business is concentrated.

Divestitures:
* In December 2016, 3M sold the assets of its cathattery technology out-licensing business, withuad
sales of approximately $10 million.

Operating income:

* Operating income margins increased 5.6 percentaigespdriven by underlying productivity gains rteld to
significant organic local-currency sales growth.
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First Six Months 2017 results:

Sales in Electronics and Energy totaled $2.4 lnilligp 9.3 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic locakency sales
increased 10.0 percent, divestitures reduced b§lés3 percent, and foreign currency translatiatuced sales by 0.4
percent.

Total sales within the electronics-related busiesssere up 16 percent while energy-related busiisedsclined 2
percent. Total sales increased 16 percent in AsiiP.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:

e Salesincreased 17 percent in 3M’s electronicgadlhusinesses, with increases in both displaynmateand
systems and electronics materials solutions, abubmesses drove increased inclusion in OEM piaisan
addition to strengthened demand in consumer elgicso

» Sales declined 1 percent in 3M’s energy-relatedni@sses, as sales growth in electrical marketsmaas than
offset by declines in telecommunications.

» Sales increased 17 percent in Asia Pacific, whit's 8lectronics business is concentrated.

Divestitures:
* In December 2016, 3M sold the assets of its cathattery technology out-licensing business, withuad
sales of approximately $10 million.

Operating income:
e Operating income margins increased 3.1 percentaiggspas benefits from higher organic volume were
partially offset by first half 2017 footprint andgfolio actions. These actions resulted in a yaafear
operating income margin reduction of 3.0 percenfagats.

Consumer Business:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
2017 2016 2017 2016
Sales (millions) $ 1,137 % 1,130 $ 2,179 $ 2,180
Sales change analysis:
Organic local-currency 0.7% 2.5% (0.3% 2.6%
Translation (0.2) (1.0 0.2 (1.8)
Total sales change 0.5% 1.5% (0.1% 0.8%
Operating income (millions) $ 195 $ 281 % 417 % 519
Percent change (30.4)% 8.6% (19.6% 3.9%
Percent of sales 17.2% 24.9% 19.2% 23.8%

The Consumer segment serves markets that inclugrioeer retail, office retail, office business tsimess, home
improvement, drug and pharmacy retail, and othakets. Products in this segment include office $pppoducts,
stationery products, construction and home impragrproducts (do-it-yourself), home care produststective
material products, certain consumer retail perseafdty products, and consumer health care praducts

Second Quarter 2017 results:

Sales in Consumer totaled $1.1 billion, up 0.5 @erin U.S. dollars. Organic local-currency safeséased 0.7 percent,
while foreign currency translation decreased saye8.2 percent.
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On an organic local-currency sales basis:
e Sales grew in home improvement, home care, anduocagrshealth care.
» The stationery and office supplies business detlthee to continued channel inventory adjustmemis)arily
in the U.S. office retail and wholesale market.

Operating income:
» Operating income margins declined year-on-yeapain due to incremental strategic investments, whic
reduced margins by 5.0 percentage points.

First Six Months 2017 results:

Sales in Consumer totaled $2.2 billion, down O.&ceet in U.S. dollars. Organic local-currency saleslined 0.3
percent, while foreign currency translation incexhsales by 0.2 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales grew in home improvement, home care, andicmgrshealth care.
» The stationery and office supplies business detlthes to channel inventory adjustments, primarilyhie U.S.
office retail and wholesale market.

Operating income:
e Operating income margins declined year-on-yeagpair due to incremental strategic investments, kwhic
reduced margins by 3.5 percentage points.

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY

3M continues its transition to a better-optimizegbital structure and is adding leverage at a medsugce. The strength
and stability of 3M’s business model and strong ftash flow capability, together with proven cdpitarkets access,
enable the Company to implement this strategy.dting in 3M’s businesses to drive organic growtmaés the first
priority for capital deployment, including reseawnid development, capital expenditures, and comatzation
capability. Investment in organic growth will bepplemented by complementary acquisitions. 3M wilbacontinue to
return cash to shareholders through dividends hatksepurchases. Sources for cash availabilittydrinited States,
such as ongoing cash flow from operations and adoesapital markets, have historically been sigfficto fund
dividend payments to shareholders and share repseshas well as funding U.S. acquisitions andr dtives as
needed. For those international earnings considerbd reinvested indefinitely, the Company curdseh&s no plans or
intentions to repatriate these funds for U.S. oiemna. However, if these international funds aredesl for operations in
the U.S., 3M would be required to accrue and p&. thxes to repatriate them. See Note 8 in 3M’'s&iReport on
Form 8-K dated May 4, 2017, for further informatiom earnings considered to be reinvested indeffinite

3M’s primary short-term liquidity needs are metihgh cash on hand and U.S. commercial paper issaa8i
believes it will have continuous access to the cencial paper market. 3M’s commercial paper progpammits the
Company to have a maximum of $5 billion outstandiitlp a maximum maturity of 397 days from datessfuance. At
June 30, 2017, there was approximately $50 milliocommercial paper issued and outstanding.

Total Debt:

The Company’s total debt was approximately $11li®hiand $11.7 billion at June 30, 2017 and Delgen81, 2016,
respectively. In May 2016, 3M issued 500 millionr&aggregate principal amount of 5.75-year fixed raedium-term
notes due February 2022 with a coupon rate of @@abd 500 million Euro aggregate principal amoudrit®year
fixed rate medium-term notes due 2031 with a coupd® of 1.50%. In September 2016, 3M issued $6U®M
aggregate principal amount of five-year fixed naedium-term notes due 2021 with a coupon rate@#500, $650
million aggregate principal amount of 10-year fixate medium-term notes due 2026 with a couponaf2e250%,
and $500 million aggregate principal amount of 8dsyfixed rate medium-term notes due 2046 withupoa rate of
3.125%. All of these 2016 issuances were undemg@ium-term notes program (Series F). In June 28W7epaid
$650 million aggregate principal amount of fixeteranedium-term notes. As of June 30, 2017, thé é&mteunt of debt
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issued as part of the medium-term notes programesSE), inclusive of debt issued in 2011, 2012,£2®015 and the
2016 debt referenced above, is approximately $fiillién (utilizing the foreign exchange rates applle at the time of
issuance for the Euro denominated debt). Informatith respect to long-term debt issuances and nitiatufor the
periods presented is included in Note 10 of 3M’sr€ut Report on Form 8-K dated May 4, 2017 (whipdated 3M’s
2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K) .

The strength of 3M’s capital structure and sigifitongoing cash flows provide 3M proven accessapital markets.
Additionally, the Company’s maturity profile is g@gered to help ensure refinancing needs in anyngrear are
reasonable in proportion to the total portfolio. 8itrently has an AA- credit rating with a stablelook from
Standard & Poor’s and has an Al credit rating witable outlook from Moody'’s Investors Servicee Tdompany’s
ongoing transition to a more optimized capital stine, financed with additional low-cost debt, abirhpact 3M’s
credit rating in the future.

Effective February 24, 2017, the Company updatetinell-known seasoned issuer” (WKSI) shelf regison
statement, which registers an indeterminate amofutiébt or equity securities for future issuance sale. This
replaced 3M’s previous shelf registration dated Nly2014. In May 2016, in connection with the WisBelf, 3M
entered into an amended and restated distribugoeeanent relating to the future issuance and &am ime to time)
of the Company’s medium-term notes program (Séf)esp to the aggregate principal amount of $1Boini] which
was an increase from the previous aggregate pehaipount up to $9 billion of the same Series.

In March 2016, 3M amended and restated its exi$hg5 billion five-year revolving credit facilitgxpiring in August
2019 to a $3.75 billion five-year revolving crefiitility expiring in March 2021. This credit agreem includes a
provision under which 3M may request an increasgpab $1.25 billion (at lenders’ discretion), lging the total
facility up to $5.0 billion. This revolving credicility is undrawn at June 30, 2017. Under ther$dillion credit
agreement, the Company is required to maintaiBBE DA to Interest Ratio as of the end of eachdlguarter at not
less than 3.0 to 1. This is calculated (as defingde agreement) as the ratio of consolidated EBAT DA for the four
consecutive quarters then ended to total intesgstrese on all funded debt for the same perioduAe B0, 2017, this
ratio was approximately 43 to 1. Debt covenantsataestrict the payment of dividends. Apart frdra tommitted
facilities, $291 million in stand-alone lettersarédit and bank guarantees were also issued asthnding at June 30,
2017. These lines of credit are utilized in conimectvith normal business activities.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities:

At June 30, 2017, 3M had $2.8 billion of cash, caghivalents and marketable securities, of whighr@xmately $2.7
billion was held by the Company’s foreign subsidiarand approximately $130 million was held by théted States.
These balances are invested in bank instrumentsthed high-quality fixed income securities. At [Retber 31, 2016,
cash, cash equivalents and marketable securitidblgghe Company’s foreign subsidiaries and bylinited States
totaled approximately $2.35 billion and $350 mitljgespectively.

Net Debt (non-GAAP measure):

Net debt is not defined under U.S. GAAP and maybgotomputed the same as similarly titled measused by other
companies. The Company defines net debt as tdvallelss the total of cash, cash equivalents aneicuand long-term
marketable securities. 3M believes net debt is ingdul to investors as 3M considers net debt asddmponents to be
important indicators of liquidity and financial ptien. The following table provides net debt aslahe 30, 2017, and
December 31, 2016.

June 30, December 31,
(Millions) 2017 2016
Total debt $ 11,301 $ 11,650
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and marketabletsgscu 2,811 2,695
Net debt (non-GAAP measure) $ 8,490 $ 8,955
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In the first six months of 2017, net debt decredsefi465 million to a net debt balance of $8.5idil] impacted by the
June 2017 repayment of $650 million aggregate grai@mount of medium-term notes.

Balance Sheet:
3M’s strong balance sheet and liquidity provide @@mpany with significant flexibility to take adviage of numerous
opportunities going forward. The Company will cong to invest in its operations to drive growtltluding continual

review of acquisition opportunities.

The Company uses working capital measures thae @agphasis and focus on certain working capitatas$hese
measures include working capital, accounts recéviaions, and inventory turns.

Working Capital (non-GAAP measure):

(Millions) June 30, 2017 Decemb&l, 201 Change

Current assets $ 12,641 $ 11,726 $ 915
Less: Current liabilities (5,697) (6,219 522
Working capital (non-GAAP measure) $ 6,944 $ 5507 $ 1,437

Various assets and liabilities, including cash ginort-term debt, can fluctuate significantly froramth to month
depending on short-term liquidity needs. Workingita is not defined under U.S. generally accepgiecbunting
principles and may not be computed the same atasiyniitted measures used by other companies.ddm@pany
defines working capital as current assets minuseatfiabilities. Working capital increased $1.43llion compared to
December 31, 2016. Current asset balance changesged working capital by $915 million, drivenibgreases in
accounts receivable, and inventories (discusseleubelow), plus increases in cash. Current ligidlalance changes
increased working capital by $522 million, largelye to decreases in short-term debt, partiallyeotdy increases in
accrued income taxes. 3M believes working capstahéaningful to investors as a measure of opewdtifficiency and
short-term financial health.

Accounts Receivable and Inventory Turns (non-GAAReasures):

Accounts receivable and inventory turns are nonddfunder U.S. generally accepted accounting iple and may
not be computed the same as similarly titled messused by other companies. 3M defines accourds/edate turns as
quarterly net sales multiplied by 4 divided by engdaccounts receivable — net, and defines invertong as quarterly
manufacturing cost multiplied by 4 divided by erglinventory. 3M believes accounts receivable tismaeaningful to
investors as a measure of how efficiently the Campaanages credit and collects from its custom&sinventory
turns calculation purposes, manufacturing cosefsdd as cost of sales less freight and engingeasts. 3M believes
inventory turns is meaningful to investors as asneaof how quickly inventory is sold. Details béte calculations
follow.

Accounts receivable turns (non-GAAP measure)

(Millions, except turns) June 30, 2017 Decembél, 201!

Quarterly net sales $ 7,810 $ 7,329
Ending accounts receivable - net $ 4919 $ 4,392
Accounts receivable turns 6.35 6.67

Inventory turns (non-GAAP measure)
(Millions, except turns)

June 30, 2017

December 31, 2016

Quarterly cost of sales $ 4,007 $ 3,716
Less: Freight and engineering $ 166 $ 160
Manufacturing cost $ 3,841 $ 3,556
Ending inventory $ 3,838 $ 3,385
Inventory turns 4.00 4.20
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Concerning accounts receivable, higher June 20&% sampared to December 2016 sales contributdtetaccounts
receivable increase. On a seasonal basis, bothiatsc@ceivable and inventory turns are usuallhdigt year-end,
driven by typically lower year-end accounts recbleaand inventory balances.

Cash Flows:

Cash flows from operating, investing and financangjvities are provided in the tables that folldadividual amounts
in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows exdideffects of acquisitions, divestitures and excje rate impacts
on cash and cash equivalents, which are presestsgparate line items within the statement of fiasvs. Thus, the
amounts presented in the following operating, itimgsand financing activities tables reflect chamgebalances from
period to period adjusted for these effects.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Six months ended

June 30,

(Millions) 2017 2016
Net income including noncontrolling inter $ 2911 $ 2,571
Depreciation and amortization 818 722
Company pension contributions 277 (95)
Company postretirement contributions (2) (2)
Company pension expense 138 94
Company postretirement expense 24 24
Stock-based compensation expense 206 193
Gain on sale of businesses (490 (40)
Income taxes (deferred and accrued income taxes) 137 (236
Accounts receivable (412 (419)
Inventories (347 (42
Accounts payable (60) (57)
Other — net (16) (168

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2,630 $ 2,545

Cash flows from operating activities can fluctusignificantly from period to period, as pensiondimg decisions, tax
timing differences and other items can significaittipact cash flows.

In the first six months of 2017, cash flows prowdsy operating activities increased $85 million gamed to the same
period last year, with this increase primarily dodower cash taxes, partially offset by the timofgoension
contributions. For total year 2017, the Companyeexpto contribute approximately $300 million td®5million of
cash to its global defined benefit pension andrptistment plans, similar to the $383 million cdmtited for total year
2016. Additional factors that decreased operataghdlows were increases in accounts receivabléraeditories. The
combination of accounts receivable, inventories armbunts payable increased working capital by $8ill#on in the
first six months of 2017, compared to the workiagital increases of $518 million in the first sixnths of 2016.
Additional discussion on working capital changeprisvided earlier in the “Financial Condition anidjlidity” section.
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Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Six months ended

June 30,

(Millions) 2017 2016
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) $ (589, $ (637
Proceeds from sale of PP&E and other assets 13 18
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired — 4
Purchases and proceeds from maturities and sataudfetable

securities and investments, net 136 (61)
Proceeds from sale of businesses, net of cash sold 862 56
Other — net 5 (2)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activ $ 427 $ (630

Investments in property, plant and equipment engleith across many diverse markets, helping tat ipeeluct
demand and increasing manufacturing efficiency.iBésts in renewal and maintenance programs, wectain to

cost reduction, cycle time, maintaining and rengwdarrent capacity, pollution reduction, and compdie. Costs related
to maintenance, ordinary repairs, and certain athers are expensed. 3M also invests in new greagiacity, both
through expansion of current facilities and by dini¢y new facilities. 3M also invests in corporabdratory facilities
and information technology (IT). The Company expe217 capital spending to be in the range of Billidn to $1.5
billion.

Refer to Note 2 for information on acquisitions alidestitures. The Company is actively consideadditional
acquisitions, investments and strategic allianard,from time to time may also divest certain beisses. Proceeds
from sale of businesses in the first six month2Qi7 relate to the divestiture of the assets optlescription safety
eyewear, identity management, and tolling and aatethlicense/number plate recognition businessegnithe Safety
and Graphics business segment.

Purchases of marketable securities and investragigtproceeds from maturities and sale of marketsddarities and
investments are primarily attributable to assetkbécsecurities, certificates of deposit/time degspsiommercial paper,
and other securities, which are classified as albatfor-sale. Refer to Note 7 for more detailswdt8M’s diversified
marketable securities portfolio. Purchases of itmests include additional survivor benefit insurnglus cost method
and equity investments.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Six months ended

June 30,

(Millions) 2017 2016
Change in short-term debt — net $ (113 $ (337
Repayment of debt (maturities greater than 90 days) (650 —
Proceeds from debt (maturities greater than 90)days — 1,112
Total cash change in debt $ (763 $ 775
Purchases of treasury stock (1,184 (2,055
Proceeds from issuances of treasury stock pursaanbck option and benefit

plans 496 612
Dividends paid to shareholders (1,403 (1,344
Other — net (2) (16)
Net cash used ifinancing activities $ (2,856 $ (2,028

Total debt was approximately $11.3 billion at J@0¢ 2017 and $11.7 billion at year-end 2016, wii decrease driven
by repayment of $650 million aggregate principabamnt of fixed rate medium-term notes.
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Repurchases of common stock are made to suppo@iahmany’s stock-based employee compensation plach$or
other corporate purposes. In February 2016, 3Mar8of Directors authorized the repurchase of upl® billion of
3M'’s outstanding common stock, with no pre-estdigicsend date. The Company expects full-year 2043sghare
repurchases will be in the range of $2.0 billior$85 billion. For more information, refer to thabte titled “Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities” in Part I, ItenTRe Company does not utilize derivative instruredimked to the
Company’s stock.

3M has paid dividends each year since 1916. Inuger2017, 3M’s Board of Directors declared a fgearter 2017
dividend of $1.175 per share, an increase of 6gmerd his is equivalent to an annual dividend aff$4oer share and
marked the 59th consecutive year of dividend iregedor 3M. In May 2017, 3M’s Board of Directorcliged a
second-quarter 2017 dividend of $1.175 per share.

Other cash flows from financing activities may umb various other items, such as distributions teates of
noncontrolling interests, changes in cash overdratinces, and principal payments for capital kease

Free Cash Flow (non-GAAP measure):

Free cash flow and free cash flow conversion atelafined under U.S. generally accepted accoumtimgiples
(GAAP). Therefore, they should not be considersdlastitute for income or cash flow data prepareacitordance with
U.S. GAAP and may not be comparable to similatlgdi measures used by other companies. The Congedimes free
cash flow as net cash provided by operating ams/iess purchases of property, plant and equipritesttould not be
inferred that the entire free cash flow amountvailable for discretionary expenditures. The Conypdefines free cash
flow conversion as free cash flow divided by netoime attributable to 3M. The Company believes @a&sh flow and
free cash flow conversion are meaningful to invessts they are useful measures of performanceh@n@dmpany uses
these measures as an indication of the strengtieafompany and its ability to generate cash. ireedquarter of each
year is typically 3M’s seasonal low for free cakiwfand free cash flow conversion. Below find aagof free cash
flow for the six months ended June 30, 2017 and201

Six months ended

June 30,
(Millions) 2017 2016
Major GAAP Cash Flow Categories
Net cash provided by operating activi $ 2,630 $ 2,545
Net casfprovided by (used in) investing activities 427 (630)
Net cash used in financiractivities (2,856 (2,028
Free Cash Flow (non-GAAP measure)
Net cash provided by operating activi $ 2,630 $ 2,545
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) (589 (637)
Free cash flow $ 2041 $ 1,908
Net income attributable to 3 $ 2906 $ 2,566
Free cash flow conversion 70% 74%
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CAUTIONARY NOTE CONCERNING FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, including “Maeaent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cbadiand
Results of Operations” in Part I, Item 2, contdmsvard-looking statements within the meaning & Brivate
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The Companay also make forward-looking statements in iotBports
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiomaterials delivered to shareholders and in prelesses. In
addition, the Company’s representatives may franetio time make oral forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements relate to future evantstypically address the Company’s expected futustness and
financial performance. Words such as “plan,” “exgeaim,” “believe,” “project,” “target,” “anticipate,” “intend,”
“estimate,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “forecast” ad other words and terms of similar meaning, tylprddentify such
forward-looking statements. In particular, thesgude, among others, statements relating to:

« the Company’s strategy for growth, future reveneeasnings, cash flow, uses of cash and other messdir
financial performance, and market position,

* worldwide economic, political, and capital marketéditions, such as interest rates, foreign cugrexchange
rates, financial conditions of our suppliers andtoemers, and natural and other disasters or cliof@age
affecting the operations of the Company or its ieppand customers,

* new business opportunities, product developmeiot fatture performance or results of current or apited
products,

» the scope, nature or impact of acquisitions, fiatalliances and divestitures,

« the outcome of contingencies, such as legal andatgy proceedings,

» future levels of indebtedness, common stock re@ges and capital spending,

« future availability of and access to credit markets

* pension and postretirement obligation assumptiodsfature contributions,

e assetimpairments,

» tax liabilities,

» information technology security, and

» the effects of changes in tax, environmental aheérofws and regulations in the United States dhero
countries in which we operate.

The Company assumes no obligation to update oseeuiy forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements are based on certaimgssons and expectations of future events andigr¢imat are
subject to risks and uncertainties. Actual futwsults and trends may differ materially from histak results or those
reflected in any such forward-looking statemenfsetteling on a variety of factors. Important inforioatas to these
factors can be found in this document, includingpag others, “Management’s Discussion and Analy&isnancial
Condition and Results of Operations” under the hreggdof “Overview,” “Financial Condition and Liquity” and
annually in “Critical Accounting Estimates.” Disaisn of these factors is incorporated by referdrma Part II, Item
1A, “Risk Factors,” of this document, and shouldcbasidered an integral part of Part I, ltem 2, Hdgement's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebkults of Operations.” For additional informatmmcerning
factors that may cause actual results to vary ni@diiefrom those stated in the forward-looking staents, see our
reports on Form 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K filed with tHEGfrom time to time.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Adout Market Risk.

In the context of Item 3, 3M is exposed to marksit due to the risk of loss arising from adversanges in foreign
currency exchange rates, interest rates and contyrqarites. Changes in those factors could impaztGbmpany’s
results of operations and financial condition. &aliscussion of sensitivity analysis related tséhiypes of market
risks, refer to Part Il, Iltem 7A, Quantitative aQdalitative Disclosures About Market Risk, in 3MCsirrent Report on
Form 8-K dated May 4, 2017 (which updated 3M'’s 2@t®iual Report on Form 10-K). There have been nterizd
changes in information that would have been pravidehe context of Iltem 3 from the end of the pding year until
June 30, 2017. However, the Company does provittamanagement discussion in various places irQherterly
Report on Form 10-Q, primarily in the Derivativeste
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

a. The Company carried out an evaluation, undestipervision and with the participation of its mg@aent, including
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial 0k, of the effectiveness of the design and opmradf the
Company’s “disclosure controls and procedures’d@med in the Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e)) asefand of the
period covered by this report. Based upon thatuatin, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Fio@h Officer
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controts@ncedures are effective.

b. There was no change in the Company’s internatrabover financial reporting that occurred durihg Company’s
most recently completed fiscal quarter that hasnsdty affected, or is reasonably likely to maddisi affect, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting

The Company is implementing an enterprise resoplar@ning (“ERP”) system on a worldwide basis, whielkexpected
to improve the efficiency of certain financial aredated transaction processes. The gradual impletien is expected
to occur in phases over the next several yearsifiplementation of a worldwide ERP system will likaffect the
processes that constitute our internal control éwmancial reporting and will require testing fdfestiveness.

The Company completed implementation with respeeléments of certain processes/sub-processeamnitedi
subsidiaries/locations and will continue to rolt e ERP system over the next several years. Asamy new
information technology application we implementsthpplication, along with the internal controlsofinancial
reporting included in this process, was appropgatensidered within the testing for effectivenesth respect to the
implementation in these instances. We concludegagsof its evaluation described in the above graghs, that the
implementation of the ERP system in these circunt&ts has not materially affected our internal adrdver financial
reporting.
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3M COMPANY
FORM 10-Q
For the Quarterly Period Ended June 30, 2017
PART Il. Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

Discussion of legal matters is incorporated byrexiee from Part |, Item 1, Note 12, “Commitmentd &ontingencies
of this document, and should be considered anralk@grt of Part Il, ltem 1, “Legal Proceedings.”

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Provided below is a cautionary discussion of whatbelieve to be the most important risk factordiapple to the
Company. Discussion of these factors is incorpdrhtereference into and considered an integralgfdpart I, ltem 2,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahditions and Results of Operations.”

* Results are impacted by the effects of, and cearmg, worldwide economic, political, and capitednkets conditions.
The Company operates in more than 70 countrieslarides approximately 60 percent of its revenuesifoutside the
United States. The Company’s business is subjegibtmal competition and geopolitical risks and rbayadversely
affected by factors in the United States and othentries that are beyond its control, such asei@eonomic growth,
disruptions in financial markets, economic downsuimthe form of either contained or widespreassmnary
conditions, inflation, elevated unemployment leyslaggish or uneven recovery, government defegiuction and
other austerity measures in specific countrieggions, or in the various industries in which tr@r@any operates;
social, political or labor conditions in specifiountries or regions; natural and other disastedimate change
affecting the operations of the Company or its@ongrs and suppliers; or adverse changes in th&abiiy and cost of
capital, interest rates, tax rates, tax laws, eharge control, ability to expatriate earnings atiar regulations in the
jurisdictions in which the Company operates.

* Change in the Company’s credit ratings could mase cost of fundinghe Company’s credit ratings are important to
3M’s cost of capital. The major rating agenciestirely evaluate the Company’s credit profile andigis debt ratings to
3M. This evaluation is based on a number of factetsch include financial strength, business andricial risk, as

well as transparency with rating agencies and timaes of financial reporting. 3M currently has af-Aredit rating

with a stable outlook from Standard & Poor’s and ha Al credit rating with a stable outlook fromddig’s Investors
Service. The Company’s credit ratings have sergddwer 3M’s borrowing costs and facilitate acctesa variety of
lenders. The Company’s ongoing transition to adpeiptimized capital structure, financed with aibahial low-cost

debt, could impact 3M’s credit rating in the futuFailure to maintain strong investment grade getiwould adversely
affect the Company’s cost of funding and could asetly affect liquidity and access to capital masket

* The Company’s results are affected by competitavaditions and customer preferencBemand for the Company’s
products, which impacts revenue and profit margsaffected by (i) the development and timingted tntroduction of
competitive products; (ii) the Company’s resporsddwnward pricing to stay competitive; (iii) chasgn customer
order patterns, such as changes in the levelssefitory maintained by customers and the timingust@mer purchases
which may be affected by announced price changms)ges in the Company’s incentive programs, octistomer’s
ability to achieve incentive goals; and (iv) chamgecustomers’ preferences for our products, ulioly the success of
products offered by our competitors, and changesigiomer designs for their products that can affecdemand for
some of the Company’s products.

* Foreign currency exchange rates and fluctuationthose rates may affect the Company’s abilitsetaize projected
growth rates in its sales and earnin@ecause the Company’s financial statements arendi@ated in U.S. dollars and
approximately 60 percent of the Company’s reveranesierived from outside the United States, the f@oy's results
of operations and its ability to realize projectgdwth rates in sales and earnings could be adyeaffected if the U.S.
dollar strengthens significantly against foreigmrencies.
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* The Company’s growth objectives are largely defmart on the timing and market acceptance of its pr@auct
offerings, including its ability to continually rew its pipeline of new products and to bring thpseducts to market.
This ability may be adversely affected by difficedt or delays in product development, such asnaility to identify
viable new products, obtain adequate intellectuaperty protection, or gain market acceptance of ppducts. There
are no guarantees that new products will proveetodmmercially successful.

* The Company'’s future results are subject to flations in the costs and availability of purchasednponents,
compounds, raw materials and energy, includingaaill natural gas and their derivatives, due to shgets, increased
demand, supply interruptions, currency exchandesrigatural disasters and other factofsie Company depends on
various components, compounds, raw materials, aadhg (including oil and natural gas and their d&tives) supplied
by others for the manufacturing of its productss fpossible that any of its supplier relationshipsld be interrupted
due to natural and other disasters and other evanltee terminated in the future. Any sustainedriniption in the
Company’s receipt of adequate supplies could havatarial adverse effect on the Company. In adulitichile the
Company has a process to minimize volatility in poment and material pricing, no assurance canyengdhat the
Company will be able to successfully manage piieetdiations or that future price fluctuations ooghges will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company.

* Acquisitions, strategic alliances, divestiturasd other unusual events resulting from portfolianagement actions
and other evolving business strategies, and passitganizational restructuring could affect futuesults.The
Company monitors its business portfolio and orgaiinal structure and has made and may continueate
acquisitions, strategic alliances, divestitures elmahges to its organizational structure. With eespo acquisitions,
future results will be affected by the Company’dighto integrate acquired businesses quickly abthin the
anticipated synergies.

* The Company’s future results may be affectedaéf@ompany generates fewer productivity improvesnitain
estimatedThe Company utilizes various tools, such as Laarsfma, and engages in ongoing global business
transformation. Business transformation is defiae@¢hanges in processes and internal/externateateiivery across
3M to move to more efficient business models tormep operational efficiency and productivity, whillowing 3M to
serve customers with greater speed and efficiefiuig. is enabled by the ongoing multi-year phaseulémentation of
an enterprise resource planning (ERP) system oorlwide basis. There can be no assurance that @ik projected
productivity improvements will be realized.

* The Company employs information technology systensupport its business, including ongoing phased
implementation of an ERP system as part of busitnessformation on a worldwide basis over the resiteral years.
Security breaches and other disruptions to the Gowgjs information technology infrastructure coufdarfere with the
Company’s operations, compromise information beiloggo the Company and its customers, supplierd,employees,
exposing the Company to liability which could acdety impact the Company’s business and reputatiothe ordinary
course of business, the Company relies on infoonagchnology networks and systems, some of whiehr@mnaged by
third parties, to process, transmit and store maat information, and to manage or support a ¥aeé business
processes and activities. Additionally, the Compemliects and stores certain data, including pedpri business
information, and may have access to confidentigdessonal information in certain of our businedses is subject to
privacy and security laws, regulations and custeim@osed controls. Despite our cybersecurity messs(including
employee and third-party training, monitoring ofwerks and systems, and maintenance of backup retelgive
systems) which are continuously reviewed and upggtathe Company’s information technology netwonkd a
infrastructure may still be vulnerable to damagdsruptions or shutdowns due to attack by hackets@aches,
employee error or malfeasance, power outages, dempiuuses, telecommunication or utility failureystems failures,
service providers including cloud services, natdishsters or other catastrophic events. It isiplasr such
vulnerabilities to remain undetected for an extehperiod, up to and including several years. Whitehave
experienced, and expect to continue to experighese types of threats to the Company’s informatchnology
networks and infrastructure, none of them to datelad a material impact to the Company. Therebmagther
challenges and risks as the Company upgrades andisstlizes its ERP system on a worldwide basis.uoh events
could result in legal claims or proceedings, ligpibr penalties under privacy laws, disruptiorojrerations, and
damage to the Company’s reputation, which couldesbly affect the Company’s business. AlthoughQbepany
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maintains insurance coverage for various cyber#gaisks, there can be no guarantee that all amskssses incurred
will be fully insured.

* The Company'’s defined benefit pension and pastraent plans are subject to financial market rigtkat could
adversely impact our result§he performance of financial markets and discoatgs impact the Company’s funding
obligations under its defined benefit plans. Sigaifit changes in market interest rates, decrendée ifair value of plan
assets and investment losses on plan assets, landntdegislative or regulatory changes relatmgefined benefit plan
funding may increase the Company'’s funding oblmaiand adversely impact its results of operatémuscash flows.

* The Company’s future results may be affectedanus legal and regulatory proceedings and legainpliance risks,
including those involving product liability, antitst, intellectual property, environmental, the Ur8reign Corrupt
Practices Act and other anti-bribery, anti-corrugti, or other mattersThe outcome of these legal proceedings may
differ from the Company’s expectations becauseotiteomes of litigation, including regulatory magteare often
difficult to reliably predict. Various factors oedelopments can lead the Company to change cugstintates of
liabilities and related insurance receivables wizgglicable, or make such estimates for mattengquely not
susceptible of reasonable estimates, such as ificagi judicial ruling or judgment, a significaséttlement, significant
regulatory developments or changes in applicable Aafuture adverse ruling, settlement or unfavégatevelopment
could result in future charges that could have ter@ adverse effect on the Company’s resultspefrations or cash
flows in any particular period. For a more detaitgstcussion of the legal proceedings involving@wnpany and the
associated accounting estimates, see the discuadiote 12 “Commitments and Contingencies” wittlie Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Iltem 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities @ahUse of Proceeds.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Repurchases of 3M common stock are made to sugfpp@ompany’s stock-based employee compensatios plad
for other corporate purposes. In February 2016,s3B8ard of Directors authorized the repurchasgabus10 billion

of 3M’s outstanding common stock, with no pre-ekshled end date.

Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities (registered pursuant to
Section 12 of the Exchange Act)

Total Number of  Average Price

Total Number of

as Part of Publicly

Maximum
Approximate

Dollar Value of
Shares that May
Shares Purchased Yet Be Purchased
under the Plans

Shares Purchased Paid per Announced Plans  or Programs

Period (1) Share or Programs (2) (Millions)
January 1-31, 2017 1,24558C $ 177.61 1,245,347 $ 6,835
February 1-28, 2017 1,038,368 182.41 1,037,719 $ 6,645
March 1-31, 2017 1,168,89¢ $ 190.75 1,168,89: $ 6,422
Total January 1-March 31, 2017 3,452,835  183.50 3,451,959 $ 6,422
April 1-30, 2017 934,900 $ 191.64 933,463 $ 6,244
May 1-31, 2017 1,017,290% 197.80 1,017,000 $ 6,042
June 1-30, 2017 396,770 $ 208.83 396,770 $ 5,960
Total April 1-June 30, 2017 2,348,966  197.21 2,347,233 $ 5,960
Total January 1-June 30, 2017 5,801,79t $§ 189.05 5,799,192 $ 5,960

(1) The total number of shares purchased includeshéjes purchased under the Board’s authorizatiessrithed
above, and (ii) shares purchased in connectiontétexercise of stock options.
(2) The total number of shares purchased as part dicbuannounced plans or programs includes shaneshased

under the Board’s authorizations described above.
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Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities— No matters require disclosure.

Iltem 4. Mine Safety DisclosuresPursuant to Section 1503 of the Dodd-Frank Wal#&tReform and Consumer

Protection Act (the “Act”), the Company is requireddisclose, in connection with the mines it opesainformation
concerning mine safety violations or other regulatoatters in its periodic reports filed with thEG. The information
concerning mine safety violations or other regulatoatters required by Section 1503(a) of the Adhtluded in
Exhibit 95 to this quarterly report.

Item 5. Other Information. — No matters require disclosure.

Item 6. Exhibits.

(12)
(15)

(31.1)
(31.2)
(32.1)
(32.2)

(99)

Calculation of ratio of earnings to fixed ofpes.

A letter from the Company'’s independent resgisd public accounting firm regarding unaudite@iim
consolidated financial statements.

Certification of the Chief Executive Offiggursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-OxleyofA2002,
18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officpursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-OxleyoA2002,
18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

Certification of the Chief Executive Offiggursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleyofA2002,
18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleyoA2002,
18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

Mine Safety Disclosures.

(101.INS) XBRL Instance Document.

(101.SCH) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.
(101.CAL) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutne
(101.DEF) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkke Document.
(101.LAB) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.
(101.PRE) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentatiorkhase Document.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caussddiport to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

3M COMPANY
(Registrant)

Date: August 1, 2017

By /s/ Nicholas C. Gangestad
Nicholas C. Gangestad,

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Mr. Gangestad is the Principal Financial Officaddas
been duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Regis.)
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3M COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CALCULATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

EARNINGS
Income before income taxes

Add:
Interest expense (including amortizatic
of capitalized interest)

Portion of rent under operating leases
representative of the interest compone

Less:
Equity in undistributed income of 20-

50% owned companies

TOTAL EARNINGS AVAILABLE
FOR FIXED CHARGES

FIXED CHARGES

Interest on debt (including capitalized
interest)

Portion of rent under operating leases
representative of the interest compone

TOTAL FIXED CHARGES

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED
CHARGES

EXHIBIT 12
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(Millions)
Six months
ended
June 30, Year Year Year Year Year
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
$ 3,879 $ 7,053 $ 6,823 $ 7,026 $ 6,562 $ 6,351
109 219 171 164 166 191
53 100 101 104 103 92
5 3
$ 4036 3% 7,363 $ 7,090 $ 7,295 $ 6,832 $ 6,631
105 208 162 159 166 194
53 100 101 104 103 92
$ 158 $ 308 $ 263 $ 263 $ 269 $ 286
255 23.9 27.0 27.7 25.4 23.2



EXHIBIT 15
August 1, 2017

Securities and Exchange Commission
100 F Street, N.E.
Washington, DC 20549

Commissioners:

We are aware that our report dated August 1, 2@1Guo review of interim financial information of 3@ompany and
its subsidiaries for the three and six month periedded June 30, 2017 and 2016 and included @dhgany's
quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endiene 30, 2017 is incorporated by reference iRdégistration
Statements on Form S-8 (Registration Nos. 333-3088%-30691, 333-44760, 333-73192, 333-101727,138882,
333-128251, 333-130150, 333-151039, 333-156626,156627, 333-166908, 333-174562, 333-181269, 33216
and 333-211431) and Form S-3 (Registration Nos-Z3219, 33-48089, 333-42660, and 333-109211) dabeaist 1,
2017.

Very truly yours,
/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
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EXHIBIT 31.1

SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Inge G. Thulin, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 16f@M Company;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not commjnuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimalight of the circumstances under which sueteshents
were made, not misleading with respect to the pecmvered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly
present in all material respects the financial ool results of operations and cash flows of Registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant hade:

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresgused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensuterhterial information relating to the Registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madevkmto us by others within those entities, partciyl
during the period in which this report is beinggaeed;

Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr, or caused such internal control over finahcia
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopyéwide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacat of financial statements for external purposes i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’'sldssire controls and procedures and presentedsin th
report our conclusions about the effectivenessi®efdisclosure controls and procedures, as of te en
of the period covered by this report based on swetiuation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the Regi¢santernal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the Registrant’s most recent figearter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quartettia
case of an annual report) that has materially tdteor is reasonably likely to materially affettie
Registrant’s internal control over financial refogt and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | kadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal
control over financial reporting, to the Registtartuditors and the audit committee of the Regigtseboard
of directors (or persons performing the equivafanttions):

(@)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiov
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the Registrant’s ability to regord
process, summarize and report financial informator

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a

significant role in the Registrant’s internal cahtover financial reporting.

/sl Inge G. Thulin

Inge G. Thulin
Chief Executive Officer

August 1, 2017
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EXHIBIT 31.2

SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Nicholas C. Gangestad, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 16f@M Company;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not commjnuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimalight of the circumstances under which sucteshents
were made, not misleading with respect to the pecmvered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly
present in all material respects the financial ool results of operations and cash flows of Registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchangdr@itets 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cbotrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actd®ul3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant hade:

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensutetterial information relating to the Registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madeviimto us by others within those entities, paraciyl
during the period in which this report is beinggaeed;

Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahcia
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopybwide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacet of financial statements for external purposes i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’sldésire controls and procedures and presentedsin th
report our conclusions about the effectivenessiefdisclosure controls and procedures, as of te en
of the period covered by this report based on swetiuation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the Regissanternal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the Registrant’s most recent figearter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quartettia
case of an annual report) that has materially tdteor is reasonably likely to materially affettie
Registrant’s internal control over financial refogt and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | kadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal
control over financial reporting, to the Registtamtuditors and the audit committee of the Regmtsaboard
of directors (or persons performing the equivafanttions):

(@)

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiov
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the Registrant’s ability to regord
process, summarize and report financial informator

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the Registrant’s internal cahtover financial reporting.

/sl Nicholas C. Gangestad

Nicholas C. Gangest
Chief Financial Officer

August 1, 2017
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EXHIBIT 32.1
SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION
In connection with the Quarterly Report of 3M Compdthe “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period eshdene 30,
2017 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Csion on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, IngeT@ulin, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuamil8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuadédtion 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knogted

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh
1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand
results of operations of the Company.

/sl Inge G. Thulin

Inge G. Thulin
Chief Executive Officer

August 1, 2017
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EXHIBIT 32.2

SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Quarterly Report of 3M Compdthe “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ethdene 30,
2017 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Csion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, NidoC. Gangestad,
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted puotrsoissection 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my kizulge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh
1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand
results of operations of the Company.

/sl Nicholas C. Gangestad

Nicholas C. Gangest
Chief Financial Officer

August 1, 2017
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EXHIBIT 95
MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

For the second quarter of 2017, the Company ha®tieaving mine safety information to report in acdance with Section 1503(a) of the Act, in conioectith the
Pittsboro, North Carolina mine, the Little Rockk&nsas mine, the Corona, California mine, and tlas&lu, Wisconsin mine (including Greystone Plant):

Received
Received Notice of
Total Dollar Value Notice of Potentieto Aggregate
Mine or Operating Section of MSHA TotaNumber Pattern of Have Pattern Legal Actions Aggregate Legal Actions
Name/MSHA Section 104 Section 104(d) Section eclion Assessments of Mining Violations Undere8tion Pending as of Legal Actions  Resolved
Identification S&S Citations 104(b) Citations and ~ 110(b)(2) 107(a) Proposed Related Under Sectio 104(e) Last Day of Initiated During During Period
Number #) Orders (#) Orders (#)  Violations (#) Orders (#) ($) Fatalities (#) 104(e) (yes/no) (yes/no) Period (#) Period (#) #)
3M Pittsboro ID: 3102153 — — — — — 3 = — No No —
3M Little Rock ID: 0300426 — — — — — 3 1,830 — No No —
3M Corona Plant ID: 0400191 — = = = — 3 4,631 — No No —
Greystone Plant ID: 4700119 1 — — — — 3 1,497 —_ No No —
Wausau Plant ID: 4702918 = = — = — % 2,053 = No No —
Total 1 — — — — 3 10,011 — — — —
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